
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2023 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – LARGE CONF. RM, CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. FY21-22 Audit (Forvis)
b. Floodprint Projects Update (NC State University Coastal Dynamics Design Lab)
c. Strategic Buyout Program Updates (North Carolina Office of Recovery & Resiliency)

4. NEW BUSINESS
d. FY22-23 Year-End Financial Update (Finance)
e. Goldsboro Union Station History and Update (Downtown Development)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Father David Wyly, St. Stephens Episcopal Church)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A.1 Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of October 2, 2023
A.2 Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of October 16, 2023

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Employee/Supervisor of the Quarter  
C. Night to Shine 10th Anniversary (Donna Countryman) 
D. National Apprenticeship Week Proclamation  

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS
E. Z-14-23 Red Horse Townes (Residential-12 SF CZ to Residential -12 CZ) – East of Country Day Rd.

between Wheeler Dr. and Davis Rd. (Planning) – Cont. from 10/2 
F. Z-15-23 Royal Farms – Store #520 (Wayne County Residential-Agricultural, Light Industrial, and

Community Shopping to City of Goldsboro Highway Business Conditional Zoning) – Corner of S. US 117 
Hwy., S. US 13 Hwy., and Carolina Street (Planning)  

G. Z-16-23 Dearing Automotive & Diesel, Inc. (Residential 16 to Highway Business/Office & Institutional-1 
Conditional Zoning District) – West side of US 117 Hwy. between Belfast Rd. and Scale Dr. (Planning) 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
H. HACG Surveillance Camera Cost Sharing Agreement (Mayor)
I. HOME Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) Certification Guide & Application

(Community Relations) 
J. Public Facilities & Improvements Program Guide & Application (Community Relations)
K. Affordable Rental Housing Development Program Guide & Application (Community Relations)
L. Resolution in Support of the "Goldsboro Community Floodprint" Report (Engineering)
M. Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24 (Finance)
N. Ordinance amending the Sewer Rehabilitation Project E-SRP-W-17-0110 Project (S1103) (Finance)
O. Award contract for audit services for fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 to Forvis, LLP (Finance)
P. City of Goldsboro/Downtown Goldsboro 2023 Downtown Lights Up! – Temporary Street Closure (Police)

-  Moved to 11/20



2 

Q. Accepting the Distribution of Trusts and Establishing a Perpetual Care Fund for Cemetery Trusts (City 
Attorney)  

R. Resolution of Support to Reduce the Speed Limit for a Section of Throughfare Road (SR 1712) (City 
Manager’s Office) 

S. Resolution to Accept Strategic Buyout Properties (City Manager’s Office) 

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS
T. Small Business Saturday Proclamation

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS

XIII. CLOSED SESSION

XIV. ADJOURN

U. /

T. Amendment of an Ordinance (Planning) 



GOLDSBORO COMMUNITY FLOODPRINT: OCTOBER 2023

www.coastaldynamicsdesignlab.com

GOLDSBORO 
COMMUNITY

FLOODPRINT
BIG DITCH + MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSE + WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

w.s. item b



GOLDSBORO

++
SEYMOUR JOHNSON

AIR FORCE BASE (SJAFB)

LA GRANGE

WALNUT
CREEK

PIKEVILLE

PRINCETON

F

A

# IMPACTED STRUCTURES +
STREAM NAME:

101
802
N/A

BIG DITCH
NEUSE RIVER
MOCCASIN CREEK

NEUSE RIVER (QUAKER 
NECK LAKE + BIG DITCH) 

HUC 12: 030202011705

G

# IMPACTED STRUCTURES +
STREAM NAME:

432
N/A
N/A
N/A

LITTLE RIVER
BUCK SWAMP
MILL BRANCH
PEACOCK BRANCH

LITTLE RIVER
(BUCK SWAMP)

HUC 12: 030202011604

# IMPACTED STRUCTURES +
STREAM NAME:

3
0
11

HOWELL’S BRANCH
REEDY CREEK
STONEY CREEK

STONEY CREEK
(HEADWATERS)

HUC 12: 030202020101

# IMPACTED STRUCTURES +
STREAM NAME:

20
5
16

BILLY BUD CREEK
RICHLAND CREEK
STONEY CREEK

STONEY CREEK (OUTLET)
HUC 12: 030202020102

# IMPACTED STRUCTURES +
STREAM NAME:

# IMPACTED STRUCTURES +
STREAM NAME:

# IMPACTED STRUCTURES +
STREAM NAME:

97

N/A

8
N/A

NEUSE RIVER

WALNUT CREEK

MILL’S CREEK
WEST BEAR CREEK

NEUSE RIVER (SJAFB)

WALNUT CREEK
(LAKE WAKENA)

WEST BEAR CREEK

HUC 12: 030202020103

HUC 12: 030202020106

HUC 12: 030202020201

E

B

C

D

1 miNORTH

VULNERABILITY ASSESSMENT
Seven (7) subwatersheds (HUC-12’s) divide Goldsboro’s 
footprint into unique hydrological units. Preliminary analysis  
compared the FFE’s (finished floor elevations) of each 
structure in these subwatersheds against the projected WSE 
(water surface elevation) of a 500-year flood event. These 
results identified three (3) subwatersheds (A, G, and F; 
shaded in orange) as being the most vulnerable to damages 
due to a high quantity of impacted structures. Subsequent 
analysis assessed the potential for suitable project 
typologies within these highlighted areas.

23



The identified projects for potential inclusion in the 
Goldsboro Community Floodprint generally fit within three 
(3) categories: Public Utilities, Land Management, and 
Natural Systems. In understanding the reliance on external 
grant programs to fund all or part of each of the potential

projects, each were assessed for their compatibility to 
score favorably within the review criteria of the FEMA BRIC 
(Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities) grant 
program that directly concern project scoping. These 
sections include five (5) of the fourteen (14) total review 
criteria for FEMA BRIC, and include:

+ Community Lifelines. These represent “the most 
fundamental services in a community that, when 
stabilized, enable all other aspects of society to function 
(FEMA, 2023).” These are typically assets that support the 
day-to-day, recurring needs of a community.

+ Risk Reduction. Many grant programs, including FEMA 
BRIC, require for the amount of risk aversion (e.g., flood 
damage reduction) to be quantifiable and translated into 
dollar equivalents for “benefits” and “costs.” Determining 
the potential cost-effectiveness of a project during 
this preliminary scoping phase relied on each project 
having both: a reasonable likelihood of yielding monetary 
reductions in expected damages, and data available to 
support required analyses.

+ Population Impacted. There is growing momentum for 
state- and federal-level investments to support various 
definitions of “underserved communities,” In the case of 
FEMA BRIC, the CDC SVI (Social Vulnerability Index) is used 
in order to determine if the population impacted by a

project is “underserved” (census tract containing a SVI 
rating of at least 0.6 on a 0-to-1 scale), and thereby 
eligible to receive more points during review.

+ Nature-Based Solutions. Recognizing the many 
ancillary benefits of natural infrastructure (e.g., improved 
water quality, ecological habitat, etc.), additional points 
are allotted if projects have the potential to incorporate 
nature-based solutions in the scope of work.

+ Leverage Partners. Project locations or features 
that contain clear partnership potential outside of City 
departments have been prioritized, and will subsequently 
score higher during review if these external partnerships 
are formalized prior to grant application.

After review of each potential project through the five (5) 
review criteria, one (1) Public Utilities project (Wastewater 
Treatment Plant), and two (2) Natural Systems projects (Big 
Ditch and the Mina Weil Park Neighborhood + Golf Course), 
satisfied all of the decision matrix conditions and were 
selected as Floodprint projects.

“After review of each potential project through the five [FEMA BRIC] 
review criteria, one Public Utilities project (Wastewater Treatment 
Plant), and two Natural Systems projects (Big Ditch and the Mina 
Weil Park Neighborhood + Golf Course), satisfied all of the decision 
matrix conditions and were selected as Floodprint projects.”

POTENTIAL PROJECT AREAS: DECISION MATRIX

WASTE TRANSFER STATION

WATER TREATMENT PLANT

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

MLK JR. AREA: PREVIOUS BUYOUTS

BIG DITCH: STREAM RESTORATION

WEST HAVEN: EXISTING BUYOUTS

MINA WEIL AREA + GOLF COURSE

S. JOHN STREET: EXISTING BUYOUTS

FORMER CHERRY HOSPITAL SITE

COMMUNITY
LIFELINES

POTENTIAL
PROJECTS

POPULATION
IMPACTED

NATURE-
BASED

RISK
REDUCTION

LEVERAGE
PARTNERS

PU
BL

IC
UT

IL
IT

IE
S

NA
TU

RA
L

SY
ST

EM
S

LA
ND

MA
NA

GE
ME

NT

27



Big Ditch is a stream that runs through the center of 
Goldsboro, draining a 3.1-square mile area. The watershed 
that drains into Big Ditch is 93% developed and 35% of the 
area is impervious (Doll and Kurki-Fox, 2020). Large sections 
of Big Ditch have been straightened and armored, with many

sections of the stream channel confined to either rectangular 
or trapezoidal concrete channels (see photo, below). A 
functioning floodplain no longer exists, aside from a 
small section between South John Street and Elm Street 
(adjoining Willow Dale Cemetery) where previous restoration

activities have been completed over the past couple of 
decades. Within the reach of Big Ditch included in this study’s 
extents, there are twelve (12) road or railroad crossings along 

the stream between South John Street and the railroad tracks 
that parallel Royall Avenue. Local officials have reported 
severe flooding along the stream; which is evidenced through 
resultant property damages and road closures that are 
becoming more commonplace during even 

more frequent, and less severe rainfall events. In addition 
to the heavily modified nature of the stream channel 
contributing to increased flood vulnerabilities, there are a 
number of contextual conditions that must be considered 
alongside any potential stream restoration and/or 
infrastructure improvements along Big Ditch:

+ The Goldsboro Housing Authority actively manages two (2)
   multi-family housing neighborhoods that adjoin Big Ditch: 
   Elmwood Terrace (south) and Woodcrest Terrace (north);

+ There is a federally-recognized Local Historic District that 
   includes Goldsboro’s downtown core (west of Big Ditch) and 
   along Park Avenue, which intersects the stream channel;

+ There is a Duke Energy Substation that, due to its location 
   in the floodplain, is susceptible to flood damages; and

+ 152 buildings intersect Big Ditch’s 500-year floodplain 
   (FEMA, 2022), and of these, over two-thirds (101 buildings) 
   are expected to be damaged during a modeled 500-year 
   event based on a comparison of FFE and the 500-year WSE.

“Large sections of Big Ditch have been straightened and armored, with 
many sections of the stream channel confined to either rectangular 
or trapezoidal concrete channels. A functioning floodplain no longer 
exists, aside from a small section between South John Street and Elm 
Street where previous restoration activities have been completed.”

FOCUS AREA #1: BIG DITCH

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

ROYALL AVE / RAILROAD

C

SO
UT

H 
JO

HN
 S

T

WILLOW DALE CEMETERY

++

++

++

++

GOLDSBORO HOUSING AUTH.

GOLDSBORO HOUSING AUTH.

DUKE ENERGY SUBSTATION

152 (101 WITH MODELED DAMAGES)
BUILDINGS IN FLOODPLAIN

++

++

LOCAL HISTORIC DISTRICT

C

STREAM + ROAD CROSSINGS

12 CROSSINGS

500 ftNORTH

29



The Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course encompasses an 
approximately 126-acre area, and is owned and operated 
by the City of Goldsboro Parks & Recreation Department. 
Prior to construction in 1941, the course (and surrounding 
residential neighborhood area) was primarily used for 

agricultural purposes -- containing an intricate network 
of ditches and channels in order to provide adequate 
drainage to the croplands. These drainage networks 
can be seen in historic aerial imagery of the property 
(see photo from 1940 with an outline of the golf course 
property and present-day roads labeled, State Archives of 
North Carolina), however, in many cases these drainage 
systems have been heavily modified, filled in, or covered 
up -- likely as part of the course’s initial construction, 
during subsequent renovation of the golf course in 1999, 
and/or during construction of the residential houses and 
supporting infrastructure in the 1960’s.

While heavy rainfall and water backing up from the 
Neuse River causes significant flooding through the 
mapped floodplain (shaded in teal), testimonial from 
homeownership in the “Mina Weil Park Neighborhood” 
(north of the golf course) and City staff from the Parks 
& Recreation Department also report semi-regular 
nuisance flooding observed throughout the golf course, 
along neighborhood streets, and within residential 
property during smaller, more frequent storm events.

While more traditional forms of hazard mitigation 
practices (e.g., acquisitions or elevations) are most 
likely to offer the most substantive risk reduction 
benefits to homeowners in the surrounding residential 
neighborhoods for large-scale flood events (e.g., 100-

year flood), combining these practices with nature-based 
solutions to handle the smaller-scale return periods 
(e.g., 10-year flood) could yield additional flood reduction 
benefits; such as: improved drainage capabilities within

the neighborhood streetscape and through the golf 
course, enhanced play at the golf course, and additional 
ecosystem services to the broader community (e.g., 
water quality, habitat, etc).

“In many cases, these drainage systems have been heavily 
modified, filled in, or covered up [and contribute to] nuisance 
flooding observed throughout the golf course, along neighborhood 
streets, and within residential property during smaller, more 
frequent storm events.”

FOCUS AREA #2: MINA WEIL PARK
NEIGHBORHOOD + GOLF COURSE

SO
UT

H 
JO

HN
 S

T

SL
OC

UM
B 

ST
RE

ET

DIXIE TRAIL

SLOCUMB

DIXIE TRAIL

JO
HN

 S
T

MINA WEIL PARK

RECLAIMED WATER FACILITY

++

++

++

BUILDINGS IN STUDY AREA

MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSE

FORMER DRAINAGE NETWORK

PRE-1940

++
EXISTING BUYOUT ZONE

++

++

GOLDSBORO EVENT CENTER

++

33



FOCUS AREA # 3: WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
The Goldsboro Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) 
takes in raw waste from the City and its residents for 
treatment before eventually being discharged back 
into the environment. However, the WWTP’s location 
within the Middle Neuse Subbasin (dashed boundary 
above) floodplain creates vulnerable conditions during 
hurricanes or other large-scale flooding events, as 
the elements needed to ensure the ongoing operation 
of wastewater treatment systems become at risk for 
sustaining damages.

When floodwaters rise at pump location, motors could be 
knocked out, a result that threatens to compromise the 
entire wastewater treatment system. If the pump at the 
Goldsboro WWTP were to fail, the waste may run out into 
the Neuse River, traveling downstream.

This is particularly problematic for both local 
adjacencies to the WWTP and to regional downstream 
assets that would be impacted by a breach in the WWTP 
system. The WWTP is located:

+ Directly across the river channel from Seymour 
   Johnson Air Force Base (SJAFB);
+ Approx. 30 miles upstream from the City of Kinston 
   (population: 19,843);
+ Approx. 50 miles upstream from the City of New Bern 
   (population: 31,240); and
+ Criss-crosses multiple public and private water supply 
   intake locations and vast swathes of high-value habitat 
   within the Neuse River floodplain, moving downstream 
   into the estuarine waters of the Pamlico Sound.

As the Neuse was declared “nutrient sensitive” by the State 
of North Carolina (in 1995), a wastewater discharge to 
surface waters could create a significant, regional-scale 
environmental hazard for people and the environment.

0 miNORTH 4 mi 8 mi 16 mi

GOLDSBORO
POP. 34,156

KINSTON
POP. 19,843

GREENVILLE
POP. 87,428

WATER SUPPLY 
WATERSHED

NEW BERN
POP. 31,240 

NEUSE RIVER

PAMLICO 
SOUND

MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT (WWTP)

SELECTED PROJECT AREA

SURFACE WATER INTAKE

PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY

PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY

GROUNDWATER WELL

HIGH VALUE HABITAT

35



PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT #1
DECEMBER 2022

The purpose of this public engagement session was to 
solicit community feedback and preferences for potential 
flood reduction strategies within the Big Ditch and Golf 
Course focus areas. Leading up to the event, advertisement 
efforts included use of: i) traditional City-led communication 
strategies through the Public Information Officer (PIO); ii) 
pre-engagement meetings with representatives from each

focus area (City of Goldsboro, Goldsboro Housing Authority, 
City Parks & Recreation Department); and iii) direct mail 
flyers to 900+ property addresses nearest the focus areas. 

The event was held at the W.A. Foster Recreation Center 
(1012 South John Street) in Goldsboro, and was structured as 
a “drop-in” event, where stakeholders could attend for any 
preferred allotment of time between 4:00 - 6:00pm. 

Representatives from the CDDL, the North Carolina Office 
of Recovery and Resiliency (NCORR), and project partners 
from the City were present to engage with stakeholders 
via conversation and information presented on posters. 
During the session, participants were asked to interact with 
the posters through use of provided push-pins at a voting 
mechanism, and through post-it note comments to provide 
any additional remarks.

Key Takeaways: of the eight (8) flood reduction strategies 
presented, the only one that elicited any negative response 
was acquisition of flood-prone properties (“buyouts”). Of 
the remaining seven (7) flood reduction strategies, some 
yielded more positive votes than others; however, they 
were collectively supported and viewed as a betterment to 
existing conditions.

FLOOD REDUCTION STRATEGIES

The purpose of this public engagement session was to solicit 
community feedback and preferences for potential flood 
reduction strategies within the Big Ditch and Golf Course focus 
areas. Of the eight (8) flood reduction strategies presented, 
seven (7) of them were generally supported by stakeholders 
via push-pin votes and were collectively viewed as being a 
betterment to existing conditions.

Photo: CDDL (2022).

37



PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT #2
DECEMBER 2022

This engagement session served as an opportunity 
to partake in workshop-style discussion and “overlay 
drawing” specific to the Municipal Golf Course property.

This event used the same advertisement campaign as 
Workshop #1 (Goldsboro Public Information Officer and 
direct mail flyers), and also included a pre-engagement 
meeting with representatives from the City Parks &

Recreation Department. The event was held at the 
Goldsboro Event Center (GEC), which is located on the 
Municipal Golf Course property (1501 South Slocumb 
Street). Similar to Workshop #1, this was advertised as a 

“drop-in” event, where stakeholders could attend for any 
preferred allotment of time between 4:00 - 6:00pm.

During the workshop, members of the project team 
worked with partners from the Parks & Recreation 
Department to identify nuisance flooding areas, 
drainage patterns, and play consideration that need to 
be considered as part of any potential flood reduction 
strategies including the golf course.

Key Takeaways: as the golf course is nearly entirely 
in the Neuse River floodplain, much of the course gets 
inundated during extreme weather events. While this 
is generally an appropriate use of flood-prone lands, 
drainage improvements to several problematic areas could 
help reduce maintenance and play burdens on the course 
during smaller storm events, while also better capturing 
the historic drainage network from the residential 
neighborhoods upstream (north) of the golf course.

WORKSHOP / CHARRETTE

This engagement event served as an opportunity to partake 
in workshop-style discussion and “overlay drawing” specific to 
the Municipal Golf Course property. During the open session, 
members of the project team worked with partners from the 
Parks & Recreation Department to identify nuisance flooding 
areas, drainage patterns, and play considerations that need 
to be considered as part of any potential flood reduction 
strategies including the golf course.

Photo: CDDL (2022).

47



STREAM RESTORATION + INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

BIG DITCH
         
        
This project will: i) restore approximately 2,300 linear feet of 

stream; ii) upgrade three (3) culvert/bridge conditions; and 

iii) create a “floodplain park” within the Elmwood Terrace

community. Hydraulic modeling of the proposed scope of work

indicates that these improvements will reduce flood-related

damages throughout the project area. Specifically, (14) single-

family residential units, (63) multi-family residential units, and (3)

public/private entities will benefit from reductions in projected

flood heights, and, two (2) of the three (3) road crossings will be

able to withstand flood conditions equivalent to modeled 100- and

500-year flood events.

51



CONTEXT + DESIGN INTENT
The specific location of the proposed scope of work along 
Big Ditch has been identified because it:

+ Correlates with areas along the stream that are modeled 
   to receive damaging floodwaters on a frequent, 
   recurring basis;
+ Is predominantly in a Census Tract (37191001500) with 
   socioeconomic factors historically associated with a 
   lack of investment in resilience-building projects; and
+ Contains the spatial and land ownership conditions 
   required of a project to be technically feasible.

The area encompassing and immediately surrounding 
the project site is in a residential area with a history of 
disturbance. Typical site vegetation includes extensive 
areas of lawn mown right up to the channel edge (Photo D), 
residential landscaping, and some areas of early succession 
forest with a mix of native and invasive species (Photo A). 
50-meter resolution land cover data from the U.S. Geological 
Survey (USGS) describes the area within the proposed Limit 
of Work boundary as being 94.5% “Developed / Other Human 
Use” and 5.5% “Agricultural & Developed Vegetation.”

Full restoration of Big Ditch to a pre-disturbance state 
is not possible due to the surrounding urban context 
(e.g., road crossings and buildings shown in Photos B, C, 
and D), but the proposed scope of work will increase 
the stream’s sinuosity, widen the floodplain, and 
modify naturalized areas to more appropriately serve 
environmental functions.

Photos: Doll, B., Kurki-Fox, J. & Line, D. (2020)

A B C

D

PHOTO PHOTO PHOTO

PHOTO

53



GOLDSBORO FIRE
+ POLICE DEPARTMENTS

PIGGLY
WIGGLY

DILLARD
MIDDLE SCHOOL

++
++

++

ELM STREET

PA
RC

EL
 N

O.
 2

59
99

24
63

5 

IS
LE

R 
ST

RE
ET

DE
NM

AR
K 

ST
RE

ET

CH
AR

LE
S 

ST
RE

ET

S.
 J

OH
N 

ST
RE

ET

SL
OC

UM
B 

ST
RE

ET

PROJECT BENEFITING AREA (67.7 ACRES):
PARCELS INTERSECTING LIMITS OF WORK AND/OR
WITH MODELED FLOOD REDUCTION BENEFITS

++

+ OUTSIDE LIMITS OF WORK / 
   NO GROUND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES

+ GOLDSBORO HOUSING AUTHORITY

WILLOW DALE CEMETERY

ELMWOOD TERRACE

++

++

SPRUCE STREET

“BIG DITCH” STREAM CHANNEL

++

++

++

B

A

+ POINT ‘A’ = 35.3762844 / 77.9945524
+ POINT ‘B’ = 35.3759102 / 77.9936564
+ POINT ‘C’ = 35.3734077 / -77.9950332
+ POINT ‘D’ = 35.3725511 / -77.9950113

++

++

D

C

HINSON STREET

HO
LL

OW
EL

L 
AV

EN
UE

W
IL

LI
AM

 S
TR

EE
T

The North Carolina Floodplain Mapping Program Effective 
HEC-RAS model for Big Ditch was used for hydraulic analysis 
of the existing condition. The effective model was obtained 
from the North Carolina Flood Risk Information System (NC 
FRIS) database (NCFMP, 2019), and the project team surveyed 
elevations at the culverts and roads near the Elmwood 
Terrace community to validate / update the model.

Updating the model revealed that the previously 
completed Division of Mitigation Services (DMS) stream 
mitigation project downstream (south) of Elm Street 
was not reflected in the effective model geometry and 
the culvert at Elm Street was shown as a bridge with 
a lower invert rather than the existing box culvert. 
The culvert at Elm Street was corrected to reflect the 
as-built condition, new cross sections were added, and 
the previously completed DMS restoration project was 
added to the model using cross-section data from the DMS 
annual monitoring reports, LiDAR data, and data collected 
on-site (2023).

Adding the DMS restoration project geometry and 
updating roughness values in the model resulted in 
a rise in Water Surface Elevation (WSE) in the upper 
half of the DMS restoration project and upstream in 
the vicinity of Elmwood Terrace community. Further 
investigation showed that the project initially resulted in 
a violation of FEMA rules. However, the restoration project 
was permitted based on a reinterpretation of the flood 
study model results, even though the modifications to the 
channel appear to increase the risk of flooding relative to 
the existing condition.

EXISTING CONDITIONS MODEL

500 ftN

FORMER DMS SITE

++
The effective hydraulic model was 
updated to reflect more accurate 
conditions in the project area.

59



DAMAGED + VACANT UNITS

++

++

100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN

COMMUNITY
CENTER

++
++ EXISTING FENCED AREA

EXISTING CHANNEL

DE
MO

DE
MO

MATCHLINE ‘A’

HINSON STREET

+86.4

+8
6.

8
+8

7.
5

+87.9

+8
9.

3

+8
9.

0

+85.5

+8
5.

3

+87.2

ELM STREET

SPRUCE STREET

HO
LL

OW
EL

L 
ST

RE
ET

DENMARK STREET

+85.4

LI
MI

T 
OF

 W
OR

K

++
Image: Existing Condition of Big Ditch in Goldsboro, NC 
(Doll, B. & Kurki-Fox, J., 2020)

CH
AR

LE
S 

ST
RE

ET

50 2000
75

77

81

87

79

85

83

89

91

DISTANCE (feet)

EL
EV

AT
IO

N 
(fe

et
)

100 250150 300 350 400 450

BUILDING
EXISTING: 25-YR FLOOD

++

EXISTING
CHANNEL

EXISTING CHANNEL + FLOODPLAIN: ELMWOOD TERRACE

+ 10-YR WSE > FFE
- 1 unit

+ 50-YR WSE > FFE
- 17 units

+ 100-YR WSE > FFE
- 23 units

+ 500-YR WSE > FFE
- 38 units

The lack of a functional floodplain upstream, within, and 
downstream of Elmwood Terrace all contribute to the 
vulnerabilities observed during flood events. In the existing 
condition, the modeled Water Surface Elevation (WSE) 
exceeds the First Floor Elevation (FFE) of at least thirty-
eight (38) residential units during a 500-year event.

In order to reduce these impacts while also being mindful 
of cost-effectiveness, technical feasibility, and stakeholder 
needs across the Elmwood Terrace landscape, the Scenario 
‘C’ scheme considered numerous factors as part of the 
development and refinement of the schematic plan – such 

as: i) demolition costs for removing the existing channel 
condition (i.e., the entire stream segment from Spruce 
Street to Elm Street is an open, rectangular culvert made 
of reinforced concrete); ii) utility locations (e.g., sanitary 
sewer and water lines will need to be re-routed as a result of 
proposed earthwork); iii) resident safety (i.e., currently, a 

chain link fences parallels both sides of Big Ditch throughout 
Elmwood Terrace to act as a deterrent); and iv) perceptions 
of “private” versus “public” space (i.e., the proposed 
features will likely draw more users into a space that 
currently serves as a shared “backyard” among residents).

During existing flood events in Elmwood Terrace, the modeled Water 
Surface Elevation (WSE) exceeds the First Floor Elevation (FFE) of (17) 
residential units during a 50-year event, (23) residential units during 
a 100-year event, and (38) residential units during a 500-year event. 

100 ftN

Cross Section. Water Surface Elevation (WSE) of a
modeled 25-year flood event in Elmwood Terrace: EXISTING

Data. Number of impacted
units in Elmwood Terrace.

63



HINSON STREET

+86.4

+8
6.

8
+8

7.
5

+87.9

+8
9.

3

+8
9.

0

+85.5

+8
5.

3

+87.2

ELM STREET

SPRUCE STREET

CH
AR

LE
S 

ST
RE

ET

HO
LL

OW
EL

L 
ST

RE
ET

DENMARK STREET

+85.4

PL
AY

GR
OU

ND
AR

EA

UPGRADED CULVERT

++
++ ++

++

UPGRADED CULVERT

++
++

ROAD CROSSING REMOVED

PERVIOUS TERRACE AREA

PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE

MATCHLINE ‘A’

GRASS “STADIUM SEATS”

GATHERING AREA

SHADED OVERLOOK

COMMUNITY CENTER

STORAGE

RAMP

LI
MI

T 
OF

 W
OR

K

RESTORATION CONTINUES

APPROX 1,200 LN FT SOUTH

Image: Goose Creek Stream Restoration in Durham, NC 
(Biohabitats, 2009)

++
FLOODPLAIN RESTORATION

50 2000
75

77

81

87

79

85

83

89

91

DISTANCE (feet)

EL
EV

AT
IO

N 
(fe

et
)

100 250150 300 350 400 450

BUILDING

EXISTING
CHANNEL

PROPOSED
RESTORATION

PROPOSED: 25-YR FLOOD

EXISTING: 25-YR FLOOD

++
++

PROPOSED SCENARIO ‘C’ PLAN: ELMWOOD TERRACE

+ 10-YR WSE > FFE
- None

+ 50-YR WSE > FFE
- None

+ 100-YR WSE > FFE
- 7 units

+ 500-YR WSE > FFE
- 9 units

100 ftN

Cross Section. Water Surface Elevation (WSE) of a
modeled 25-year flood event in Elmwood Terrace: PROPOSED

Data. Number of impacted
units in Elmwood Terrace.

Scenario ‘C’ draws upon FEMA guidance (“Building 
Community Resilience with Nature-Based Solutions,” 2021) 
for implementing several “watershed scale” practices (e.g., 
“floodplain restoration” and “stormwater park”) as part of an 
interconnected suite of nature-based solutions along Big 
Ditch. Specifically, the proposed ‘Scenario C’ scheme calls

for: i) removing the existing culvert condition;
ii) excavating approximately 9,600 cubic yards of
“cut” from Spruce Street to Elm Street (with additional
floodplain widening to occur south of Elm Street in the
DMS site); and iii) bordering the proposed floodplain

enhancements with a series of low-impact recreational 
amenities to better serve the needs of the community. 
Altogether, the proposed scope of work in Scenario ‘C’ 
includes: i) 9.64 acres of land classified as “Riparian” 
enhancements (i.e., areas of restored floodplain); and ii) 1.64 
acres of land classified as “Urban Green Open Space” 

enhancements (i.e., public gathering areas). In this 
proposed condition, the modeled Water Surface Elevation 
(WSE) exceeds the First Floor Elevation (FFE) in only nine (9) 
residential units during a 500-year event (compared to 38 
residential units in the existing condition).

In the proposed Scenario ‘C’ plan, the modeled Water Surface 
Elevation (WSE) exceeds the First Floor Elevation (FFE) of (0) 
residential units during a 50-year event, (7) residential units during 
a 100-year event, and (9) residential units during a 500-year event. 

65



PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT #3
MARCH 2023

Are the features shown in 
the plan things you’d want 
to have in your backyard?”

“

During a door-to-door campaign at Elmwood Terrace in March 
2023, 97.5% of residents surveyed (40 out of 41) supported the 
elements included in the refined plan for Scenario C.

DOOR-TO-DOOR CAMPAIGN
During the December 2022 public engagement event, 
“floodplain restoration” (described as “replacing concrete 
channels with a wider, more natural stream”) received the 
most votes from stakeholders out of eight (8) flood mitigation 
options presented for the Big Ditch project. Building off this 
support, the primary purpose of the March 2023 door-to-
door campaign was to gather feedback on the Scenario ‘C’ 
floodplain restoration plan prior to initiating final refinement. 
Prior to the event, printed mail flyers were distributed to 
residents which showed a three-dimensional view of the 

Scenario ‘C’ plan (see illustration above), as well as precedent 
imagery of the proposed design elements. Using the printed 
flyers as a conversation guide, 97.5% of Elmwood Terrace 
residents surveyed during the March 2023 event (40 out of 41) 
supported the elements included in the Scenario ‘C’ plan. 

Key Takeaway: this level of support further validated 
Scenario ‘C’ as the preferred alternative, and only minor 
modifications to the plan were made after March 2023 for 
feasibility and cost-effectiveness purposes.

69



While the purpose of the proposed Big Ditch restoration 
project is primarily intended to better control and manage 
floodwaters, it was also offer a wide breadth of ancillary 
benefits, such as: i) improved water quality throughout the 
project’s “Subwatershed Area” (HUC-12: 030202011705); 

ii) increased safety within the road network that will 
benefit from modeled flood reductions (“Traffic Impact 
Area”); and iii) improved access to recreational amenities 
for residents living within a ten-minute walking distance 
of the site (“Park Access Area,” National Recreation and

Park Association (NRPA), 2017). Merged together, the 
proposed improvements to roadway safety, more equitable 
access to public parkspace, and enhancements to 
ecosystem services are estimated to positively impact 
30% of the total population within the combined census

tract area adjoining the project site (approximately 3,586 
out of 11,958 buildings).

Community Lifelines.
These projected outcomes of the Scenario ‘C’ plan 
work together to reduce risks and strengthen multiple 
“Community Lifelines” in Goldsboro (i.e., “fundamental 
services, assets, and capabilities that support recurring 
needs of the community,” per FEMA’s “Lifelines 
Implementation Toolkit v2.1,” 2023). Specific benefits to 
lifelines include:

+ Community Lifeline #1: Food, Hydration, Shelter. This 
   project supports the “Shelter” component of this lifelines 
   by: avoiding physical damages (to residential 
   properties and contents;

+ Community Lifeline #2: Transportation. This project 
   supports the “Highway / Roadway / Motor Vehicle” 
   component of this lifeline by: lowering the risk of 
   road closure due to flood (two (2) of the three (3) road 
   crossings in the project area will be able to withstand 

“The proposed improvements to roadway safety, more equitable 
access to public parkspace, and enhancements to ecosystem 
services are estimated to positively impact 30% of the total 
population within the combined census tract area adjoining the 
project site (3,586 out of 11,958 buildings).”

PROJECT IMPACTS + BENEFITS

IMAGE: Existing channel and floodplain condition within Elmwood Terrace.Map. Geographic areas included within the Project Impact Area.

TRAFFIC
IMPACT AREA

PARK ACCESS 
AREA

SUBWATERSHED
AREA

77



   flood conditions equivalent to modeled 100- and 500-
   year flood events); and 

+ Community Lifeline #3: Safety and Security. This
project supports the “Community Safety,” and “Search

   and Rescue” components of this lifeline by: i) avoiding 
   loss-of-function costs associated with the temporary 
   or permanent displacement of staff and residents 
   at Elmwood Terrace; and ii) avoiding emergency 
   management costs (i.e., evacuation and/or debris 

   removal efforts typically undertaken by emergency 
   response units.

Future Conditions.
This project responds to anticipated effects of climate 

change outlined in the “North Carolina Climate Risk 
Assessment and Resilience Plan” (2020) by utilizing 
“bioengineering” techniques (i.e., mimicking natural 
floodplain processes) designed to increase: i) the 
absorption and filtration potential of landscapes 
subjected to increases in annual total precipitation; ii) 
the ability of infrastructure to withstand hazards 
associated with projected increases in hurricane 
intensities; and iii) reductions in the severity of future 
property damage stemming from projected increases in 
riverine flooding.

Disadvantaged Populations.
These outcomes are both important to building long-
term community resilience in an underserved portion 
of Goldsboro, and have historically been challenging to 
attain and achieve in the areas surrounding Big Ditch, 
because the seven (7) census tracts intersecting the 
“Project Impact Area” all have CDC Social Vulnerability 
Index (SVI) values that meet the FEMA definition of a 
“disadvantaged” community (CDC SVI values greater than 
0.8 out of 1.0).”

The project’s “Subwatershed Area,” Traffic Impact Area,” and 
“Park Access Area” collectively intersect seven (7) census tracts 
in Goldsboro, all of which have CDC Social Vulnerability Index 
(SVI) values that meet the FEMA definition of a “disadvantaged” 
community (CDC SVI values greater than 0.8 out of 1.0).

PROJECT IMPACTS + BENEFITS (cont’d)

IMAGE: Proposed floodplain restoration within Elmwood Terrace.Map. CDC SVI values for census tracts (n=7) adjoining Project Impact Area.

0.8267

0.9598

0.9408

0.9368

0.9428

0.8260

SITE++

0.9397

79



LOW FLOW WETLANDS

MUNICIPAL
GOLF COURSE
         
        
This project calls for daylighting, widening, and vegetating 

two (2) previously buried drainage channels within the 

City of Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course. The connected 

chain of linear wetlands, when combined with infrastructure 

improvements at inlet and outlet locations of the site, will: i) 

reduce nuisance flooding in the residential neighborhood north 

of the golf course; ii) improve drainage within the golf course; 

iii) enhance water quality prior to infiltrating the ground or

discharging south of the golf course; and iv) enrich over 11.4

acres of newly established wildlife habitat at a property located

within the Neuse River floodplain.

81



Existing Condition. The Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course 
and the Mina Weil Neighborhood to the north of the course 
are located almost entirely within the Neuse River’s 100-year 
floodplain, with many buildings’ first floor elevations (FFE) 
well below the base flood elevation (BFE). In addition to the 
flood hazard from the Neuse River, the neighborhood also 
experiences frequent, nuisance pluvial flooding during 

smaller, more frequent rainfall events. This flooding is 
likely due to the natural drainage pathways being filled 
when the golf course was constructed, and the presence of 
undersized (and underperforming) infrastructure in place of 
the natural drainage pathways that would otherwise exist 
throughout the golf course.

The main drainage culverts (two 30” RCP; Photo ‘C’) at the 
north end of the course which serve as the only outlet for 
stormwater leaving the Mina Weil Neighborhood, are designed 
to only convey about 80% of the 2-year peak flood discharge. 
However, the pipes are partially filled with sediment and 
backwatered, so the actual capacity is substantially lower. 
Moving downstream, near the middle of the golf course, 
the main drainage pipe (42” RCP; Photos ‘A’ and ‘D’) can only 
convey about 50% of the 2-year peak flood discharge.

At the furthest downstream portion of the golf course, there 
is a weir along the main drainage ditch that partially blocks 
the outlet culvert, and the culvert at Dixie Trail is also 

undersized relative to a 2-year peak flood discharge. During 
rainfall events, water backs up in the golf course culverts 
and limits drainage from the connected, upstream storm 
sewer network in the neighborhood. 

Proposed Restoration Approach. The proposed restoration 
approach calls for re-establishing historical drainage

patterns to the greatest extent possible, as this will allow for 
water to flow from the upstream residential neighborhood 
more quickly and move downstream. Specifically: i) the 
existing main culverts and drainage ditch through the 
center of the golf course will be removed and replaced with 
a linear wetland / floodplain feature with a low flow channel; 
ii) additional linear wetlands and vegetated swales will be 
incorporated to improve drainage from the neighborhood 
streets to the golf course; iii) the culvert at Graham Street 
will be lowered; iv) the culvert at Dixie Trail will be enlarged; 
and v) the abandoned walking path at the downstream end 
of the golf course (near Hole 8) will be removed.
 
This approach is targeted at smaller rainfall events that 
cause nuisance flooding (e.g., 2-, 5-, and 10-year flood 
return periods). For larger events where the flooding source 
is directly from the Neuse River (or backwater conditions 
from the Neuse River that prevent drainage), restoration 
activities on the golf course will have negligible impact on 
peak flood levels. 

The main drainage culverts throughout the golf course are 
not able to convey the peak discharge volumes from even a 
2-year flood event, which causes nuisance pluvial flooding 
during smaller, more frequent rainfall events in the residential 
neighborhood north of the golf course.

EXISTING CONDITION + PROPOSED RESTORATION APPROACH

PROPOSED RESTORATION AREA PROPOSED RESTORATION AREA

83

A

DCB

PHOTO

PHOTOPHOTOPHOTO

++

++

++

++

EXISTING: FIELD DRAIN

EXISTING: FAIRWAY (HOLE 9)

EXISTING: FILL MATERIAL

EXISTING: EXPOSED PIPE

Photos: CDDL, Doll, B., and Kurki-Fox, J. (2023).



60
65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

TIME (hours)

W
AT

ER
 S

UR
FA

CE
 E

LE
VA

TI
ON

 (f
ee

t)

12 18 24 30 36 42 48

EXISTING: 14 HOURS ABOVE GRAHAM 
STREET INLET ELEVATION (69.5 FT)

++

++EXISTING: 10-YR FLOOD

PROPOSED: 10-YR FLOOD

SUMMARY OF METHODS + RESULTS
To evaluate the impacts of the proposed restoration 
approach, a HEC-RAS 2D rain-on-grid model was used. The 
topography data for the model was based on LiDAR digital

elevation model (DEM) elevations (NCEM, 2018) and on-
site survey data collected with an RTK device. Analyzing 
model results in peak Water Surface Elevation (WSE) at the 
neighborhood’s storm sewer outlet (to the golf course main 

drainage ditch) showed the existing WSE for the 2- to 10-year 
rainfall return period is above the elevation of the stormwater 
grate inlets along the neighborhood streets, causing water to

back up in streets and properties. By implementing the 
restoration, the peak WSE at the neighborhood’s main 
drainage outlet could be lowered by 2- to 2.5-feet during the 
2- to 10-year rainfall return period.

Modeling of the proposed restoration scheme shows a reduction of 
peak Water Surface Elevation (WSE) at the reference street drainage 
inlet by 2.0 - 2.5-feet during smaller storm events (e.g., 10-year flood), 
resulting in greater roadway accessibility and protection of private 
property upstream of the Municipal Golf Course. 

LINEAR WETLAND ‘B’

R.O.W. MODIFICATIONS
+ CULVERTS / INLETS / CURB CUTS

++
BRIDGE CROSSINGS

+ (7) TOTAL: ALONG EX. CART PATH

++ LINEAR WETLAND ‘A’

+ ‘MAIN STEM’ (2,970 ln ft)

+ ‘TRIBUTARY’ (1,120 ln ft)

+ GRAHAM STREET

++
11

18

1

9

8

17

14

12

HOLE

HOLE

DIXIE TRAIL

WINSLOW CIRCLE

HOLE

HOLE

HOLE

HOLE

HOLE

HOLE

S.
 J

OH
N 

ST
.

LINEAR WETLAND ‘B’

500 ftNORTH

REFERENCE INLET ELEVATION

85



PROJECT FEATURES + BENEFITS
The current preliminary schematic plans, used as the 
basis for conceptual-level hydraulic modeling and initial 
“phase one” scoping, include the following quantity 
summaries for each landscape feature:

+ Total Wetland Area: 11.43 acres
+ Total Sod Area (Fairways): 4.28 acres
+ Total Seed Area (Driving Range): 0.88 acres
+ Total Tree Removal: 2.38 acres
+ Concrete Cart Path: 190 linear feet

+ Bridge Crossings: 7 units (ranging from 70 linear feet to 
   150 linear feet in length; with minimum spans over 
   wetland channels typically 30 feet)

+ Right-of-Way Modifications: 40 linear feet of curb cut 
   at Winslow Circle; one (1) lowered inlet at Graham Street; 
   and one (1) upgraded culvert at Dixie Trail.

While the primary, targeted benefits of implementing 
this mix of “green” and “gray” infrastructure is intended 

to reduce nuisance flooding, enhance water quality, and 
enrich newly established wildlife habitat, secondary 
benefits of the project include: 

+ Environmental education opportunities for users of the 
   golf course and/or through facilitated events by the City 
   Parks and Recreation Department; 

+ Reductions in labor demands (i.e., irrigation and 
   mowing) for golf course staff; and

+ Enhanced aesthetic value for property owners 
   surrounding the golf course.

However, similar to the Big Ditch proposal, this project is 
located in a neighborhood with elevated environmental 
justice concerns - which historically, has translated to 
a lack of external investment in capital improvement 
projects of the scale or containing the potential benefits 
as being proposed at the Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course. 
Offering a slight deviation from the FEMA definition of 

99

IMAGE: Existing buried channel condition at the Municipal Golf Course.



PROJECT FEATURES + BENEFITS (cont’d)
“disadvantaged community,” this project is located within 
a census tract and subwatershed that satisfy the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) definitions of 
“overburdened” and “underserved” communities. Specific 
data to support these classifications include:

+ Median Household Income: $38,186 (below the NC figure
of: $60,516; U.S. Census Bureau, 2021)

+ Minority Population: 96.0% (higher than the NC figure

   of: 33.1%; U.S. Census Bureau, 2021)

+ Environmental Risks: 80.7% of the land area in this
census tract is within the mapped 100-year floodplain of
the Neuse River (FEMA, 2020).

Collectively, the overlap of economic, racial, and 
geographic factors illustrate the need for external 
infusions of project capital to support the proposed scope 
of work.

101

IMAGE: Proposed restoration condition at the Municipal Golf Course.

“Similar to the Big Ditch proposal, this project is located in a 
neighborhood with elevated environmental justice concerns - which 
historically, has translated to a lack of external investment in capital 
improvement projects of the scale or containing the potential 
benefits as being proposed at the Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course.” 



SCOPING: FLOOD MITIGATION + FEASIBILITY STUDY

WASTEWATER
TREATMENT PLANT

103

         
        
The need for a flood mitigation and feasibility study for the 

WWTP has been determined as an appropriate next step 

to better understand potential mitigation alternatives and 

their associated trade-offs. As part of this report, major 

scope elements required of a potential flood mitigation 

study for the WWTP have been identified, including the: i) 

development of a preliminary opinion of consultant fee ranges; 

ii) identification of major qualifications and criteria for selecting

prospective consultants; and iii) integration of scope, fee,

qualifications, and selection criteria into a draft Request for

Qualifications (RFQ) solicitation.



GOLDSBORO COMMUNITY FLOODPRINT: OCTOBER 2023

www.coastaldynamicsdesignlab.com

GOLDSBORO 
COMMUNITY

FLOODPRINT
BIG DITCH + MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSE + WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Purpose of the Project. The City of Goldsboro regularly 
experiences flooding from routine flood events. Aside 
from the historic levels of flooding experienced during 
Hurricanes Matthew (2016) and Florence (2018), more 
frequent and severe flooding has become an ongoing, 
cyclical issue in neighborhoods that border adjacent 
swamps, wetlands, and tributaries. 

For many homes and businesses built in the floodplain, the 
increasing frequency and severity of precipitation events 
is being exacerbated by public infrastructure that is either 
undersized or outdated for present-day standards (and 
projected future conditions).

While the City and State have been partnering to serve 
Goldsboro residents through various public utility and 
hazard mitigation efforts (e.g., two (2) NCDEQ Asset and 
Inventory Assessment grants; NCORR’s Strategic Buyout 
Zone program), there still remain broad portions of the 
City that remain vulnerable to future flood losses. The 
Goldsboro Community Floodprint aims to bolster these 
efforts through planning and design recommendations 
that reduce flood risk, improve public safety, and 
enhance long-term environmental function within 
historically flood-prone areas.

This study used an environmental and community planning 
approach referred to as “floodprinting,” which specifically 
highlights the use of place-based approaches as a 
response to natural hazards and climate change. As part 
of the Goldsboro Community Floodprint, discrete project 
phases and scope items included: inventory and analysis, 
public outreach and engagement, hydraulic modeling, 
schematic planning and design, three-dimensional 
modeling, photorealistic rendering, benefit-cost analysis, 
and grant-writing.

Created over a 16-month project period, the resulting 
document is meant to both provide direction regarding 

feasible and sustainable practices within the identified 
focus areas, while also providing actionable collateral 
that can be used to attract external resources (e.g., 
competitive grants) towards these projects.

An abbreviated summary of the proposed projects 
included in the Goldsboro Community Floodprint include:

Big Ditch: Stream Restoration + Infrastructure 
Improvements. Large sections of Big Ditch have been 
straightened and armored, with many segments of 
the stream channel confined to either rectangular or 
trapezoidal concrete channels. A functioning floodplain 
no longer exists for most of the stream, which results 
in a wide range of social, environmental, and economic 
impacts that cascade through the community.

This project will: i) restore approximately 2,300 linear feet 
of stream; ii) upgrade three (3) culvert/bridge conditions; 
and iii) create a “floodplain park” within the Elmwood 
Terrace community that borders Big Ditch.

Hydraulic modeling of the proposed scope of work indicates 
that these improvements will reduce flood-related damages 
throughout the project area. Specifically, (14) single-family 
residential units, (63) multi-family residential units, and 
(3) public/private entities will benefit from reductions
in projected flood heights, and, two (2) of the three (3)
road crossings will be able to withstand flood conditions
equivalent to modeled 100- and 500-year flood events.

Municipal Golf Course: Low Flow Wetlands. Prior to the 
construction of the Municipal Golf Course in 1941, the course 
and surrounding residential areas were used primarily for 
agricultural purposes - containing an intricate network of 
ditches and channels that served as a drainage system 
for croplands. In many cases, however, these important 
drainage systems have been heavily modified, filled in, 
or covered up, and now contribute to nuisance flooding 

observed throughout the golf course, along surrounding 
neighborhood streets, and within residential properties 
during smaller, more frequent storm events.

The proposed intervention calls for daylighting, widening, 
and vegetating two (2) previously buried drainage channels 
within the golf course property. The connected chain 
of linear wetlands, when combined with infrastructure 
improvements at inlet and outlet locations of the site, 
will: i) reduce nuisance flooding in the residential 
neighborhood north of the golf course; ii) improve 
drainage within the golf course; iii) enhance water quality 
prior to infiltrating the ground or discharging south of 
the golf course; and iv) enrich over 11.4 acres of newly 
established wildlife habitat at a property located within 
the Neuse River floodplain.

Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP): Project Scoping 
for a Flood Mitigation + Feasibility Study. The WWTP 
is a public infrastructure facility operated by the City 
of Goldsboro which treats raw waste from the City, 
its residents, and Seymour Johnson Air Force Base 
(SJAFB). However, the WWTP’s location within the Neuse 
River floodplain presents vulnerable conditions during 
hurricanes and other large-scale flooding events, as the 
elements needed to ensure the ongoing operation of 
wastewater treatment systems become susceptible to 
damages, and potentially, system failure. An incidental 
wastewater discharge to surface waters would result in 
a significant environmental hazard affecting people, the 
environment, and military operations.

The need for a flood mitigation and feasibility study has 
been determined as an appropriate next step to better 
understand potential mitigation alternatives and their 
associated trade-offs. As part of this report, major scope 
elements required of a potential flood mitigation study 
for the WWTP have been identified, including the: i) 
development of a preliminary opinion of consultant fee 

ranges; ii) identification of major qualifications and criteria 
for selecting prospective consultants; and iii) integration of 
scope, fee, qualifications, and selection criteria into a draft 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) solicitation.

A summary of the final report is scheduled to be presented 
to Goldsboro’s City Council on November 6, 2023, where 
a vote to support the recommendations within the 
Goldsboro Community Floodprint will be held at the 
conclusion of the presentation. 

05



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
OFFICE OF RECOVERY AND RESILIENCY

NCORR is a division of the NC Department of Public Safety.

Strategic Buyout Program Update 
Goldsboro

November 2023
Maggie Battaglin
Director of Mitigation

8/15/2022 1

w.s. item c



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
OFFICE OF RECOVERY AND RESILIENCY

8/15/2022 2

Agenda • Strategic Buyout Program Benefits

• Program Overview

• Status of Goldsboro Program

• Next Steps 

• Questions



Strategic Buyout Program 
Benefits



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
OFFICE OF RECOVERY AND RESILIENCY

The Strategic Buyout Program is a 
voluntary program that works to 
permanently reduce the risk to life 
and property of North Carolinians by 
purchasing storm impacted and 
at-risk properties. These properties 
are afterward owned by the local 
government and their structures 
demolished, with the land held as 
open space in perpetuity.

8/15/2022 4

Voluntary  

Locally Collaborative

Permanently Reduces Risk

Increases Community Resilience 

Strategic Buyout Program



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
OFFICE OF RECOVERY AND RESILIENCY

Program Benefits

Reduce risk to life 
and property of 

North Carolinians

Buyouts are a 
permanently mitigative 
risk reduction strategy. 

Buyout reduces the 
need for emergency 

services during a 
weather event. 

Preserve 
community 

character and tax 
base

This is achieved through 
spatially targeted 

buyouts and monetary 
incentives that reward 
people for staying in 

their county. 

Support community 
planning and 

resiliency

Buyouts are most 
effective when 
integrated into 

community resilience 
planning. The land once 
acquired can be used to 

support nature-based 
flooding solutions. 

Support high need 
areas

SBP targets areas that 
are at least 40% low-to-
moderate income and 
have demonstrated 

flood risk

11/2/2023 5



Strategic Buyout Program 
Overview



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
OFFICE OF RECOVERY AND RESILIENCY

Program Administration

• Funded by Community Development Block Grant – Mitigation (CDBG-MIT) 
grant

• NCORR entered into a cooperative agreement with Goldsboro in March 2020.
• NCORR is responsible for providing case management services, completing inspections, 

providing closing attorneys, demolishing the structure, clearing the site, and leaving it graded 
and seeded. 

• Goldsboro agreed to take properties purchased by the program and will be responsible for 
ongoing maintenance of the sites. 

• Participating properties must comply with federal requirements to remain as 
open space in perpetuity

8/15/2022 7



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
OFFICE OF RECOVERY AND RESILIENCY

At a high level, the Strategic 
Buyout process follows the 8 
steps shown here.

Significant applicant 
involvement ends in Step 5. 

Application Process



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
OFFICE OF RECOVERY AND RESILIENCY

Offer Overview

SBP appraisers 
determine initial 

offer price based on 
fair market value

All property owners 
receive an initial 

offer package

All owners are 
presented with the 

opportunity to 
accept or reject the 

offer 

If offer is 
unanimously 

accepted by owners' 
property proceeds to 

closing 

If offer is rejected by 
any one of the 

owners, the program 
will make no further 
attempt to acquire 

the property 



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
OFFICE OF RECOVERY AND RESILIENCY

Buyout Incentives 

Risk Reduction 
Incentive

$10,000 if participant 
moves to an area of 
reduced risk in the 

same county 

$5,000 if participant 
moves to an area of 
reduced risk in NC  

Not available for 
participants who 

relocate out of NC or 
move to an area of 

similar or greater flood 
risk



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
OFFICE OF RECOVERY AND RESILIENCY

Buyout Incentives 

Affordability Incentives

Affordable Rental: Up 
to $17,000 to 

supplement rent for 
one year

Affordable 
Homeownership: 
Contribution to 

purchase price; varies 
by county ($150,000) 

Matching Down 
Payment: Up to 

$50,000



Status of Goldsboro 
Strategic Buyout Program



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
OFFICE OF RECOVERY AND RESILIENCY

11/2/2023 13



Questions



FY2022-23 FINANCIAL UPDATE

Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director

November 6, 2023

w.s. item d



General Fund – Collections
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

2

   

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Incr/(Decr over 

Prior Year

% 
Incr/(Dec

r)
Taxes 18,200,832$      18,009,270$   191,562$           1.1%

Sales Tax 11,847,628        11,312,744     534,884              4.7%

Refuse 4,214,396           3,840,460        373,936              9.7%

Shared Services 3,328,996           3,207,840        121,156              3.8%

Utility Franchise 2,733,560           2,621,684        111,876              4.3%

Other Federal & State Rev. 1,218,367           1,919,146        (700,779)            -36.5%

Debt 896,500               3,268,981        (2,372,481)         -72.6%

Powell Bill 1,003,799           1,024,644        (20,845)               -2.0%

Golf 574,204               634,191           (59,987)               -9.5%

Permits 499,936               417,336           82,600                19.8%

Paramount 524,335               446,305           78,030                17.5%

Interest 405,737               13,608              392,129              2881.6%

Other Revenues 1,018,791           1,335,048        (316,257)            -23.7%

Total 46,467,081$      48,051,257$   (1,584,176)$      



General Fund Collections
   FY 2022-23 Budget to Actual

3

      

Adjusted Actual YTD%
Budget Collections % of Budget

Taxes 17,989,167$        18,200,832$         101.18%
Licenses & Permits 402,275                 499,936                 124.28%
Revenues Other Agencies:

Local Option Tax 11,373,488           11,847,628           104.17%
Utility Franchise Tax 2,077,573             2,733,560              131.57%
ABC Revenues 170,000                 195,270                 114.86%
Beer & Wine Taxes 145,000                 152,844                 105.41%
Powell Bill 1,001,400             1,003,799              100.24%
Other Agency Revenues 1,604,905             870,253                 54.22%

Service Fees from UF 3,328,996             3,328,996              100.00%
Charges for Services 6,184,079             5,993,114              96.91%
Capital Returns 1,120,277             1,443,069              128.81%
Other Revenue 201,164                 197,780                 98.32%
Fund Balance Appropriated 1,194,863             -                           0.00%
Total General Fund Revenues 46,793,187           46,467,081           99.30%



Stormwater Fund – Collections
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

and
Budget to Actual FY2022-23

4

Adjusted Actual YTD%
Budget Collections Collections

Stormwater Fee 1,601,528$               1,616,953$            100.96%
Other Revenues 362,200                     418,894                  115.65%
Appropriated Fund Balance 284,395                     -                                0.00%
Stormwater Fund Totals 2,248,123$               2,035,847$            90.56%

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Incr/(Decr 
over Prior 

Year
Stormwater Fee $1,616,953 $1,621,116 ($4,163)
Loan Proceeds 365,000         267,551         $97,449
Other Revenues 53,894            13,165            $40,729
Total $2,035,847 $1,901,832 $134,015



Utility Fund – Collections
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

5

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Incr/(Decr) over 

Prior Year
% Incr/ 
(Decr)

Current Sewer 10,102,987$      9,266,384$         836,603$             9.0%
Current Water 8,931,860          7,570,213           1,361,647            18.0%
Other Charges for Services 1,425,389          1,506,861           (81,472)               -5.4%
Transfers In 975,289             292,949              682,340               232.9%
Miscellaneous 1,162,145          774,987              387,158               50.0%
Late Payment Fees 430,385             399,065              31,320                 7.8%
Other Federal & State Rev. 428,036             250,125              177,911               71.1%
Other Capital Returns 104,088             115,000              (10,912)               -9.5%
Compost Fees 74,390               50,861                23,529                 46.3%
Tap Fees 54,350               47,914                6,436                   13.4%
Investment Earnings 324,919             16,330                308,589               1889.7%
Other Revenues -                          
Total 24,013,838$      20,290,689$       3,723,149$          



Utility Fund Collections
FY 2022-23 Budget to Actual

6

Budget Collections Collections
Charges for Services:

Current Water Charges 9,000,000$           8,931,860$           99.24%
UF-SJAFB 1,400,000             1,416,879             101.21%
Current Sewer Charges 11,400,000           10,102,987           88.62%
Late Payment/Svc. Fees 355,000                 430,385                 121.24%
Applied Deposits 45,000                   (2,902)                    -6.45%
Reconnections Fees 6,700                      8,554                      127.67%
Water/Sewer Taps 41,000                   54,350                   132.56%
Compost Revenues 51,000                   74,389                   145.86%
BFP Fees/Insufficient Ck Penalty 2,000                      1,694                      84.69%

Total Charges 22,300,700$         21,018,196$         94.25%

Capital Returns & Misc. Revenue
Investment Earnings 23,800$                 324,919$               1365.21%
Other Misc. Revenue 133,428                 104,088                 78.01%

Total Capital Returns 157,228$               429,007$               272.86%
Other Revenues 1,937,326             2,566,635             132.48%
Appropriated Fund Balance 514,412                 -                               0.00%
Utility Fund Revenue Totals 24,909,666$         24,013,838$         96.40%



Downtown MSD & 
Occupancy Tax Collections 

Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

7

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Incr/(Decr) 

over Prior Year % Incr /Decr
Downtown MSD
Taxes 102,925$            97,883$               5,042$                 5.2%
Investment Earnings 2,819                   127                       2,692                   2119.7%
Other Revenues
Total 105,744$            98,010$               7,734$                 

Occupancy Tax
Occupancy Tax Collections 1,032,070$         937,143$            94,927$               10.1%
Wayne Co. Reimb.  per agrmt. 196,173               170,797               25,376                 14.9%
Investment Earnings/Misc. Rev. 7,680                   561                       7,119                   1269.0%
Other Revenues 6,779                   7,823                   (1,044)                  -13.3%
Total 1,242,702$         1,116,324$         126,378$            



Downtown MSD & 
Occupancy Tax Collections

FY 2022-23 Budget to Actual

8

Adjusted Actual YTD%
Budget Collections Collections

Downtown MSD
Taxes 96,387$             102,925$         106.78%
Investments/Misc. 20,632               2,819               13.66%
      Total 117,019$           105,744$         90.36%

Occupancy Tax
Occupancy Tax - Civic Ctr. 797,000$           825,656$         103.60%
Occupancy Tax - T & T 213,000             206,414           96.91%
County of Wayne Occ Tx 186,150             196,172           105.38%
Other Revenues 14,948               14,460             96.74%
Appropriated Fund Balance -                     -                  0.00%
      Total 1,211,098$        1,242,702$      102.61%



Actual Collections 
Comparison Actual Current & Prior (unaudited)

9

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Incr/(Decr) 

over Prior Year

General Fund 46,467,081$        48,051,257$        (1,584,176)$     

Utility Fund 24,013,838          20,290,689          3,723,149        

Downtown Development 105,744               98,010                 7,734               

Occupancy Tax 1,242,702            1,116,324            126,378           
-                   

Stormwater Fund 2,035,847            1,901,832            134,015           

Total 73,865,212$        71,458,112$        2,407,100$      



Summary – 
FY2022-23 Budget to Actual Expenditures 

10

   

Budget Actual
Under/(Over) 

Budget
% Under/ 

(Over)
General Fund 46,793,187$                 42,455,563$           4,337,624$             9.3%
Utility Fund 24,909,666                   17,533,708             7,375,958               29.6%
Stormwater Fund 2,248,123                     1,902,455               345,668                  15.4%
Downtown MSD Fund 117,019                        86,056                    30,963                    26.5%
Occupancy Tax Fund 1,211,098                     1,174,653               36,445                    3.0%
Total 75,279,093$                 63,152,435$           12,126,658$           



Fund Balance Appropriations
    FY 2022-23

11

General Fund        $ 1,194,863 
 PO rollover $1.183M

Utility Fund          $    514,412
 PO rollover $514K

Downtown MSD                   $      20,632    
 PO rollover $20K

Occupancy Tax Fund           $                0 
 None

Stormwater Fund        $   284,395
 PO rollover $63K, CDM Smith $221K  _________
Total          $2,014,302



FY2022-23 Net Operating Results
(Modified Accrual - unaudited)

12

   

Budget Actual
Under/(Over) 

Budget
General Fund

Revenues 46,793,187$          46,467,081$          326,106$                
Expenditures 46,793,187            42,455,563            4,337,624               

General Fund - Net -$                         4,011,518$            4,011,518$            
Util ity Fund

Revenues 24,909,666$          24,013,838$          895,828$                
Expenditures 24,909,666            17,533,708            7,375,958               

Util ity Fund - Net -$                         6,480,130$            6,480,130$            
Stormwater Fund

Revenues 2,248,123$            2,035,847$            212,276$                
Expenditures 2,248,123               1,902,455               345,668                  

Stormwater Fund - Net -$                         133,392$                133,392$                
Downtown MSD Fund

Revenues 117,019$                105,744$                11,275$                  
Expenditures 117,019                  86,056                    30,963                    

Downtown MSD Fund - Net -$                         19,688$                  19,688$                  
Occupancy Tax Fund

Revenues 1,211,098$            1,242,702$            (31,604)$                 
Expenditures 1,211,098               1,174,653               36,445                    

Occupancy Tax Fund - Net -$                         68,049$                  68,049$                  

Total - Net Change all  Funds -$                         10,712,777$          10,712,777$          



Questions? 



ew.s.





Goldsboro Union 
Station Update
2023

Image of GUS in 2016



Timeline
1906 – 1909: Goldsboro Union Station was constructed 
1909: GUS was open to the public with great fanfare.  The 

entire City shut down to celebrate
 Built to accommodate the Atlantic Coast Line, 

Norfolk Southern and Southern Railway
1909 – 1968:  GUS operated both passenger rail and freight rail
1914: Goldsboro won an important decision in the U.S. 

Supreme Court enabling them to enforce its rights 
in the regulation of trains, shifting the rail line from 
Center Street

1968: Passenger rail service ended along rail line and GUS 
was decommissioned 

1972: Building & Property were bought by Arthur Perry of 
Goldsboro Builder’s

1977: GUS was placed on the National Register of Historic 
Places

Colorized photo of GUS in early 1900s

Image of GUS, passenger rail line and canopy in early 1900s



Timeline
1999: NCDOT conducted an Eastern Rail Passenger Study 

(ERPS) to Explore Options for a Passenger Rail Service 
Connecting Raleigh to Wilmington

2005: A Redo of the ERPS was done without political influence 
and solid data resulting in a favored Goldsboro route

2007: NCDOT acquired GUS and Goldsboro and entered into 
an MOU to formulate a partnership to Restore & Reuse 
it

2007-08: NCDOT utilized grant money to conduct an 
environmental study, a conditions assessment and 
conduct initial stabilization work

2009:  NCDOT conveyed GUS and its property to Goldsboro 
under terms of MOU 

 Goldsboro celebrated GUS’s 100th Birthday with a crowd 
of several hundred and a flag raising ceremony

2010: The Goldsboro/NCDOT partnership resulted in FHWA 
grant to conduct more Environmental Studies, select 
Demolition of Ancillary Buildings on Site and develop 
construction plans for its restoration and reuse.

Select, non-historic ancillary buildings demolition, 2008

2009, Goldsboro celebrates GUS’s 100th Birthday



Poster created by NCDOT to illustrate and educate intent of GUS as impetus for multi-modal transportation hub. 



Timeline
2010: GWTA conducted a long, and short-range transit study 

that resulted in gained confidence to explore a new hub
2011: GWTA, the City, County, FTA and NCDOT supported the 

new hub’s location at GUS; a conceptual plan was 
developed.  City funded with remaining grant money 
received in 2009

2012: Construction plans for GWTA’s new Transit Hub were 
developed

2013: City included the development of GWTA’s Hub project, 
and the restoration of Union Station as a multi-modal 
transportation hub, in their 2013 USDOT TIGER grant 
application along with three blocks of Center Street 
Streetscape and two blocks of W. Walnut Street.

 All were awarded except for GUS
2014-15:  GWTA’s transit facility was constructed and celebrated 

with federal, state and local partners.
 GUS’s parking lot, grounds, supporting underground 

infrastructure, and light poles were constructed/installed

Rendering of Multi-Modal Transportation Hub Vision



Timeline

2016: Council authorized Mayor to revise 
Scope & Schedule of 2009 MOU to 
close out project with FHWA allowing 
us to expend remaining balance of 
grant at $120,000 that required 
NCDOT to contribute $120,000 and 
the City $15,000.

 These funds supported replacement 
of GUS’s sump pump, fencing 
installation, light pole banners and 
completion of paving for GUS drive.

2018: NCDOT & the City equally contributed 
to replace the roof, as approved by 
SHPO, on a portion of the building.

2019: Roof construction was completed for 
the portions funding allowed. 

Interior as of approximately 2019



Timeline
2023: Eastern Carolina Rail, a advocacy committee from connecting 

Raleigh to Wilmington forms and announces renewed interest and 
vigor to develop passenger rail line

 NCDOT Passenger Rail employees visit GUS
 Federal Rail Administration (FRA) announces $36B of funds to 

study state’s preferred passenger rail routes to further passenger 
rail expansions to validate.  Purpose is to prioritize by moving some 
forward for investment to develop or exclude.

 NCDOT Passenger Rail employees visit GUS
 *GUS is in dire need of re-stabilization for a restoration and reuse 

opportunity

 A January 2023 GUS appraisal places current value of  -$791,000.

 A state appropriation is given to Goldsboro due to several project 
request, GUS included

 A local advocacy committee, Saving Union Station, formed to 
support the historical landmark that GUS is, for its future cultural 
and economic impacts

 Pictures of Current State as of October 31, 2023



NCDOT Passenger Rail Routes Being Considered

From NCDOT Presentation of 10/17/2023



Timeline

Pictures of Current State as of October 31, 2023



Funding Commitments to Date
Summary
GUS Building:    Related Streetscape (Walnut St.)
 USDOT/FHWA: $800,000 USDOT/TIGER:  $2,700,000
 NCDOT:   $1,438,293 COG:   $914,697
 COG:  $478,293 
  

GUS/GWTA Property:
 USDOT:  $1,200,000
 COG:  $400,000

GWTA:
 USDOT/FTA:  $1,335,660   
 USDOT/TIGER: $1,575,000 
 NCDOT:  $133,560
 COG:  $825,000
 County:  $263,424
 
 

Architect of GUS construction plans gives tour and 
shares vision with Girl Scout Troop, 2010



Forecasted Costs – Do Nothing Scenario

The current demolition cost is estimated at $200,000 to 
$300,000 

 The loss of tax revenue with an estimated valuation of 
$5M:  County -  $37,125/year,  City - $36,500/year

 The cost of a non-productive property is valued at 
$8.25/sq. ft. per year = $99,925 to the business 
community

 The average cost to maintain a vacant 3 acre (half of site – 
excluding GWTA) property is estimated at $15,000/year at 
$289/week including labor and materials/equipment

 The potential loss of federal and state partnerships to 
develop passenger rail through, and to, Goldsboro

 Loss of accessible, affordable mobility and connectivity 
for Wayne County citizens 2010 Representative G.K. Butterfield Press 

Conference Announcing Funding & Support



Top Left:  Salisbury Station
Top Right:  Moving Hamlet’s Station Prior to Restoration
Bottom:  Hamlet After Restoration

Questions?



Funding Commitments to Date
Source  Purpose    Amount  Year 

Goldsboro Union Station Company Construct GUS    $72,024  1906-09

NCDOT (State funds) GUS Acquisition, Stabilization, Environmental $1,080,000 2007

City of Goldsboro (COG) GUS: Same/Match   $120,000  2008

Federal Highway Admin.  (FHWA) GUS:  Planning/Environmental/Design $800,000  2010

NCDOT  GUS:  Same/Match   $100,000  2010

COG  GUS:  Same/Match   $100,000  2010

Federal Transit Admin. (FTA) GWTA at GUS:  Design Services/Construction $855,000  2011

NCDOT  GWTA at GUS:  Same/Match  $85,500  2011

GWTA (60% COG/40% County) GWTA at GUS:  Same/Match  $85,500  2011

FTA  GWTA at GUS: Design/Construction  $480,660  2011-12

GWTA (60% COG/40% County) GWTA at GUS:  Same/Match  $48,060  2011-12

NCDOT  GWTA at GUS:  Same/Match  $48,060  2011-12
 



Funding Commitments to Date
Source  Purpose     Amount  Year 

USDOT (TIGER) GUS & GWTA:  Site Improvements  $1,200,000 2013-15

COG (TIGER Match) GUS & GWTA:  Site Improvements  $400,000  2013-15

USDOT (TIGER) GUS & GWTA:  Related Streetscape (Walnut St)  $2,700,000 2013-15 

COG (TIGER Match) GUS & GWTA:  Related Streetscape (Walnut St)  $914,697  2013-2015

USDOT (TIGER) GWTA at GUS:  GWTA Transit Ctr. Construction $1,575,000 2013-2015

COG/County (TIGER Match, 60/40) GWTA at GUS:  GWTA Transit Ctr. Construction $525,000  2013-2015

COG  GWTA at GUS:  Construction Project Mgt. $100,000  2014

COG  GWTA at GUS:  TIGER V Project Contingency Exp. $330,000  2015

NCDOT  GUS:  Roof Replacement   $258,293  2018-19

COG  GUS:  Roof Replacement   $258,293  2018-19



1 of 14 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
OCTOBER 2, 2023 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 
214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on October 2, 2023.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV 
Councilman Greg Batts 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney  
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

 Adoption of the Agenda. City Manager Salmon requested the addition of an HVAC update. Mayor Ham requested the 
addition of Closed Session to discuss Economic Development and Potential Litigation. City Clerk Getz asked to add the 
Veterans and Patriots Coalition discussion. Upon motion of Councilwoman Jones, seconded by Councilman Broadaway and 
unanimously carried, Council adopted the amended agenda.  

New Business. 
Downtown Goldsboro Development Corporation Update. Doug McGrath, Outgoing President, Grayson Hussey, 

Incoming President and Erin Fonseca, Downtown Development Director shared the following presentation:  

Downtown Goldsboro Development Corpora�on
City Counci l  Update 10.2.23

Item A1



2 of 14 
 

 

 

 

 
Mayor Ham thanked Mr. McGrath for his service to Goldsboro. Ms. Fonseca invited Council to the Downtown Annual 
Dinner.  

 
Public Utilities Capital Projects Update. Bert Sherman, Public Utilities Director shared the following presentation:  

 

Public U�li�es Capital Projects Update

Bert Sherman
Public U�li�es

10/02/2023



3 of 14 
 

 

 

 
 
Mayor Ham shared the city is doing things to improve water and sewer.  

 
Authorization to Purchase Eight 2024 Dodge Durango Pursuit Vehicles. The item was presented by Mike West, 

Police Chief.  
 
The Goldsboro Police Department was approved $384,000.00 to purchase eight Chevy Tahoe’s in the FY23-24 Budget.  
There is no estimated timeline for when the Tahoe’s could be ordered, and no guarantee that what we order would be 
available. Law Enforcement agencies across the nation continue to be delayed with obtaining price quotes on 2024 Chevy 
Tahoe’s through the statewide procurement pricing program.  The low supply of patrol cars has caused law enforcement 
agencies to continue experiencing purchase delays.  The recent United Auto Workers strike has created a heightened concern 
for the purchase of law enforcement vehicles.   

 
NC General Statute 143-129 establishes the State bidding requirements for purchase of apparatus, supplies, materials, or 
equipment. Subsection (e)(9) grants an exception to the bidding requirements for purchases made from contracts established 
by the State. 

 
The Goldsboro Police Department is unable to obtain a price quote on 2024 Chevy Tahoe’s from the pre-authorized 
Procurement Programs due to future production demands being uncertain.  Performance Automotive is an approved 
Procurement Program Dealer who has stated they have eight 2024 Dodge Durango Pursuit vehicles on order.   

 
It was recommended that Council authorize the purchase of eight 2024 Dodge Durango Pursuit Vehicles, instead of eight 
2024 Chevy Tahoe’s, through the North Carolina Statewide Government Pricing Program.  Total purchase price per vehicle 
is $45,928.32, which includes the 10% loan fee, road tax, title, and registration plate.  The total purchase price including the 
loan fee, road tax, title, and registration plates for eight Dodge Durango’s is $367,426.56.   
 
Council discussed the item.  
 
Councilman Broadaway made a motion to authorize the Police Department to purchase 8 Dodge Durango’s. The motion was 
seconded by Councilman Batts and unanimously carried.  
 

Veterans and Patriots Coalition. Eric Busse, Veterans and Patriots Coalition President requested Council waive the 
$200.00 application fee to hold the Veterans Day parade downtown on November 11, 2023.  
 



4 of 14 
 

Councilman Broadaway made a motion to waive the $200.00 fee for the Patriots Coalition. The motion was seconded by 
Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.  

 
HVAC Update. Scott Williams, Information Technology Director, shared the following: The chiller that runs the air 

conditioner for Historic City Hall and City Hall Addition was purchased in 2004 and has been in operation continuously 
since then and is an older and outdated unit. We looked at replacing the two circuit boards that operate the two legs of the 
unit, both of which have failed, along with other parts and we cannot get all the parts we need to be able to fix it at this point. 
The lead time on a new chiller is about eight months. The city manager has authorized the rental installation of a portable 
chiller unit which should be here tomorrow morning and should be operational by Wednesday. That unit will be in place until 
we can go through the bidding process to get another one ordered.  We will be coming back to you with the paperwork on 
that.  

 
City Manager Salmon shared we will have a bill coming forward at the next meeting.  
 
Mr. Williams shared we don't know exact pricing, maybe somewhere around $400,000 or so. The rental will be around 
$160,0000 with rental fees and things. 

 
Consent Agenda Review. Items E - Q on the consent agenda were reviewed. Further discussion included the 

following: 
 

Item J. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 305 Pearson Street 
to Melissa Bynum Gill. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Mathews made a motion to accept the initial bid and authorize Finance to advertise for upset bids. 

The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried. 
 
Item K.  Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 717 Devereaux 

Street. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 
 
Councilman Batts made a motion to accept the initial bid by Terrance Bynum and authorize Finance to advertise for 

upset bids. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried. 
 
Closed Session. 
Upon motion of Councilman Gaylor, seconded by Councilman Batts and unanimously carried, Council went into 

Closed Session for Potential Litigation and Economic Development. 
 

The unanimous vote by Council to go into Closed Session was held after the video ended but the audio remained.  
 

After the Closed Session was held, Council came out of Closed Session and back into Open Session. 
 
Mayor Ham recessed the meeting at 6:42 p.m. 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 
214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on October 2, 2023. 
 
Mayor Ham stated that before going into Closed Session, he asked for a vote and the vote was unanimous to go into Closed 
Session.   
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV 

   Councilman Greg Batts 
 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney  
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

 
Archbishop Anthony Slater with Tehillah Church Ministries provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 



5 of 14 
 

Approval of Minutes.  Councilman Batts made a motion to approve the Minutes of the Work Session and Regular 
Meeting of September 18, 2023.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.   

 
Presentations. 

   Domestic Violence Awareness Presentation and Proclamation. Read by Councilwoman Jones: The Goldsboro 
City Council proclaimed October 2023 as NATIONAL DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH in the City of 
Goldsboro, and recognized the important work done by domestic violence programs, and urged all citizens to actively 
participate in activities and programs to work toward improving victim safety and holding perpetrators of domestic abuse 
accountable for their actions against individual victims and our society as a whole. 
 
Ms. Bernadette Marrow, Program Coordinator and Ms. Andrea Ajagbe, Shelter Manager with Wayne Uplift received the 
proclamation and shared information about their program, domestic violence and sexual abuse. The phone number for Wayne 
Uplift is 919-736-1313.  

 
 Public Hearings.  
Z-13-23 Harry and Mollie, LLC (General Business and Industrial Business Park-1 to General Business) – East 

side of McLain Street between Oak Forest Rd. and E. Ash St. Ext. Public Hearing Held and continued to October 16, 
2023. The item was presented by Kenny Talton, Planning Director.  
 
ADDRESS: TBD 
PARCEL #: 3519905459 (Portion of) 
PROPERTY OWNER: Harry and Mollie, LLC 
APPLICANT:  Harry and Mollie, LLC c/o Robert “Bob” Ivey 
 
The applicant is requesting a rezoning for 63.853 acres from General Business (GB) and Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) to 
the General Business (GB) Zoning District. The General Business (GB) Zoning District is established to accommodate the 
widest range of uses providing general goods and services to the community. The intent of this district is to promote high 
quality, accessible developments serving the needs of the community and surrounding area.                       
 
SURROUNDING ZONING:                     
 North: Industrial Business Park (IBP-I) 
             South: General Business (GB), Residential (R16/R20A/R9CZ) 

East: Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) and General Business (GB) 
West: Shopping Center (SC) and Industrial Business Park (IBP-1)  

 
Existing Use:  The properties proposed for rezoning are currently vacant. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Industrial land use designation. This designation was developed to 
establish and protect industrial areas for the use of prime industrial operations and for the distribution of products at 
wholesale.  
 
The General Business (GB) Zoning District is not a corresponding zoning district within the Industrial land-use designation.   
 
As previously stated, this is a rezoning proposal for 63.853 acres to be rezoned from General Business (GB), Industrial 
Business Park (IBP-1) to General Business (GB) Zoning District.  This is a general rezoning.  As such, all uses must be 
considered in the proposal to rezone the property. 
 
The subject property is adjacent to property commonly identified as the Park East Industrial Park.  It is one of two industrial 
parks in Wayne County. 
 
According to the City of Goldsboro’s Comprehensive Land-Use Plan (CLUP), incompatible non-industrial uses shall not be 
allowed to encroach upon existing or planned industrial sites. Rezoning the property to General Business will create 
opportunities for uses permitted by right in the General Business (GB) Zoning District to locate adjacent to existing or 
planned industrial sites. In addition, the CLUP encourages new industrial development to locate in existing or planned 
industrial parks.  Rezoning the property to General Business (GB) could reduce opportunities for attracting new and existing 
industries to Park East.  Lastly, it will decrease the existing industrial park’s potential for future growth and development.  
 
Currently, Shopping Center (SC) Zoning District is located west of the General Business Zoning District proposed for the 
subject property (Portion of). This zoning district has the potential to accommodate a majority of the same types of land uses 
that the General Business Zoning District would accommodate.    
 
TRC REVIEW: Staff has distributed this proposed rezoning to SJAFB and NCDOT.  If the rezoning is approved, formal 
comments will be generated once a site-specific plan is submitted for development. 
 
Staff is recommending denial of the rezoning request.  There are several factors that would support not approving the 
rezoning request.  According to the City of Goldsboro’s Comprehensive Land-Use Plan (CLUP), incompatible non-industrial 
uses shall not be allowed to encroach upon existing or planned industrial sites. Rezoning the property to General Business 
will create opportunities for uses permitted by right in the General Business (GB) Zoning District to locate adjacent to 



6 of 14 
 

existing or planned industrial sites. In addition, the CLUP encourages new industrial development to locate in existing or 
planned industrial parks.  Rezoning the property to General Business (GB) could reduce opportunities for attracting new and 
existing industries to Park East.  Lastly, it will decrease the existing industrial park’s potential for future growth and 
development.  
 
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on September 25, 2023, to review and make a recommendation regarding 
the rezoning request. The Planning Commission voted: 4 in favor, 2 against. 
 
Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the Planning Commission has 
provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the consistency statement, or council shall vote to 
deny with the inclusion of the Inconsistency statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent. Council may also 
continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 
 
Letters related to the Public Hearing that were provided to Council are attached as Exhibit A.  
 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and the following people spoke: 
 

1. Emory Ivey asked Council to table the item for two weeks. He submitted a letter of support from Sport Durst 
(Exhibit B) and a map (Exhibit C). 

 
Councilwoman Jones made a motion to table the item to the October 16, 2023 meeting. City Attorney Lawrence discussed 
the proper motion to continue the public hearing.  
 

2. Karl Landgren did not speak in favor or opposition but asked about permitting and if industries are going to locate in 
the particular area.  

 
No one else spoke.  
 
Mayor Ham restated the motion to continue the matter to the 16th of October. The motion was seconded by Councilman Batts 
and unanimously carried.  
 

Z-14-23 Red Horse Townes (Residential-12 SF CZ to Residential -12 CZ) – East of Country Day Rd. between 
Wheeler Dr. and Davis Rd. Public Hearing Held and continued to November 6, 2023. The item was presented by Kenny 
Talton, Planning Director.  
 
ADDRESS: TBD 
PARCEL #: 3600864490/3600861430 
PROPERTY OWNER: Veritas, Inc. 
APPLICANT: John G. Thomas, Sr. PE Thomas Engineering PA on behalf of Nolan Commercial Contractors, Inc. 
 
The applicant is requesting a conditional rezoning from the Residential-12 SF Conditional Zoning District to the Residential-
12 Conditional Zoning District limiting the use of the property to a townhome development consisting of 89 units. The 
purpose of the Residential-12 Zoning District is to accommodate both single and multi-family residential uses and to prohibit 
all activities of a commercial nature. Townhomes are classified as multi-family dwellings.  As such, they shall have twelve 
thousand square feet of land area for the first unit with an additional six thousand square feet of land area required for each 
additional dwelling unit. 
 
Access: Country Day Rd. 
Area: Approx. 16.57 acres 
Townhomes: 89            
 
SURROUNDING ZONING:                     
 North: Residential 12/16 
              South: Residential 16 

East: Residential 12/16 
West: Residential 12/ Office and Institutional  

 
Existing Use:  The properties are currently vacant and wooded. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan locates these parcels within the Medium Density Residential land-use designation.   
 
Residential – 12 (multi-family) is not a corresponding Zoning District in the Medium Density Residential land use 
designation.  However, the City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan supports higher zoning density for residential development 
with access to City water and sewer services or where plans exist to extend water or sewer service to these areas. 
 
This is a conditional rezoning proposal to establish a townhome development to allow for 89 lots. The adjacent uses are 
Garden Walk Subdivision, The Commons Subdivision, Freedom Baptist Church, Liberty Pentecostal Holiness Church, 



7 of 14 
 

Country View Apartments, Kingston Place and Brookdale Senior Living Facility. The parcels have direct frontage on 
Country Day Rd. The proposed development will have direct access on Country Day Rd. and Ashley Ave.  
 
TRC REVIEW: Staff has distributed this proposed conditional rezoning to City Engineering, Public Utilities, Seymour 
Johnson Air Force Base and NCDOT. There are no comments at this time, based off the concept design. If approved, this will 
require Site Plan submittal and will undergo TRC Review.  
Staff is recommending approval of the conditional rezoning request based on the fact that this development would not be out 
of character with the overall residential use of the surrounding area. This development would aid in satisfying a growing 
demand for housing in the City of Goldsboro. The availability of water and sewer does support a higher density development. 
 
Staff is recommending the following conditions be placed upon this conditional rezoning request:  
 

• Two primary means of access shall be provided to the proposed townhome development.  (1) off Country Day Rd. 
(State Road 1569) and (2) Ashley Ave. (City Street) 

 
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on September 25, 2023, to review and make a recommendation regarding 
the rezoning request to include staff conditions.  The Planning Commission voted 6 in favor and 0 against. 
 
Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the Planning Commission has 
provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the consistency statement, or council shall vote to 
deny with the inclusion of the Inconsistency statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent. Council may also 
continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 
 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and the following people spoke: 
 

1. Jodie Woolard, Garden Walk, spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning. 
2. Johnny Holland, Whitney Place, spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning. 
3. Sharon Herring, Wayne Country Day Road, spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning. 
4. Richard Woodard, Wayne Country Day Road, spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning.  
5. Aurora Lewis, Ashley Avenue, spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning. 
6. Gaston Lewis, Aurora Lane, spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning. 
7. Chuck Henry, Whitney Place, spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning.  
8. Barbara Swisher, Ashley Avenue, spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning. 
9. John Thomas, Thomas Engineering, spoke in favor of the proposed rezoning. 

 
Council discussed turn lanes, traffic and future plans of the NC DOT.  
 

10. Steven Kornegay, Garden Walk, spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning. 
11. Anthony Lewis, Ashley Avenue, spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning. 
12. Alice Sladick, Ashley Avenue, spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning. 
13. Phyllis Merritt James spoke regarding housing density, safety and further research.  

 
No one else spoke.  
 
Councilman Batts made a motion to continue the public hearing until the 16th of October. The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Gaylor.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews asked if the recommendations are made will it provide easements. Mr. Talton discussed the traffic 
and the concerns of the public.  
 
Council discussed the continuance of the public hearing with City Attorney Lawrence.  
 
Councilman Batts made a motion to continue the public hearing until the 6th of November. The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Gaylor and passed unanimously.  
 

Public Comment Period.  Mayor Ham opened the public comment period. The following people spoke: 

1. Tenisha Saylor shared comments regarding future plans for housing.  
2. Phyllis Merritt James shared concerns regarding the CAPER report.  
3. Rodney Robinson shared concerns regarding communication with the Mayor and homelessness. 

No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.   

Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All items 
were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a Councilmember 
so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered separately. In that event, 
the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. Councilman Batts moved 
the items on the Consent Agenda, Items E - Q approved as recommended by the City Manager and staff.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilman Gaylor and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion. 



8 of 14 
 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  

 
Contract Award for 2023 Resurfacing Project - Formal Bid No. 2023-002. Resolution Adopted. The item was 

presented by Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Manager. 
On Thursday, August 31, 2023, a bid opening was held for the 2023 Resurfacing Project. Three bids were received and 
opened. 
 
Daniels Inc. of Garner, NC submitted the low bid for the 2023 Resurfacing Project for a total cost of $278,150.95.  The bids 
received for this project are tabulated as follows: 
      
Name of Bidder    Amount of Bid 
Daniels Inc. of Garner, NC   $278,150.95 
Garner, NC 
 
Barnhill Contracting Company   $283,288.20  
Rocky Mount, NC 
 
S.T. Wooten Corporation   $433,746.00 
Wilson, NC 
  
The proposed work consists of approximately 6885 square yards of mill asphalt 1.5” deep; approximately 6885 square yards 
of S9.5A asphalt surface course; approximately 2370 square yards of full depth patching. 
 
The bids for this project have been reviewed by the Engineering Department, checked for accuracy, and found to be in order. 
 
We have reviewed the financing of this project with the Finance Director and determined the proposed funding as outlined 
below: 
 

• $66,485.04 left over from street bond. 
• $57,000.00 allocated from state grant. 
• $154,665.91 coming from fund balance. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a 
contract in the amount of $278,150.95 with Daniels Inc. of Garner, NC for the 2023 Resurfacing Project. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Batts/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-66 “RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT 
FOR 2023 RESURFACING PROJECT FORMAL BID NO. 2023-002” 
 

Contract Award for Lead and Copper Inventory Project Formal Bid No. 2023-001. Resolution Adopted. The 
item was presented by Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Manager. 
 
On Thursday, August 31, 2023, a bid opening was held for the Lead and Copper Inventory Project. Only one bid was 
received, and the project was scheduled for re-bid. 
 
Two bids were received at the second bid opening held on Tuesday, September 19, 2023. 
 
Duke’s Root Control, Inc. submitted the low bid for the Lead and Copper Inventory Project for a total cost of $2,037,500.  
The bids received for this project are tabulated as follows: 
      
Name of Bidder     Amount of Bid 
Duke’s Root Control, Inc.   $2,037,500.00 
Elgin, Illinois 
 
Performance Contracting, Inc.   $3,091,323.47  
Knoxville, TN 
  
The proposed work consists of approximately 7,000 visual inspections at the meter for public owned and private owned water 
services; digging up approximately 3,000 public owned and private owned water services; approximately 50 cubic yards of 
concrete sidewalk repair; approximately 50 tons of asphalt repair; and approximately 50 linear feet of curb and gutter. 
 
The bids for this project have been reviewed by the Engineering Department, checked for accuracy, and found to be in order. 
 
We have reviewed the financing of this project with the Finance Director and determined the proposed funding as outlined 
below: 
 

• $1,982,440 is allocated in the FY23-24 Budget. 



9 of 14 
 

• The remaining $55,060 shall be allocated by budget amendment. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a 
contract in the amount of $2,037,500 with Duke’s Root Control, Inc. of Elgin, Illinois for the Lead and Copper Inventory 
Project. Consent Agenda Approval. Batts/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-67 “RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT 
FOR LEAD AND COPPER INVENTORY PROJECT FORMAL BID NO. 2023-001” 
 

Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24. Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, 
Finance Director.  
 
Council adopted the FY23-24 annual operating budget on June 20, 2023.  
  
Non-Profit Services – Rebuilding Broken Places (General Fund) 
 
On July 17, 2023, City Council agreed to allow Rebuilding Broken Places to submit their financial statement audit in August, 
and when received would be amenable to funding the FY23 appropriation for services as a fund balance appropriation in 
FY24.   
 
Rebuilding Broken Places has submitted the requested audit and satisfied the requirements for funding.  At this time, it is 
necessary to appropriate the expenditures for the service contract in the amount of $13,616.  This will be funded with an 
appropriation of fund balance in the General Fund. 
 
Lead and Copper Project Funding – Utility Fund 
 
City Council authorized the appropriation of $1,982,440.00 as a transfer to the capital project (Lead and Copper Inventory) in 
the FY24 adopted budget.  At this time the project has been bid, and the cost will be $2,037,500.00 resulting in a shortfall of 
$55,060.00.  In order to award the contract, it is necessary to appropriate an additional transfer to the capital project in the 
amount of $55,060.00.  This will be funded with an appropriation of fund balance in the Utility Fund.  
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance to amend the FY23-24 Operating Budget for the 
General Fund and Utility Fund. Consent Agenda Approval. Batts/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-54”AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
FOR THE 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR” 
 

Establishing a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Lead and Copper Capital Project Fund (W1114). Ordinance 
Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 
 
The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) overhauled the 1991 Lead and Copper Rule and issued the final Lead and 
Copper Rule Revisions (LCRR) which went into effect December 16, 2021.  All water systems must complete certain tasks 
before the October 16, 2024 deadline which includes developing an inventory of all service lines, including public-side and 
private-side materials, and making that publicly available. 
 
The Engineering department issued a formal bid for the inventory of the public and private lines, and has requested Council 
award the bid to Duke’s Root Control for $2,037,500. 
 
It is necessary to appropriate the expenditures to create the lead and copper inventory for the City, and as allowed by N.C. 
General Statute §159-13.2, Project Ordinances, we recommend that this be established as a capital project ordinance.  This 
was an unfunded federal mandate, so it will be funded entirely with a transfer from the Utility Fund which was included in 
the FY24 adopted operating budget. 
   
It was recommended that the following entitled Grant Project Ordinance for the Lead and Copper Inventory Capital Project 
Fund (W1114) be adopted for $2,037,500. Consent Agenda Approval. Batts/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-55 “AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE LEAD AND 
COPPER INVENTORY PROJECT (W1114)” 
 

Resolution to approve insurance broker agreement for FY25-FY27. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented 
by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 

 
The City conducted an RFQ/RFP process December, 2020, and Arthur J. Gallagher was selected as the insurance broker to 
represent the City of Goldsboro.  We requested a contract of three years which covered FY22-FY24, at a cost of $45,000 per 
year for a total of $135,000.  The proposal was prepared such that we could extend the agreement as long as the City was 
satisfied with the performance of the broker. 
 



10 of 14 
 

Arthur J. Gallagher assists the City with procuring multiple coverages that hedge against peril and risk such as general 
liability, auto, property, crime, inland marine, law enforcement, employment practices, professional, umbrella, cyber liability, 
liquor, flood, drone and excess worker’s comp.  The broker has assisted the City with preparing the lengthy insurance 
applications each year, and has done a good job assisting us in managing the various claims that we file each year.  The 
broker provides resources to assist the City with risk assessment and mitigation such as consultants and training resources. 
 
Keeping the continuity of the broker is important due to the complexity of the City’s operations, and number of claims.  The 
broker is amenable to the same terms, and it is our recommendation to engage the broker for the term of FY25-FY27 at the 
same cost of $45,000 per year. 
  
It was recommended that Council approve the following entitled resolution to engage Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management 
Services as the City’s insurance broker for FY25-FY27. Consent Agenda Approval. Batts/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-68 “A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR 
INSURANCE BROKERAGE SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO AND ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER RISK 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE FISCAL YEARS 2025 THROUGH 2027” 
 

Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 305 Pearson Street to 
Melissa Bynum Gill. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 
 
Staff has received an offer to purchase city owned property.  Council must either accept or reject the offer, and if accepted 
authorize advertisement for upset bids (G.S. 160A-266 and 160A-269). 
 
The following offer has been received for the sale of surplus real property under Negotiated offer, advertisement, and upset 
bid process (G.S. §160A-266(a) (3)) 
 
305 Pearson Street 
 
Offeror:   Melissa Bynum Gill 
    Offer:  $4,330.00 
    Bid Deposit: $216.50 
    Parcel #:  48993  Pin #: 2690902825 
    Tax Value: $4,330.00  Zoning: R-6 
 
The offer is at least 50% of the tax value of the property.  The bid deposit of 5% has been received in the form of a cashier’s 
check. 
 
It was recommended that Council accept or reject the offer for 305 Pearson Street and if accepted, adopt the following 
entitled resolution authorizing Finance to advertise for upset bids. Consent Agenda Approval. Batts/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-69 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS” 
 

Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 717 Devereaux Street. 
Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 

 
Staff has received two offers to purchase city owned property.  Council must either accept or reject one of the offers, and if 
accepted authorize advertisement for upset bids (G.S. 160A-266 and 160A-269). 
 
The following offers have been received for the sale of surplus real property under Negotiated offer, advertisement, and upset 
bid process (G.S. §160A-266(a) (3)) 
 
717 Devereaux Street 
 
Offeror #1:  Terrance A. Bynum 
        Offer:  $3,700.00 
        Bid Deposit: $185.00 
 
The offer is at least 50% of the tax value of the property.  The bid deposit of 5% has been received in the form of a money 
order. 
 
Offeror #2:  Melissa Bynum Gill 
        Offer:  $3,610.00 
        Bid Deposit: $180.00 
 
The offer is at least 50% of the tax value of the property.  The bid deposit is short by $0.50 of the calculated 5%.  It was 
received in the form of a cashier’s check. 
 
Parcel #:  50151   Pin #: 3509014848 



11 of 14 
 

 Tax Value: $3,610.00  Zoning: R-6 
 
Planning has confirmed that this is a non-conforming lot however a single family residence may be constructed on the site if 
it meets the current Residential (R6) Zoning District building setbacks. 
 
Staff recommends the Council accept the higher of the 2 offers in order to start the upset bid process. 
It was recommended that Council accept or reject the offer for 717 Devereaux Street from Terrance A. Bynum and if 
accepted, adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing Finance to advertise for upset bids. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Batts/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-70 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS” 
 

Request Authorization to Purchase a New Automated Leaf Collection Truck. Resolution Adopted. The item was 
presented by Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director. 

 
The Solid Waste Division has five leaf collection trucks – year models 1999, 2006, 2007, 2010 & 2019.  Due to the age and 
condition of the equipment, we experienced significant equipment downtime and delays during the previous leaf season.  To 
help mitigate equipment concerns, the Solid Waste Division requested and received funding to purchase new leaf collection 
machines in FY 23 and FY 24.   
 
A new leaf collection truck was ordered in August 2022 through Piedmont Truck Center, Inc. with an anticipated delivery in 
March 2023.  Unfortunately, delivery has been delayed until January 2024 due to the unavailability of manufacturer parts.   
 
The purchase of an automated leaf collection truck was authorized in the FY24 budget for $300K.  Fortunately, Carolina 
Industrial Equipment has several automated leaf collection trucks readily available to purchase for $275K plus $2K to cover 
NC highway use tax, tag and title fees.  The representative confirmed they could deliver a truck within 7-10 business days of 
receiving the purchase order.   
 
It was recommended that Council approve the purchase of the new automated leaf collection truck from Carolina Industrial 
Equipment, through the North Carolina Sherriff’s Association, for $277K. Consent Agenda Approval. Batts/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-71 “RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO PURCHASE A NEW AUTOMATED LEAF TRUCK” 
 

HOME-ARP Non-Congregate Shelter (NCS) Program Guidelines & RFP-Application. Approved. The item was 
presented by Felecia Williams, Community Relations and Development Director. 

  
The City has been allocated $907,913 of HOME-ARP funds by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) to assist individuals or households who are homeless, at risk of homelessness, and other vulnerable populations.   
 
HOME-ARP funds may be used to acquire, rehabilitate, or construct NCS units to serve individuals and families in the 
Qualifying Populations.  Eligible costs include Acquisition, Demolition, Development Hard Costs, Related Soft Costs, and 
Replacement Reserve.  HOME-ARP funds may not be used to pay ongoing costs of operating HOME-ARP NCS or to 
convert to NCS housing.  
 
The Community Relations & Development department has developed a thorough and detailed program guide and RFP-
Application pursuant to Notice CPD-21-10: Requirements for the Use of Funds in the HOME-ARP Program. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the newly developed HOME-ARP Non-Congregate Shelter (NCS) Program 
Guidelines & RFP-Application. Consent Agenda Approval. Batts/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 

2023 Fall Festival Vampire Masquerade – Temporary Street Closure. Approved. The item was presented by 
Mike West, Police Chief.  

 
Downtown Goldsboro / Downtown Development Corporation in partnership with Artistic Dance Academy will host the 2023 
Fall Festival Vampire Masquerade event.  The event is free, family-friendly, and open to the public.  
 
The event will be on Saturday, October 28, 2023, from 5:00pm – 8:00pm on North Center Street, utilizing the Northbound 
Lane of the 200 block of North Center Street from Ash to Mulberry Street and the steps of City Hall.   There will be a 
Downtown Halloween Contest and Vendor setup with children’s activities and Food Trucks. The Downtown Goldsboro / 
Downtown Development Corporation is requesting the closure of the northbound lane of North Center Street from Ash to 
Mulberry Street from 4:30pm –8:30pm.  
 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be addressed:  

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 

 



12 of 14 
 

It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary closing of the northbound lane of North Center Street from 
Ash to Mulberry Street as stated above. Consent Agenda Approval. Batts/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 

US Dept. of Justice: Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Formula Program:  Local 
Solicitation. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Mike West, Police Chief.  
 
The Goldsboro Police Department has been awarded Federal grant funds from the 2023 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grant (JAG).  On August 21st, 2023, Council adopted a Resolution allowing the Goldsboro Police Department to 
apply for this grant.  The grant was awarded on September 26th, 2023. 
 
The grant was approved for the Goldsboro Police Department to purchase (4) four in-car camera systems and IFAK 
(individual first aid kits) in the amount of $29,412.81 to record officer interactions with the public and first aid for actual or 
potential violence that threatens officer safety, and the Wayne County Sheriff was approved to purchase IFAK kits for their 
deputies in the amount of $18,269.00.  
 
It was recommended that the following entitled resolution be adopted authorizing the Goldsboro Police Department and 
Goldsboro City Manager to accept the award for the 2023 JAG funds in the amount of $47,702.00 and authorize City 
officials to execute documents required for the award. Consent Agenda Approval. Batts/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-72 “A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE 2023 EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE 
ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) APPLICATION” 
 

Ratifying the Actions Taken Regarding 800 and 808 W. Grantham St. Resolution Adopted. The item was 
presented by City Manager Salmon.  
 
The City of Goldsboro owned property at 800 and 808 W. Grantham Street.  
 
An offer to purchase the properties was made and the Finance Department brought an agenda item to the Council meeting on 
May 1, 2023 to accept or reject the initial bid and authorize Finance to advertise for upset bids for the property.   
 
Council accepted the bid and authorized Finance to advertise for upset bids. Two Farms, Inc. was the winning bidder for the 
property and has started the process to purchase the property.   
 
At the May 1, 2023 meeting, Council authorized the Mayor to execute the contract or deed. The Agreement was signed by 
the City Manager on June 27, 2023 and an Amendment to the Contract of Sale was signed by the City Manager on September 
25, 2023.  
 
A resolution is needed authorizing the City Manager to sign the agreement, and any amendments to such. Otherwise, the 
agreement must be revised with the mayor’s signature.  
 
It was recommended that Council adopt a resolution authorizing the City Manager to be the signatory for all documents 
related to the sale of the properties at 800 and 808 West Grantham Street, Goldsboro, as approved by City Council at the May 
1, 2023, meeting. The original agreement is attached as part of the agenda packet. Consent Agenda Approval. Batts/Gaylor (6 
Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-73 “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN ALL DOCUMENTS 
RELATED TO THE SALE OF THE PROPERTIES AT 800 AND 808 W. GRANTHAM ST.” 
 

Advisory Board and Commission Appointments. Resolutions Adopted. The item was presented by Laura Getz, 
City Clerk. 
 
Citizen involvement is vital to the performance of City government.  There are currently several vacancies on Advisory 
Boards and Commissions.  It is necessary that additional appointments be made to fill these vacancies.  

 
Recommendations for appointments were requested from the respective Boards and Commissions. Applications were also 
solicited from the public.  

 
The City Council met during the Work Session on September 18, 2023, to review vacancies and applications received to fill 
the current vacancies. With these appointments, one position on the Recreation Advisory Commission, one position on the 
Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities, and one alternate position on the Historic District Commission remains.  

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Resolutions appointing members to various Advisory Boards 
and Commissions in the City of Goldsboro, and commending individuals who have served on Advisory Boards and 
Commissions of the City of Goldsboro. Consent Agenda Approval. Batts/Gaylor (6 Ayes) 

     
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-74 “RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS” 

 



13 of 14 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-75 “RESOLUTION COMMENDING INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE SERVED ON ADVISORY 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO” 

 
City Manager’s Report.  
City Manager Tim Salmon shared the following: at the next meeting, the FY21-22 Annual Comprehensive Financial 

Report from FORVIS will be presented; the Financial Update on FY22-23 will be presented by the Finance Director; and we 
should be addressing an ordinance amending Chapter 53.17 for voluntary annexation. On November 6, there will be a report 
on the public safety complex repairs, our water reclamation facility expansion and the flood print project from North Carolina 
State University consultants.  

 
Ceremonial Documents.  
Breast Cancer Awareness Month Proclamation. Read by Mayor Pro Tem Matthews: The Goldsboro City Council 

proclaimed October 2023 as BREAST CANCER AWARENESS MONTH in the City of Goldsboro, and urged our fellow 
citizens to become aware of the impact that breast cancer has on our community, and to support the fight against breast 
cancer so that we may one day defeat this terrible disease. 

 
Safety First on Halloween Proclamation. Read by Councilman Gaylor: The Goldsboro City Council proclaimed 

SAFETY FIRST ON HALLOWEEN and encouraged all citizens of Goldsboro to promote and observe the following safety 
guidelines: 

 
• Parents are asked to supervise the Halloween Trick or Treat activities of their children and to ensure that Trick or 

Treat activities are limited to children under the age of 16 years. 
• Trick or Treat hours will be observed from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. on Tuesday, October 31, 2023. 
• Residents who wish to participate in Trick or Treat are asked to leave a porch light, or other outdoor light, on 

during these hours. 
• Parents are asked to explain to children that homes with no outdoor light are not participating in Trick or Treat 

and that these homes should be passed up during these activities. 
• It is also recommended for the safety of our children that parental supervision be extended to include insistence 

that children do not consume any "treats" until closely examined by their parents. Parents should follow the rule 
"if in doubt - throw it out" where evidence of tampering with packaging or surfaces of consumable product exists. 

 
These guidelines are set forth in the hope that all citizens of Goldsboro will enjoy a happy, safe, and orderly Halloween. 

 
Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Julie A. Ryan as an Employee of the City of 

Goldsboro for More Than 27 Years. Resolution Adopted. Julie A. Ryan retired on October 1, 2023 as a Police Records 
Technician, with more than 27 years of service with the Goldsboro Police Department. Julie began her career on February 14, 
1996 as a Public Records Clerk with the Goldsboro Police Department. On July 1, 2016, Julie’s title was changed to Police 
Records Technician with the Goldsboro Police Department, where she has served until her retirement. Julie has proven 
herself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the admiration and respect of her fellow workers and the 
citizens of the City of Goldsboro. The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Julie their deep appreciation and 
gratitude for the service rendered by her to the City over the years and express to Julie our very best wishes for success, 
happiness, prosperity, and good health in her future endeavors. 

 
This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and effect 
from and after this 2nd day of October, 2023.  
 
Councilman Broadaway made a motion to adopt the following entitled retirement resolution. The motion was seconded by 
Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-76 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY JULIE A. 
RYAN AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 27 YEARS” 

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 

 
Councilman Jones shared the following comments: Well, I am just very excited. One of my items is safety, one of my 
concerns is safety and safety extended beyond crime is very important as well and so I am very excited to see the sidewalk 
going up for the residents of West Haven. I am so excited to see that and there's some other sidewalks going up as well. 

 
Councilman Broadaway shared the following comments: I want to thank again Doug McGrath for his four years of service. 
He has done a yeoman’s job and has really helped the city. The last thing is just ask everybody to vote for goodness sakes. 
Go out and vote, that's so important and I think we have less than 1,000 people that voted so far which is criminal in our day 
and time. We’ve got to vote.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews shared the following comments: Thank you, Councilman Broadaway because I was definitely 
going to say the same thing, so I echo that. But really want to encourage men and women to do their due diligence and self-
checking as it relates to breast cancer. As someone who received a scare at the age of 31, going to Wayne Radiology to check 
lumps that were found in my breast by my doctor. A lot of reports and organizations say you don't even have to check before 



O

O

p

b

O

O

14

a ° ° 

x° 

U •

o

W

d —- ° 

o

4 >,

monACID  

5

U

3

o

o   

ani °'° 

o ,

to  

4: 

a ' 

en

o

Cd  

0 

0

0'

O. 

O 

O

0

to

cd "

IZI

o

o

0

cc° 

10

0

ti ° 

rn

O

s , 

b

y `' 

3

L: 

O

O

N

O

Q. 

to

x

UO , 

sw

ai

ani

o

ci

y

N

GJ

O 

j

N

O

p

scqjO. 

0to
N

03

c;

j

U <+. 

cC

o

r, 

bn . -

0

3

o. 

ll 

03

cl

c 

O . + 

U '

O

O

Q" 

co

0

rte• 

N

N . 

o , 

co

Id

o

Cd

C;

j.   

0

W

O > 

c

bA

O

ci

N

N

4

U



















1 of 11 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
OCTOBER 16, 2023 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Large Conference Room, 
City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on October 16, 2023.   

Call to Order.   Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV 
Councilman Greg Batts 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney            
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

Adoption of the Agenda. Upon motion of Councilman Broadaway, seconded by Councilman Batts, and 
unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda.  

Old Business. 
 Public Safety Complex Repairs Update. Jamie Stanley, Deputy Public Works Director shared the following 

information. A Request for Quotes (RFQ) was sent out last week for this repair. Proposals are due back on November 9th. 
Once the proposals are back, the city’s working group will evaluate the proposals based on the criteria.  

City Manager Salmon shared they should have more information at the second November meeting.  Mayor Ham asked that 
we move on this soon and carefully. 

New Business. 
 Boards and Commissions Vacancies Discussion. Laura Getz, City Clerk shared there are two candidates for the 

Planning Commission vacancy. Ms. Getz reminded everyone we need citizen participation on our boards and commissions. 

Mayor Pro Tem Matthews inquired about the districts of the current members for the Planning Commission. Councilman 
Gaylor recommended putting both applicants on a board. Council discussed current vacancies and current applicants. Ms. 
Getz shared there is a vacancy on the Commission on Community Relations and Development which was the second choice 
for Kyle Cramer. Council consensus was for the Clerk to bring a resolution to the 7:00 meeting appointing Duke Cox to the 
Planning Commission and Kyle Cramer to the Commission on Community Relations and Development.  

Ms. Getz passed out a copy of the updated resolution appointing the members during the work session. 

Consent Agenda Review. Items E- R on the consent agenda were reviewed. Further discussion included the 
following: 

 Item E.  HOME-ARP Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines for Non-Congregate Shelter Unit 
Projects. The item was presented by Felecia Williams, Community Relations and Development Director. Mayor Pro Tem 
Matthews asked if the city could provide utility rent assistance payments through the allocation. Ms. Williams shared the 
city cannot provide rent assistance but can contract with a nonprofit or agency that does that type of work.  Councilman 
Gaylor asked how the city will be looking at the organization’s cash flows and sustaining themselves long term. Ms. 
Williams stated that we will have the underwriters determine the feasibility.  Mayor Ham thanked Ms. Williams for her 
work on the project. Ms. Williams shared there will be an information session tomorrow at 3:00 pm. 

Item G.  Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for E. Spruce and 
706 E. Spruce Street. Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director presented the item. Ms. Gwynn shared these are two separate 
lots.  

Councilman Broadaway made a motion to accept the offer from Terrance Bynum for E. Spruce and 706 E. Spruce 
Street. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried. 

Item P. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 53: Water and Sewer Systems of the City of 
Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances. Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager presented the item. Mayor Ham shared at the 
last meeting; Council consensus was to accept this change. City Manager Salmon shared the following comments: We’ve 
heard the county commissioners talk about potential billion dollar industries coming to the City of Goldsboro and if that 
were the case, the tax, at our current tax rate would be $7.3 million a year and for the city to not collect that tax for seven 
years would be over $50 million worth of funding that could go a long way to provide pay increases, buy equipment,  
operating costs, facilities etc. that's why the staff is recommending that we ask for petitions for voluntary annexation upon 
provision of services. 

Councilman Gaylor stated when economic developments incentives come up, a lot of times, the county does tax 
rebates based off specific criteria, is there anything that stops us from being able to do that as well. City Manager Salmon 

Item A2



2 of 11 
 

shared we can still coordinate with the county to do those tax incentives essentially for economic development based on 
how much the company would put in and how many jobs they hired etc.  

 
Item Q. Advisory Board and Commission Appointment. The item was presented by Laura Getz, City Clerk. 

Council received the updated resolution appointing Duke Cox to the Planning Commission and Kyle Cramer to the 
Commission on Community Relations and Development and agreed to proceed with the revised resolution.  

 
Closed Session. 
Councilman Broadaway made a motion to go into Closed Session for Economic Development. The motion was 

seconded by Councilman Batts and unanimously carried. 
 
After the Closed Session was held, Council came out of Closed Session and back into Open Session. 
 
Mayor Ham recessed the meeting at 6:11 p.m. 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on October 16, 2023. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Councilwoman Jones provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  

   Councilman Greg Batts 
 
Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 

Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney                  
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

 
Presentations.  
Veterans Day Proclamation. Read by Mayor Ham: The Goldsboro City Council proclaimed November 11, 2023 as 

VETERANS DAY in the City of Goldsboro and urged all citizens to remember the service and sacrifice of our veterans who 
defend our freedom and preserve our way of life.   

 
Eric Busse, President; Brian Volk, Treasurer and Andrew Nedimyer, Sergeant of Arms with the Wayne County Veterans 
and Patriots Coalition shared the parade will be held on November 11 at 11:00 a.m. and shared details regarding the parade. 
For more information, the Facebook page is Wayne County Veterans and Patriots Coalition.   

 
Services Provided by the County Clerk of Courts Office. Juile Whitfield, Clerk of Court shared information 

regarding the County Clerk of Court’s Office.  
 
Public Hearings.  
Z-13-23 Harry and Mollie, LLC (General Business and Industrial Business Park-1 to General Business) – East 

side of McLain Street between Oak Forest Rd. and E. Ash St. Ext. Public Hearing Held. The item was presented by 
Kenny Talton, Planning Director. 

ADDRESS: TBD 

PARCEL #: 3519905459 (Portion of) 

PROPERTY OWNER: Harry and Mollie, LLC 

APPLICANT:  Harry and Mollie, LLC c/o Robert “Bob” Ivey 

The applicant is requesting a rezoning for 63.853 acres from General Business (GB) and Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) to 
the General Business (GB) Zoning District. The General Business (GB) Zoning District is established to accommodate the 
widest range of uses providing general goods and services to the community. The intent of this district is to promote high 
quality, accessible developments serving the needs of the community and surrounding area.  

At the October 2, 2023, Council meeting, City Council voted to continue the public hearing until October 16, 2023.                

SURROUNDING ZONING:      North: Industrial Business Park (IBP-I) 

                          South: General Business (GB), Residential (R16/R20A/R9CZ) 

East: Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) and General Business (GB) 

West: Shopping Center (SC) and Industrial Business Park (IBP-1)  



3 of 11 
 

Existing Use:  The properties proposed for rezoning are currently vacant. 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Industrial land use designation. This designation was developed to 
establish and protect industrial areas for the use of prime industrial operations and for the distribution of products at 
wholesale.  

The General Business (GB) Zoning District is not a corresponding zoning district within the Industrial land-use designation.   

As previously stated, this is a rezoning proposal for 63.853 acres to be rezoned from General Business (GB), Industrial 
Business Park (IBP-1) to General Business (GB) Zoning District.  This is a general rezoning.  As such, all uses must be 
considered in the proposal to rezone the property. 

The subject property is adjacent to property commonly identified as the Park East Industrial Park.  It is one of two industrial 
parks in Wayne County. 

According to the City of Goldsboro’s Comprehensive Land-Use Plan (CLUP), incompatible non-industrial uses shall not be 
allowed to encroach upon existing or planned industrial sites. Rezoning the property to General Business will create 
opportunities for uses permitted by right in the General Business (GB) Zoning District to locate adjacent to existing or 
planned industrial sites. In addition, the CLUP encourages new industrial development to locate in existing or planned 
industrial parks.  Rezoning the property to General Business (GB) could reduce opportunities for attracting new and existing 
industries to Park East.  Lastly, it will decrease the existing industrial park’s potential for future growth and development.  

Currently, Shopping Center (SC) Zoning District is located west of the General Business Zoning District proposed for the 
subject property (Portion of). This zoning district has the potential to accommodate a majority of the same types of land 
uses that the General Business Zoning District would accommodate.    

TRC REVIEW: Staff has distributed this proposed rezoning to SJAFB and NCDOT.  If the rezoning is approved, formal 
comments will be generated once a site-specific plan is submitted for development. 

Staff is recommending denial of the rezoning request.  There are several factors that would support not approving the 
rezoning request.  According to the City of Goldsboro’s Comprehensive Land-Use Plan (CLUP), incompatible non-
industrial uses shall not be allowed to encroach upon existing or planned industrial sites. Rezoning the property to General 
Business will create opportunities for uses permitted by right in the General Business (GB) Zoning District to locate 
adjacent to existing or planned industrial sites. In addition, the CLUP encourages new industrial development to locate in 
existing or planned industrial parks.  Rezoning the property to General Business (GB) could reduce opportunities for 
attracting new and existing industries to Park East.  Lastly, it will decrease the existing industrial park’s potential for future 
growth and development.  

The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on September 25, 2023, to review and make a recommendation regarding 
the rezoning request. The Planning Commission voted 4 in favor and 2 against. 

Council shall vote to approve the recommendation of the Planning Commission with the inclusion of the Consistency 
Statement and adopt the Approval Ordinance or City Council shall vote to deny the recommendation of the Planning 
Commission with the inclusion of the Consistency Statement. City Council may also continue the public hearing to a date 
certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 

Councilman Gaylor shared they have received two letters, one from the Development Alliance and one from the Board of 
Commissioners (Exhibit A) expressing significant concern over the rezoning. Councilman Gaylor discussed the letters with 
Mr. Talton regarding restricted and protective covenants, rezoning and future growth in the park. Mr. Talton explained the 
uses in the zoning district.   

Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and the following people spoke:  

1. Bryce Pike, representing the Ivey family and Harry & Mollie, LLC, Bob Ivey and Steve Sutton showed large copies 
of maps to council and spoke in favor of the proposed rezoning.  

Council members asked questions about the proposed rezoning with Mr. Talton, Mr. Pike, Mr. Ivey and Mr. Sutton. Letters 
submitted to Council as part of the public hearing are attached as Exhibit B.  

No one else spoke and the Public Hearing was closed. 

Councilman Broadaway made a motion to approve and adopt the Ordinance to approve with the inclusion of the consistency 
statement. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.  

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-56 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND COMPREHENSIVE 
LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 
SU-16-23 Joseph Taylor (Automobile Sales-Used) – West side of N. James St. between W. Holly St. and W. 

Vine St. Public Hearing Held and Findings Adopted. The item was presented by Kenny Talton, Planning Director, after 
being properly sworn in.  

ADDRESS: TBD 

PARCEL #: 2599982718 

PROPERTY OWNER: Goldsboro Holdings, LLC. 

APPLICANT: Joseph Taylor 



4 of 11 
 

The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the establishment of Automobile Sales-Used, located in the General 
Industry Zoning District. The General Industry Zoning District is established to accommodate the widest range of 
manufacturing, wholesale, and distribution uses. 

According to the City’s Unified Development Code, Automobile Sales-Used is permitted in the General Industry Zoning 
District only after obtaining a Special Use Permit from Goldsboro City Council. In addition, the following are approval 
criteria for the proposed special use: 

1. The minimum lot area is fifteen thousand square feet.  

2. The minimum lot frontage and width shall be one hundred feet, unless the cars for sale are driven to the site or 
delivered by nothing larger than a two-car carrier. If either of these conditions is met, there shall be no minimum 
lot frontage or width.  

3. No parking of used vehicles or customer vehicles shall be allowed within the required street yard landscape area.  

4. No vehicles for sale shall be parked within twenty feet of residentially zoned property or any buffer area as 
required in Section 6.3.9.  

5. One loading area, not less than twenty by fifty feet shall be provided unless no vehicles will be delivered by car 
carrier.  

6. The special use permit shall be issued for a five-year period with automatic renewal for an additional five years if 
the site and structures are maintained in a satisfactory manner as originally approved.  

7. All vehicular display areas shall be improved with paving and curb and gutter.  

8. Used automobile sales facilities shall be retrofitted to comply with the landscape requirements of Section 2.4.10 
as a condition of Special Use Permit approval. 

Frontage: Approx. 227.09 ft. (W. Holly St.) 

  Approx. 245 ft. (N. James St.) 

Zoning:   General Industry (I-2) 

Existing Use:  The site is occupied by a commercial fabrication facility.   

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Industrial land use designation.  The General Industry Zoning 
District is a corresponding district for the Industrial land use designation. 

According to the applicant’s submitted site plan application and site plan, the proposed use is for Automobile Sales-Used 
with no vehicular sales display or outside storage.  The applicant desires to operate as a wholesale dealer of antique 
automobiles.  According to the North Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles, a wholesale dealer’s license requires that a 
private office containing at least 96 square feet of floor space in a permanent, enclosed building or structure which is 
accessible to Division personnel be established for wholesale operations for book-keeping, record-keeping, files, and 
storage.  According to the applicant, automobiles for sale will be stored off-site and outside of Goldsboro’s planning 
jurisdiction. 

Hours of Operation 

• M-F; 8am – 5pm 

Employees:  

• 1 

Due to the nature of this proposal, the City Technical Review Committee was not asked to review. If the Special Use Permit 
is approved, building permits shall be obtained.  Compliance with the North Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles and 
State building codes shall be achieved before a Certificate of Occupancy can be issued for the facility.  

Council shall now close the Public Hearing, enter deliberation, and vote on each of the four findings in order to determine 
whether or not the Special Use Permit shall be issued. See the attached worksheet for the four findings to be voted on and 
staffs comments related to each finding. Council does have the ability to continue the hearing or place conditions upon its 
approval as long as Council is able to conclude that evidence exists in the record to support the condition.  The Mayor of 
Goldsboro shall sign the Order to Approve or Deny, that reflects the results of the hearing and deliberation at the October 
16, 2023, City Council meeting. 

Mayor Ham stated: This appears to be a pretty large building based on the size here, but yet the only thing that’s going to be 
there is an office.  

Mr. Talton stated: That is correct. Well, actually, the owner uses the facility as a manufacturing type facility of which he 
owns another business. He can probably speak more to that so in conjunction with that facility there would just be an office 
in there, just for the wholesale transaction sales for antique cars that he wants to have as an accessory to that main principle 
use of the manufacturing facility. 

Mayor Ham stated: Do you know what the manufacturing facility consists of? 

Mr. Talton stated: I do, but I think I need to let him speak to that because there's some confidentiality subject matter that I 
might need to let him discuss before I say anything. 

Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and the following person spoke:  



5 of 11 
 

Mayor Ham stated:  I don't want you to disclose any confidential information, just curious as to what kind of manufacturing.  

1. Joseph Taylor stated: I'm a military contractor. We manufacture ballistic panels. I'm an avid classic car collector so 
I need my dealers license and the State of North Carolina is making me jump through hoops. We've got four sales 
offices on the Holly Street side that Sportsman's World used that are now empty so we're going to designate one of 
those for a dealer's office so the State of North Carolina’s happy, gives them a place to come and inspect records.  

No one else spoke and the Public Hearing was closed. 

City Council entered into deliberation and voted on each of the four findings in order to determine whether or not the 
Special Use Permit should be issued. 

1. Councilman Gaylor made a motion that the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety. The motion 
was seconded by Councilman Batts and unanimously carried.  

2. Councilman Batts made a motion that the use will not substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or abutting 
property. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.  

3. Councilman Gaylor made a motion that the use will be in harmony with existing development and uses within the 
area in which it is located. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried. 

4. Councilman Batts made a motion that the use will be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried. 

 
Public Comment Period. Mayor Ham opened the public comment period. The following people spoke: 

1. Tenisha Saylor shared comments regarding caring for the families in Goldsboro.  
2. Peter Stewart shared concerns regarding Throughfare Road traffic issues and asked for a speed limit change. 

• Assistant City Manager Livingston shared comments about an upcoming resolution to reduce the speed 
limit on Throughfare Road.  

3. Pat Lechner distributed his comments regarding the chiller unit at City Hall (Exhibit C).  
4. Karl Lundgren shared information about an upcoming event for Liberty First Wayne.  
5. Warren Edwards shared concerns regarding Throughfare Road traffic issues and lighting concerns. 

 
No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 

Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All items 
were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote.  
Councilman Broadaway moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items E - R be approved as recommended by the City 
Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Batts and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in 
favor of the motion. 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 

HOME-ARP Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines for Non-Congregate Shelter Unit Projects. 
Approved. The item was presented by Felecia Williams, Community Relations and Development Director.  
 
The City has been allocated $907,913 of HOME-ARP funds by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) to assist individuals or households who are homeless, at risk of homelessness, and other vulnerable populations.  On 
January 23, 2023, Council voted to approve splitting the allocation at 60/40, with 60% ($463,035) being allocated to Non-
Congregate shelter and 40% ($308,690) being allocated to Supportive Services.   
 
Before the City can commit HOME-ARP funds to a project, it must evaluate the project to determine the amount of HOME-
ARP capital subsidy and operating cost assistance necessary to provide quality affordable housing that meets the 
requirements of CPD Notice 21-10 and is financially viable throughout the minimum 15-year HOME-ARP compliance 
period. The City must evaluate the project in accordance with underwriting and subsidy layering guidelines it has developed 
for HOME-ARP projects.   
 
The City’s project underwriting must include an in-depth review of underlying project assumptions, development sources 
and uses, and projected operating income and expenses, and the project’s long-term financial viability to determine the 
project’s need for HOME-ARP assistance while preventing over-subsidization of the project. HUD anticipates that project 
developers will rely on Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) financing, HOME funds, Housing Trust Fund grants, 
project-based vouchers, project-based rental assistance, operating cost reserves, state or local sources, or a combination of 
these and other resources to create a feasible HOME-ARP project and maintain compliance with HOME-ARP requirements. 
 
The Community Relations & Development department has developed a thorough and detailed program guide pursuant to 
CPD Notice 21-10: Requirements for the Use of Funds in the HOME-ARP Program. 
 
Once approved, HOME-ARP RFP’s and supporting applications will be published on October 19, 2023. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the newly developed HOME-ARP Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines 
for Non-Congregate Shelter Unit Projects. Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 



6 of 11 
 

 HOME-ARP Supportive Services Program Guidelines & Application. Approved. The item was presented by 
Felecia Williams, Community Relations and Development Director.   
 
The City has been allocated $907,913 of HOME-ARP funds by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) to assist individuals or households who are homeless, at risk of homelessness, and other vulnerable populations.  On 
January 23, 2023, Council voted to approve splitting the allocation at 60/40, with 60% ($463,035) being allocated to Non-
Congregate shelter and 40% ($308,690) being allocated to Supportive Services.   
     
HOME-ARP funds may be used to provide a broad range of supportive services to qualifying individuals or families as a 
separate activity or in combination with other HOME-ARP activities.  There are three categories specifically included as 
supportive services under HOME-ARP:  McKinney-Vento Supportive Services, Homelessness Prevention Services, and 
Housing Counseling Services.  These eligible Supportive Services are listed and detailed in the Supportive Services 
Program Guidelines and Application.   
 
The Community Relations & Development department has developed a thorough and detailed program guide and 
application pursuant to CPD Notice 21-10: Requirements for the Use of Funds in the HOME-ARP Program. 
 
Upon receiving Council’s approval of the HOME-ARP Supportive Services Program Guide and Application, the 
department, with assistance from the City’s Procurement Manager, will publish all HOME-ARP Request for Proposals and 
Applications on October 19, 2023.   
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the newly developed HOME-ARP Supportive Services Program Guidelines & 
Application. Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 
 
 Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for E. Spruce and 706 E. 
Spruce Street. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
Staff has received two offers to purchase city/county owned property. Council must either accept or reject the offer, and if 
accepted authorize advertisement for upset bids (G.S. 160A-266 and 160A-269).   
  
The following offers have been received for the sale of surplus real property under Negotiated offer, advertisement, and 
upset bid process (G.S. §160A-266(a) (3)) 
  
E. Spruce Street and 706 E. Spruce Street 
Offeror #1:  Terrance A. Bynum 
        Offer:  $3,950.00 
        Bid Deposit: $197.50 
 
The offer is at least 50% of the tax value of the property.  The bid deposit of 5% has been received in the form of money 
orders. 
 
Offeror #2:  Melissa Bynum Gill 
        Offer:  $3,770.00 
        Bid Deposit: $188.50 
 
The offer is at least 50% of the tax value of the property.  The bid deposit of 5% has been received in the form of cashier 
checks. 
 
Parcel #: 51001, 51002    Pin #:  3509148035 (E. Spruce) 
3509148085 (706 E. Spruce) 
Combined Tax Value: $3,770.00 Zoning: R-6 
  
Planning has confirmed that both lots are non-conforming.  It is the recommendation of staff to sell both lots together, and 
require the winning bidder to combine the lots into one lot upon recording of the deed. 
 
Staff recommends the Council accept the higher of the 2 offers in order to start the upset bid process. 
 
It was recommended that Council accept or reject offer on E. Spruce and 706 E. Spruce Street from Terrance Bynum and if 
accepted, adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing Finance to advertise for upset bids. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-77 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS” 

 
Authorization of Sale of Jointly Owned Property for 409 North Slocumb Street (The Fairlene Group, LLC). 

Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
Wayne County has requested concurrence by the City Council for jointly owned city/county-owned property.  The County 
conducted the sale under the upset bid process (NCGS §160A-269), and approved at the September 19, 2023 commissioners 
meeting.   

 
Buyer:  The Fairlene Group, LLC 
 Sales Price: $1,000.00 
 



7 of 11 
 

409 N. Slocumb Street 
 Tax Value:  $1,830.00       Pin #: 3509168565 
 

It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution declaring the property surplus and authorize City 
officials to execute instruments necessary to transfer ownership for 409 N. Slocumb Street to The Fairlene Group, LLC. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-78 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY UNDER NCGS § 
160A-269” 
 

Amending Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 
(P3102). Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
On August 21, 2023 Council approved a resolution to allow the Goldsboro Police Department to apply for the 2023 Justice 
Assistance Grant in the amount of $47,702.00.  On October 2, 2023 Council approved a resolution to accept the Federal 
grant for the purchase of four in-car cameras and individual first aid kits (IFAK) for the Police department, and individual 
first aid kits (IFAK) for the Wayne County Sheriff’s department. 

  
At this time a budget amendment is needed to appropriate the revenues and expenditures so that the terms of the grant may 
be fulfilled.  The City of Goldsboro Police Department will share the grant funding with the Wayne County Sheriff in 
accordance with the signed Memo of Understanding.  There is no local match required.  

 
 Goldsboro Police   $29,433.00 
 Wayne County Sheriff  $18,269.00 
 Total    $47,702.00 
 

It was recommended that the following entitled Special Revenue Fund Ordinance for the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grant (JAG) (P3102) be amended for $47,702.00 for the 2023 JAG Grant. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-57 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING A SPECIAL REVENUE PROJECT FOR THE EDWARD 
BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) (P3102)” 
 

Grant Project Budget Ordinance amendment for the State Grants Miscellaneous Grant Project Fund 
(G1109). Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
When the North Carolina General Assembly adopted the FY23 budget, included was a grant for the City of Goldsboro for 
$150,000 split between capital improvements or equipment of $100,000 and parks and recreation expenses for $50,000.  At 
the November 7, 2022 Council meeting, Council approved 2 resolutions to accept both awards.  At the April 17, 2023 
meeting, Council created the grant project budget ordinance to create the fund to account for the grant. 
 
The North Carolina Office of State Budget and Management has approved the scope of work and has executed the grant 
agreement with the City of Goldsboro for the $100,000 portion of the grant related to transportation.  Funding was received 
after execution of the agreement in the amount of $100,000 on October 3, 2023. The Assistant City Manager, Matthew 
Livingston, has requested an appropriation of the expenditures in accordance with the scope of work so that Public Works 
and Engineering may begin fulfilling the terms of the agreement in a timely manner.  In accordance with the grant 
agreement, these funds are being accounted for in a grant project ordinance.  
  
 According to the scope of work the funds will be expended as follows: 
 Resurfacing   $  57,000.00 
 Sidewalk extension Ash Street $  43,000.00 
 Total    $100,000.00 
     
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance amending the State Grants Miscellaneous (G1109). 
Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-58 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR STATE GRANTS 
MISCELLANEOUS (G1109)” 
 

Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24. Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, 
Finance Director.   
 
Council adopted the FY23-24 annual operating budget on June 20, 2023. 
 
Street Paving Division (4136) General Fund 
On October 2, 2023, City Council authorized the award of a street resurfacing project to Daniels, Inc. in the amount of 
$278,150.95.  It was presented that $154,665.91 was to be funded with a fund balance appropriation from the General Fund. 
 
Fire (5120) General Fund 
There was an equipment failure of a fire truck that caused the cab of the truck to open within the garage bay causing damage 
to the truck and the bay door.  The insurance company (VFIS) will provide a rental fire truck to the City for a period of 40 
days at a cost not to exceed $250 per day.  It is necessary to appropriate the cost of the rental in the amount of $10,000, and 
this will be funded with insurance proceeds. 



8 of 11 
 

 
Analysis of Appropriated Fund Balance – General Fund 

 
 
Water Reclamation Facility (4177) Utility Fund 
Mr. Robert Sherman, Public Utilities Director, presented a request to authorize a change order in the amount of $49,395.36 
to Aqua-Aerobics Systems, Inc. for additional unexpected work on the rebuild of sand filter #2.  This will be funded with an 
appropriation of fund balance in the Utility Fund. 
 

Analysis of Appropriated Fund Balance – Utility Fund 

 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance to amend the FY23-24 Operating Budget for the 
General Fund and Utility Fund. Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-59 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR” 
 

Chiller Replacement for Historic City Hall and City Hall Addition. Resolution Adopted. The item was 
presented by Scott Williams, Information Technology Director.  
 
The chiller providing AC to Historic City Hall and City Hall Addition was purchased in 2004 when the City Hall Addition 
was constructed. Two circuit boards that control the chiller have failed, along with some other parts. The boards are 
obsolete, and the manufacturer cannot provide any replacements. No existing supply of boards have been found in supply 
houses or online searches. 
  
The City Manager has authorized the rental and installation of a portable chiller to provide cooling for the building while we 
wait for the new unit. This unit was put in place last week. The approximate cost of the rental unit will be $163,400. The 
current lead time on the new unit is currently eight months.  
 
G.S. 143-129 requires formal bidding when the estimated expenditure of public money is greater than $90,000 for 
apparatus, supplies, materials, or equipment, and further requires that the governing body must award the contract. 
Subsection (e) (3) is an exception that allows procurement through a cooperative purchasing group. 
 
The statute allows the governing body to delegate the authority to award contracts, reject bids, or readvertise bids on behalf 
of the unit to the Manager or other employee. City Council authorized the City Manager or the Finance Director this 
authority on April 19, 2021, in RES 2021-30. 
 
The procurement of the new chiller equipment is being done through the Omnia Partners Cooperative Purchasing Group. 
The City Manager and Finance Director stipulate that the delegated authority limit is $250,000, and contracts over this 
amount shall be presented to City Council for approval and award.  
  
It was recommended that Council approve the following entitled resolution awarding the purchase of a new chiller to Brady 
and approve the creation of a Purchase Order to Brady in the amount of $385,843. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-79 “RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AWARD AND PURCHASE ORDER FOR CHILLER 
REPLACEMENT” 
 

HVAC Unit for Goldsboro Event Center. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Felicia Brown, Parks 
and Recreation Director.  
 
One of the 7.5 ton units that cools and heats the Ballroom at the Goldsboro Event Center has failed and needs to be 
replaced.  The unit that failed is 27 years old. 
 



9 of 11 
 

Goldsboro Event Center requested three (3) quotes and has been successful in obtaining two (2) quotes to replace the 7.5 ton 
unit that heats and cools the Ballroom area.  The lower of the quotes is $19,870.  Money was not budgeted for HVAC 
replacement for FY24.   
  
It was recommended that Council approve the following entitled resolution authorizing staff to purchase a new HVAC unit 
for the Goldsboro Event Center. Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-80 “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO TO REPLACE THE HVAC 
AT THE GOLDSBORO EVENT CENTER” 
 

Veterans Day Parade – Temporary Street Closure. Approved. The item was presented by Mike West, Police 
Chief.  
 
The Annual Veterans Day Parade is a parade to Honor all US Military Veterans from all branches of the U.S. Armed Forces 
for their service.  The parade is organized, coordinated, and sponsored by the Wayne County Veterans & Patriots Coalition.   
 
The street closing request for Saturday, November 11, 2023 is as follows: 
  
Parade Route:  South on Center Street beginning at Ash Street to Pine Street; going around the traffic circle heading north 
on Center Street back to Ash Street, ending at Ash Street. 
Staging Areas (streets closed for staging):  S. Center Street - between Ash and Holly Street; Oak Street - between James and 
William Street; Vine Street - between James and William Street; Beech Street - between Center and William Street. 
Additional Closures recommended by the Police Department to manage traffic flow will encompass:   James Street - 
between Oak and Ash Street; Ash Street - between James and John Street; Mulberry Street - between James and John Street; 
Walnut Street - between James and John Street; Chestnut Street - between James and John Street; Spruce Street - between 
James and John Street; Pine Street - between James and John Street; and Center Street at Elm Street.   
 
Parking Restrictions:  No parallel parking on Center Street from Pine Street to Ash Street. 
 
The time requested for the street closing is from 7:00am to 3:00pm.  Police have indicated that traffic will be restricted from 
7:00am until 10:30am and all traffic stopped at 10:30am.  The actual parade will begin at 11:00am and end at approximately 
12:30pm. 
  
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be addressed:  

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments and Public Works Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the 

event. 
 
It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary street closures of the sections of Pine Street, Spruce Street, 
Center Street, Walnut Street, John Street, Mulberry Street, Ash Street, James Street, Chestnut Street, Oak Street, Vine 
Street, and Beech Street for the Veterans Day Parade route and staging area from 7:00am to 3:00pm on Saturday, November 
11, 2023, as stated above. Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 
 

Change Order No.1 Price Change for the Rehabilitation of Sand Filter #2. Resolution Adopted. The item was 
presented by Bert Sherman, Public Utilities Director. 
 
In the FY23 Budget the rehabilitation for sand filter #2 was approved and resolution adopted in the Council Meeting on 
December 19, 2022, for $201,702.00 (Resolution No. 2022-126).  
    
During the rebuilding of sand filter #2, it has been found that there was extensive damage to the existing fiberglass cell 
dividers. In order to repair the damage, additional parts and labor, beyond that in original scope, is required. The cost for the 
unforeseen repairs would be an additional $49,395.36, which includes sales tax. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing a change order to the contract with 
Aqua-Aerobics Systems Inc. for the additional labor and materials for the unforeseen repairs to sand filter #2 at the WRF. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 
  
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-81 “RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 
FOR THE SAND FILTER REHABIILATION PROJECT” 
 

Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 53: Water and Sewer Systems of the City of Goldsboro’s Code 
of Ordinances Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager.   
 
City Ordinance 53.17, last amended 8-15-83, states the conditions for making water and sewer connections for residential, 
commercial, and industrial property. For residential and commercial property (paragraph (A)(1)): “Access to water and 
sewer lines will be provided to a requesting developer or private property owner outside the city limits only upon the receipt 
and approval of a voluntary petition for annexation by a developer or private property owner who are deemed the same.” 
For industrial property (paragraph (B)(3)): “An industry requesting access to water and sewer lines will be granted such 
access upon execution of a formal agreement with the city to file a petition for voluntary annexation on or before the 
expiration of seven years from the date occupancy begins.”  
 



10 of 11 
 

It is a standard practice for cities to request voluntary annexation upon satisfactory provision of water and sewer services for 
residential, commercial, and industrial property. Changing the industrial property voluntary annexation period from seven 
years from the date occupancy begins to the date occupancy begins would be consistent with local government practices and 
treat residential, commercial, and industrial properties the same. A water and sewer agreement with an industrial customer 
that includes voluntary annexation may also include economic development incentives. 
 
City management recommends City Ordinance 53.17 paragraph (B) for industrial property be modified to state:  
 
(2) “The city will agree to provide access to water and sewer lines to any industry requesting such extension, subject to 
available capacity, provided that industry locates within three miles of the city limits.” 
(3) “An industry requesting access to water and sewer lines will be granted such access upon execution of a formal 
agreement with the city to file a petition for voluntary annexation on or before the expiration of seven years from the date 
occupancy begins.” Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-60 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 53: WATER AND SEWER SYSTEMS OF THE 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES” 
 

Advisory Board and Commission Appointment. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Laura Getz, 
City Clerk.  
 
Citizen involvement is vital to the performance of City government.  There are currently several vacancies on Advisory 
Boards and Commissions.  It is necessary that additional appointments be made to fill these vacancies.  
 
Recommendations for appointments were requested from the respective Boards and Commissions. Applications were also 
solicited from the public.  
 
The City Council met during the Work Session on October 2, 2023, to review vacancies and applications received to fill the 
current vacancies. With this appointment, one position on the Commission on Community Relations and Development, one 
alternate position on the Historic District Commission, one position on the Recreation Advisory Commission, one position 
on the Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities, and one position on the Planning Commission remains.  
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Resolution appointing a member to the Goldsboro Planning 
Commission in the City of Goldsboro. 
 
At the work session, after Council discussion, the Clerk revised the resolution appointing Duke Cox to the Planning 
Commission to add the appointment of Kyle Cramer to the Commission on Community Relations and Development. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 
     
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-82 “RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS” 
 

Departmental Monthly Reports. Accepted as Information. The various departmental reports for September 2023 
were submitted for Council approval. It was recommended that Council accept the reports as information. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes) 

 
        City Manager’s Report.  

City Manager Salmon had no comments.  
 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 
Councilman Batts had no comments. 
 
Councilman Gaylor had no comments.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews shared the following comments: I just want to remind everybody that early voting starts 

this Thursday, so let's make sure we get to the polls. I also want to announce that Bachelor Brothers Funeral establishment is 
doing limos to the polls so if anybody needs a ride or wants to just ride in style to go and vote, you can contact them during 
the week. Monday through Friday would be appointment only and then on the weekends when the polls are open, they will 
run all day. So, that number to make an appointment is 919-988-9077 or you can always contact me via the Councilwoman 
page on Facebook and I can get you in contact with the right people. 

 
Councilman Broadaway shared the following comments: The only thing I said is, the last meeting I appealed for 

everyone to vote if they could and obviously, I wasn't very successful because we only had 13.8% of eligible voters work in 
the last primary. We simply have got to do better as that, as a city and a county. All of us have to, we can't continue to 
function with only 13 or 14% of the people voting on important elections. 

 
Councilwoman Jones shared the following comments: I would just like to say that October is Red Ribbon Month. 

The dates are 23rd to the 31st and it is the largest substance use abuse campaign and the Continentals will be in various 
schools talking about drugs, asking that you talk to your children about drugs and what's going on in their lives. Talk to 
them. See if they got any information about red ribbon and how drugs affect the home and the community and your family.  

 
Mayor Ham shared the following comments: Let me also speak to the voter turnout. It is disappointing. Low 

numbers and we all have spoken about this before but again ladies and gentlemen of the City of Goldsboro, please, please 
make this a priority in your life. It's something that is continually talked about, your constitutional rights and voting is one 
of the most important of those rights so please, when the primary starts next week, go out and vote. The second thing I want 



a 

40, 

p. 

o

a

El ° 

4

44

y

cz

C

y

Y

0

N

d

Y

r

N

O2  

0

j

w

O

N

F." 

0
O

a• 

Cd

Y

coo
yyy

mU

N

0

w

r' 

qj

a)> 

ti

O

O

m

C". 

O

N

U

W -

O

xi

YO

y  

O

to

Y

Y

Y

O

C,

13

y > 

to

N

























Item D



E

Denied





P a g e  3 | 3 
 

 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO PLANNING COMMISSION 

Z-14-23 RED HORSE TOWNES 
WORKSHEET 

   
 

Pursuant to NCGS 160D-604(d), when the Planning Board (Planning Commission) 
is conducting a review of a proposed zoning text or map amendment, the Planning 
Board (Planning Commission) shall advise and comment on whether the proposed 
action is consistent with the City of Goldsboro Land Use Plan. The Planning Board 
(Planning Commission) must provide the City of Goldsboro City Council with a 
written recommendation that addresses plan consistency or inconsistency and other 
matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board (Planning Commission).  

 
Consistency Statement: The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission finds the 
proposed conditional rezoning to be inconsistent with the Medium Residential land 
use designation. The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission finds that the 
conditional rezoning request is reasonable and in best public interest due to the fact 
that residential development of these properties would not be out of character with 
the overall residential nature of the surrounding area and that this development 
would aid in providing housing to the City of Goldsboro. The City of Goldsboro 
Planning Commission recommends approval to the City of Goldsboro City Council 
with the inclusion of the staff recommended conditions. 
 
Voting Record for Recommendation:  
 
 
Yes        6                         No       0 

 
 
Inconsistency Statement: The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission finds the 
proposed conditional rezoning to be inconsistent with the Medium Density 
Residential land use designation and finds that this conditional rezoning, if 
executed, would have a negative impact on the public. The City of Goldsboro 
Planning Commission deems this proposed conditional rezoning to not be 
appropriate and does not recommend approval to the City of Goldsboro City 
Council. The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission finds the proposed 
conditional rezoning to be inconsistent with the land use plan. 

 
Voting Record for Recommendation: 
 

 
Yes                                   No  

        
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023 – 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND COMPREHENSIVE LAND 
USE MAP OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
WHEREAS, after notice duly given according to law, a public hearing was held before the City 

Council at a regular meeting held in the City Council Chambers, 214 N. Center St. in the Historic City 
Hall building, on Monday, October 2, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., for the purpose of considering and discussing 
the passing of an ordinance amending the Official Zoning Map and the Comprehensive Land Use Map of 
the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, and the Planning Commission heard the item on Monday, 
September 25, 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, City Council voted to continue the public hearing at a regular meeting held in the City 

Council Chambers, 214 N. Center St. in the Historic City Hall building, until Monday, November 6, 2023, 
at 7:00 p.m.; and 

 
WHEREAS, John G. Thomas, Sr. PE Thomas Engineering PA on behalf of Nolan Commercial 

Contractors, Inc. has submitted a petition to rezone Tax Parcels 3600864490 and 3600861430 from the 
Residential-12 SF Conditional Zoning District to the Residential-12 Conditional Zoning District limiting 
the use of the property to a townhome development consisting of 89 units; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the proposed rezoning area 

in the Medium Density Residential land use designation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed Residential-12 Conditional Zoning District is inconsistent with the Medium 

Density Residential land use designation and Comprehensive Land-Use Map; and  

WHEREAS, the Residential-12 Zoning District is designed to accommodate both single and multi-
family residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial nature; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed rezoning request is reasonable and, in the public’s best interest due to the 

fact that the proposed development would not be out of character with the overall residential use of the 
surrounding area, would aid in satisfying a growing demand for housing in the City of Goldsboro and the 
availability of City water and sewer  services exist or where plans exist to extend water or sewer services 
exist; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed rezoning request is consistent with the Comprehensive Land-Use Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, after completion of said public hearing and receipt of the recommendation of the 

Planning Commission, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro deems it advisable and for the best 
interest of the City and those residing within its zoning jurisdiction that the Official Zoning Map and 
Comprehensive Land Use Map of the City of Goldsboro be amended as herein below set forth. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 

Carolina: 
1. That the Official Zoning Map and Comprehensive Land Use Map of Goldsboro, North 

Carolina, be and the same is hereby amended by changing: 

From Residential-12 SF Conditional Zoning District to the Residential-12 Conditional 
Zoning District limiting the use of the property to a townhome development consisting of 
89 units. 

From the Medium Density Residential Land Use Map designation to the High Density 
Residential designation. 

Z-14-23 Red Horse Townes (Residential-12 SF Conditional Zoning District to 
Residential-12 Conditional Zoning District 

Wayne County Tax Identification Number: 3600864490/3600861430 

2. The above amendment is effective upon the adoption of this Ordinance.  
 
Adopted this 6th day of November, 2023. 
 

___________________________   
David Ham, Mayor 

Attested by: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk  



COUNTRY

DAY

RD

ESSEXCT

DAVIS 
RD

COMMONSGATE

DR

RAND 

RD

ASHLEY 
AV

WHITNEY

PL

S
O

M
ER

VA
LE

LN

AURO
R

A 
LN

WHEELER

DR

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-14-23 Red Horse Townes
(Residential-12 SF CZ to Residential-12 CZ

Z-14-23
Red Horse Townes
(Residential - 12 SF CZ to Residential - 12 CZ)
East of Country Day Rd. between Wheeler Dr. and Davis Rd. 

3600864490/3600861430

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:



COUNTRY

DAY

RD

ESSEXCT

DAVIS 
RD

COMMONSGATE

DR

RAND 

RD

ASHLEY 
AV

WHITNEY

PL

S
O

M
ER

VA
LE

LN

AURO
R

A 
LN

WHEELER

DR

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-14-23 Red Horse Townes
(Residential-12 SF CZ to Residential-12 CZ

Z-14-23
Red Horse Townes
(Residential - 12 SF CZ to Residential - 12 CZ)
East of Country Day Rd. between Wheeler Dr. and Davis Rd.

3600864490/3600861430

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:



COUNTRY

DAY

RD

ESSEXCT

DAVIS 
RD

COMMONSGATE

DR

RAND 

RD

ASHLEY 
AV

WHITNEY

PL

S
O

M
ER

VA
LE

LN

AURO
R

A 
LN

WHEELER

DR

R-16

R-12

O&I-I

R-16

R-12

R-12
CD

R-16

R-16 R-16

O&I-I
CD

R-16

R-12
R-16

R-12

R-12

R-16

O&I-I

R-12

R-12

R-16

R-16

R-16

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-14-23 Red Horse Townes
(Residential-12 SF CZ to Residential-12 CZ

Z-14-23
Red Horse Townes
(Residential - 12 SF CZ to Residential - 12 CZ)
East of Country Day Rd. between Wheeler Dr. and Davis Rd. 

3600864490/3600861430

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:



COUNTRY

DAY

RD

ESSEXCT

DAVIS 
RD

COMMONSGATE

DR

RAND 

RD

ASHLEY 
AV

WHITNEY

PL

S
O

M
ER

VA
LE

LN

AURO
R

A 
LN

WHEELER

DR

RR_Ag

MDR

MDR

MDR

MDR

MDR

MDR

MDR

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-14-23 Red Horse Townes
(Residential-12 SF CZ to Residential-12 CZ

Z-14-23
Red Horse Townes
(Residential - 12 SF CZ to Residential - 12 CZ)
East of Country Day Rd. between Wheeler Dr. and Davis Rd. 

3600864490/3600861430

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:



F







U

Cj

O

UUi • - 

O

bA

p

a

vUi

O

as

ocncriv
t42'" 

o `

d

c

H °' ° ° ° 

o

as

O

O> 

a. ; — 

by

10

p $, 

cd

O

Ocd
0

N

un

ctiU
N

o

b .

fl

o

b4' 

n

U

cd

cn

3

U

o

N

P

N

cd

U

to

O

U . 

U

O

o

U 

O> 

0

o

U

00

bn

O

O '

d

O

O

O

O '' 

N

3

o

to

N

OO
M¢ ' 

O

y

cd

C

O

O

O

cn

O

O

O

O

bA

CdO
U

cd

4r

NO ' 

UV
U

N

cC

cn

U _ .- 

O

t3" . 

O

U

taq

O

p

U

Ucl
rA

io

oo  

cn '

0

C,

3

rAcd

cnEn
CO

as

U

O

O

p

O

N, 

p

O

p

O

U

O ( 

N

is. .. 

O .: ." 

O

N> 

N

N

OCd

U

O

O

O

a `

ncn

O' 

7

s0. ` 

O

O

cd

b 

r

t; 

O

N  

U , 

U  

t4

cd

A

to

0  , 

q

v 

s0

b'  . 

C,

3

b

m :

b —,

d;

b

o  

o

U

Ln

bn ° 

M • 

inn

F ° 

C/] ( 

Q

o 

n

U ° • ° 

O° 

1. •., 

rOi

O

x° 

W

4

U

o

U

3

o

O

o

o

cd

b

o

U

b

U

U

p

s" -

O

bn

4

r

r-+ 

U

U

cd

N

cd

U

3

U 

4, 

U

O

U

O

bn

U } 

cd

l 

is

O

cn

3 ' 

U

v) 

cn

U

0 ,.._, " 

cn

N

cn

U ¢ •" ( 

o00
0

to 

O

o

O

U

o

Cd

o

O

O

U

Z

cd

U

U

U

N

O

10

Cd

O

cd

E

4

p

V1

cd

N ° 

C/

U

d

x

N

d

b

d

ao i

d

d

d° 

d

Q

d ° 

d° ' 

d

cd

d

U

o

W >, 

W

o

W

W

WW
W

W

opo ° 

R' 

R' 

a 

v

C 

o >' ° 

R' 

R' 

v

s. 

a' 

W

o

U

o

o

M

W .

c

U

W

W

W ° 

t

Q

o

o

p

U, 

vi

x

t1, 

b

Q. _ 

W

4. 

4-
1." 

U ." 

O

O

W

U

cd

m

bn

ul>, ° ' 

b

o ° > ° . , 

Q. 

as . 

a •.. 

as

o

o

o

as

o

as °' 

as

as

o

U

x

Uo

U

O

a

re

al

U

3

0

U

Q. 

w

Q, 

bn

U)  

N

Cd

v

O

LicdrA
Cd

or, 

U

VU

OC7

x

N

0. 

C,

j

G> 

O

o

tb

o

to

rA 

U

ed

ran

fx

e

H

cz

C

w

N



0 NMI' tn
r- t - 

00NMNttnr00tnNOOtnMtn
t- t - 

00N

N

N

58



2775

2746

181

2816

109

191

126

103

108

161

112

143

2844

126

110

155

129

2824

142

152

2801 W

2808

160

105

119

S

US

13

HWY

S
US

11
7

HW
Y

S
US

11
7

HW
Y

FIVE POINTS RD

S US
13 HWY

GENOA
RD

CAROLINA ST

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-15-23 Royal Farms 
RA-20, CS, LI to HB CZ

Z-15-23 
Royal Farms
RA-20, CS, LI to HB CZ
Northwest side of US-117 between US HWY 13 south 
and Carolina Street

2587753560,2587754563, 2587754329, 2587754313, 2587753294 

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:



S

US

13

HWY

S
US

11
7

HW
Y

S
US

11
7

HW
Y

FIVE POINTS RD

S US
13 HWY

GENOA
RD

CAROLINA ST

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-15-23 Royal Farms 
RA-20, CS, LI to HB CZ

Z-15-23 
Royal Farms
RA-20, CS, LI to HB CZ
Northwest side of US-117 between US HWY 13 south 
and Carolina Street

2587753560,2587754563, 2587754329, 2587754313, 2587753294 

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:



2775

2746

181

2816

109

191

126

103

108

161

112

143

2844

126

110

155

129

2824

142

152

2801 W

2808

160

105

119

S

US

13

HWY

S
US

11
7

HW
Y

S
US

11
7

HW
Y

FIVE POINTS RD

S US
13 HWY

GENOA
RD

CAROLINA ST

GB

GB

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-15-23 Royal Farms
RA-20, CS, LI to HB CZ

Z-15-23 
Royal Farms
RA-20, CS, LI to HB CZ
Northwest side of US-117 between US HWY 13 south 
and Carolina Street

2587753560,2587754563, 2587754329, 2587754313, 2587753294 

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:



2775

2746

181

2816

109

191

126

103

108

161

112

143

2844

126

110

155

129

2824

142

152

2801 W

2808

160

105

119

S

US

13

HWY

S
US

11
7

HW
Y

S
US

11
7

HW
Y

FIVE POINTS RD

S US
13 HWY

GENOA
RD

CAROLINA ST

MDR

MU
Industrial

MDR

MDR

Industrial

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-15-23 Royal Farms
RA-20, CS, LI to HB CZ

Z-15-23 
Royal Farms
RA-20, CS, LI to HB CZ
Northwest side of US-117 between US HWY 13 south 
and Carolina Street

2587753560,2587754563, 2587754329, 2587754313, 2587753294 

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:



© 2023 Microsoft Corporation © 2023 Maxar ©CNES (2023) Distribution Airbus DS © 2023 TomTom 

8

13

7

7

15

·

·

H:\CFitzgerald\Royal Farms\RF 520 - Dudley NC\RF 520 (Initial DD Phase Concept Plan)\RF 520 - PBASE.dwg

1

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

N/A
1"=25'

14

c 
   

B
ow

m
an

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 G

ro
up

, L
td

.

P
ho

ne
: (

54
0)

 3
71

-0
26

8

Fa
x:

 (5
40

) 3
71

-3
47

9

bo
w

m
an

.c
om

B
ow

m
an

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 G

ro
up

, L
td

.
13

00
 C

en
tra

l P
ar

k 
B

lv
d

Fr
ed

er
ic

ks
bu

rg
, V

irg
in

ia
 2

24
01

W
AY

N
E 

C
O

U
N

TY
,  

N
O

R
TH

 C
AR

O
LI

N
A

VO
TI

N
G

 P
R

EC
IN

C
T 

16

11
9 

US
 1

3 
SO

UT
H,

 D
UD

LE
Y,

 N
C 

28
33

3

CVF CVF

SEPTEMBER 2023

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 F

E
A

S
IB

IL
IT

Y
 P

LA
N

LTE

2



69
.2

' B
LD

G
. T

IE

63.1'

BLDG. TIE

US HIGHWAY 117
VARIABLE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

NCDOT PROJECT: 8.1286004
DB 433, PG 95

CAROLINA STREET

60' PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-W
AY

M
B 6, PG 82

99.7

100.7

101.54

99.5
101.13

100.7
99.1

100.3

100.2100.4

99.5
100.0

100.46

99.6

99.3

MKP COMM

99.96

EM

W

MKP
GAS

98
.7

98.0
98.298.7

99.3

99.54

98
.28

S

MKP

97.1

97
.3

96.8

10
3.1

10
7.2

10
6.

6

106.1

105.9

106.7
106.5

106.0

105.7

106.0
106.1

105.9

105.7

10
5.9

106.0

10
6.

6

106.6 106.6
(6) MBX

MKP

10
4.

9

100.8

101.4101.7

101.6
101.4 101.1

100.7

10
5.7

10
5.6

10
6.7

10
2.1

10
1.8

10
1.7

10
1.4

10
1.0

10
1.0

10
0.9

10
0.4

10
5.8

10
4.9 10

2.6 10
2.0

10
2.1

10
1.8

10
1.8

10
1.7

10
1.6

10
2.4

10
2.6

10
4.3

10
4.1

(2)ELEC.
STUB

(3)ELEC.
STUB

99
.89

EM

10
1.2

100.9

100.6

10
1.8

EM

W

O
HE

O
HE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

O
HE

O
HE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

O
HE

O
HE

OHE

OHE

W

W

W

W W W W W W W W W W W

W

W

W

W

W

OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE

X
X

X

X X X X X X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X X X

O
H

E
O

H
E

O
H

E
O

H
E

OHE

OHE
X

X

X

OHE OHE OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

O
HE

IE: 104.38 15"RCP
IE: 104.00

3' CLF

6' WDF

3'
 C

LF
3'

 C
LF

3' CLF 3' CLF

3'
 C

LF

3'
 C

LF

FIRE PITCONC.

CONCRETE
MEDIAN

15"RCPIE: 101.75
IE: 101.53

15"RCP

IE:99.35

IE: 99.30

MONF

PPF(1")

3' C
LF

3' CLF

MONF

IPF(1")

7' CLF

3' CLF

15"RCP IE: 97.72

IE: 98.18

15"RCP

IE: 96.86

15"RCP

IE: 98.12

IE: 98.24

15"RCP
 CONCRETE DRIVE

IE: 98.28

IE: 98.31

IPF(1")
ON LINE

19.8

19.267.9

24.0

39.5

2.0

28.4

26.0

17.1

43.4

15.1

5.2
2.9

17.0

5.6

18.3

10.4

18.3

11.5

22.4

24.8

18.9

20.4

12.2

30.4

12.2 4.1

37.3

31.0

37.3

4.7

19.2

21
.1

20.5

32
.1

16.5

12
.4

48.2

28
.2

29.2

11
.8

5.2

16
.1

24.2

16
.1

5.8

11
.8

5.8

28
.2

ONE STORY BLOCK

AND FRAME

FRAME

STG

ONE STORY

BRICK #129

FRAME
BLDG.

CARPORT

FRAME
GARGE

CARPORT CARPORT

DECK

ONE STORY FRAME
#2808

3' CLF
D

EC
K

CONC. STOOP

CARPORT

CARPORT

28.3

24
.7

DECK

24
.7

8.9

METAL BLDG.
(ICE MACHINE)

DECK

COVERED

12.6

COV.

CONC.

8.3

16

17.6'

BLDG.

TIE

CONC. ISLAND
AND PAD

CONC. ISLAND
AND PAD

101.22

100.66

100.37

101.02

100.58

100.24

100.19

100.25

100.64

100.86

100.54

99.57

99.98

100.17
100.34

100.10

99.67

99.99
99.79

99.77

99.14

99.13

99.32

99.22

99.36
99.30

99.56

99.10

99.72

99.40

98.90

98.44

99.5099.73

99.71

99.71

99.66

99.34

99.38

99.66

100.49100.98

100.23

99.90

99.00

99.20

100.18

100.54

102.10102.51

101.20

100.57

100.95

100.90

101.12

101.27

101.97
103.13103.61

99.91

100.18101.07

100.77102.02

102.36103.57

103.23104.29

104.55105.58

105.29

104.82106.04

106.40

106.68107.88

107.60

107.30

105.05

105.14
104.00

103.98

103.35

103.36
103.29

103.24

101.44101.42
101.40

101.24

101.33

101.04
101.13

101.23

100.98

100.96

100.35
100.30

100.45

102.56 102.50

102.46

104.72

104.68

101.25

100.63

100.86

100.28

100.31
100.39

100.43

99.58

99.59

99.79

100.15
100.13

99.80

100.17

99.66

99.66

99.44

99.98

101.02

105.33 105.26

105.32
104.71

104.70

105.16

D
IR

T 
R

O
AD

DIRT ROAD

D
IR

T 
R

O
AD

US HIGHW
AY 13

VARIABLE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-W
AY

PIN #2587752380
LOT 13

MB 6, PG 82
OUTLAW MOBILE HOME INC

DB 3506, PG 652
#103 CAROLINA STREET

PIN #2587752487
LOT 7

MB 6, PG 82
BASS DEVELOPMENT INC

DB 3309, PG 309
S US 13 HWY

 PIN #2587753560
(TRACT 5)

LOT 8
MB 6, PG 82

PC D, SLIDE 191
M.B. PRICE

DB 425, PG 339
#129 S US 13 HWY

AREA: 12,779 SQ.FT.
OR 0.293 ACRE

PIN #2587754313
(TRACT 1)

LOT 10
MB 6, PG 82

PC D, SLIDE 191
BENJAMIN CARL PRICE AND

CONNIE LIPPERT PRICE
DB 728, PG 458
S US 117 HWY

AREA: 21,657 SQ.FT.
OR 0.497 ACRE

PIN #2587754329
(TRACT 1)

PART OF LOT 9
MB 6, PG 82

PC D, SLIDE 191
BENJAMIN CARL PRICE AND

CONNIE LIPPERT PRICE
DB 728, PG 458
S US 117 HWY

7.6
13.14.

16.5

CONC.
PAD

FFE:
105.30

FFE: 107.47

FFE: 103.33

FFE: 101.06

FFE: 100.71

GRAVEL DRIVE

PPF(1") PIN #2587751223
LOT 15

MB 6, PG 82
PC D, SLIDE 191

PIN #2587751296
LOT 14

MB 6, PG 82
PC D, SLIDE 191

#105 CAROLINA STREET

S 
50

°3
9'0

4"
 E

  1
02

.1
8'

S 12°01'34" W  158.64'S 11°18'12" W  220.00' TOTAL

N
 7

8°
41

'4
8"

 W
  1

55
.5

8'

S 67°48'12" W
5.30'

N 11°18'12" E  191.56' TOTAL

N 67°48'12" E
13.07'

N 22°11'48" W
  160.00'

N 68°10'15" E  178.20' TOTAL

PIN #2587753294
(TRACT 2)

LOT 11
MB 6, PG 82

PC D, SLIDE 191
BENJAMIN CARL PRICE AND

CONNIE LIPPERT PRICE
DB 787, PG 180

#2808 S US 117 HWY
AREA: 12,806 SQ.FT.

OR 0.294 ACRE

15.5'
BLDG.

TIE

41
.2

'
BL

D
G

. T
IE

62.0'

BLDG.

TIE

4.
0'

BL
D

G
.

TI
E

N 67°52'01" E  201.20' TIE

TOTAL AREA SURVEYED:
71,031 SQ.FT. OR 1.630 ACRES±

N 67°47'13" E  80.00' TIE

MONF

105

105

105

105

105
105

100
100

100

100

10
0

100

10
0

100

100

100

100

100

NORTH 13
NORTH 117
SOUTH 117

GOLDSBORO
MT. OLIVE

YIELD

SOUTH 117

CAROLINA
STREET

12" BLF

15" BLF

14" BLF
4" BLF

8" BLF30" BLF

11" BLF4" BLF
7" BLF

5" BLF

6" BLF

12" BLF

18" BLF

33" BLF

6" BLF

15" BLF

15" BLF
16" BLF

IRS(#5)IRS(#5)

IRS(#5)

IRS(#5) IRS(#5)

IRS(#5)

FRAME GARAGE
AND CARPOT

21
0.

8 
SA

NI
TA

RY

SE
W

ER
 M

AN
HO

LE
 T

O

SA
NI

TA
RY

 S
EW

ER
M

AN
HO

LE

22
8.6

 S
ANITA

RY S
EW

ER

MANHOLE
 TO

 S
ANITA

RY

SEW
ER M

ANHOLE

SMH #1230
RIM: 98.16
IN 12" PVC IE: 91.16
OUT 15" PVC IE: 91.11

POINT OF BEGINNING
N=575555.06
E=2287543.89

CONTROL CORNER
N=575553.58

E=2287299.45

SMH #1567
RIM: 101.14
IN 12" PVC IE: 93.99

S

SMH #1563
RIM: 98.59
OUT 15" PVC IE: 88.19 S

S

S

S

S

S

S

E17

CONCRETE DRIVE

CONC.
PAD

PIN #2587754563
(TRACT 3 AND TRACT 4)

M.B. PRICE
DB 728, PG 456
DB 319, PG 365
DB 319, PG 367
DB 299, PG 171
S US 117 HWY

AREA: 23,789 SQ.FT.
OR 0.546 ACRE

BENCHMARK: #100
(#5) REBAR SET

ELEVATION = 98.70'

82.93' 108.63'

80.00'

98.20'

140.00'80.00'

N
 7

8°
41

'4
8"

 W
  1

60
.0

0'

N
 7

8°
41

'4
8"

 W
  1

12
.6

0'

N 67°48'12" E  80.00' TOTAL N 22°11'48" W
  159.49'43.76'

36.24'

DATE:  08/31/2023SCALE: 1" = 30'

V:\100526 - Royal Farms Store #520 Dudley NC\100526-01-001 (SUR) - Royal Farms Store #520Dudley NC\Survey\Plats\Boundary\100526-01-001 ALTA Survey

TASK: SURVEY DATE:

BY: CHK: 

OF

DWG:

BCG PROJECT NO: 

REVISION

SHEET

QC:

F-1445
   

V:\100526 - Royal Farms Store #520 Dudley NC\100526-01-001 (SUR) - Royal Farms Store #520Dudley NC\Survey\Plats\Boundary\100526-01-001 ALTA Survey

00003 08/23 - 08/25/2023

WTC

1 1100526-01-001

JPP

ALTA / NSPS SURVEY OF:
1.626 ACRES±

PROPERTY OWNED BY
M.B. PRICE, BENJAMIN CARL
PRICE AND CONNIE LIPPERT

PRICE
PIN ##2587754313, #2587754329, #2587753294,

#2587754563 AND #2587753560
TOWN OF MAR-MAC,

WAYNE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
PREPARED FOR
TWO FARMS, INC

REFERENCES
1. PLAT PREPARED BY: C. BEEMS

RECORDED: FEBRUARY 21, 1955
PLAT CABINET D, SLIDE 191
PLAT BOOK 6, PAGE 82

2. DEED BOOK 299, PAGE 171

3. DEED BOOK 728, PAGE 458

4. DEED BOOK 787, PAGE 180

5. DEED BOOK 433, PAGE 95

6. NCDOT PROJECT: 8.1286004

VICINITY MAP
SCALE: 1" = 600'

NOTES
1. THE SURVEYED PROPERTY DELINEATED HEREON IS LOCATED IN WAYNE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA AS

TMS ##2587754313, #2587754329, #2587753294, #2587754563 AND #2587753560.

2. THE SURVEYED PROPERTY IS CURRENTLY IN THE NAME OF M.B. PRICE, BENJAMIN CARL PRICE AND CONNIE
LIPPERT PRICE RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 299, PAGE 171, DEED BOOK 728, PAGE 458 AND DEED BOOK 787,
PAGE 180 IN THE ROD OFFICE OF WAYNE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA.

3. BOUNDARY INFORMATION AS SHOWN HEREON IS BASED ON A FIELD SURVEY PERFORMED BY BOWMAN
CONSULTING GROUP, LTD. ON 08/23 - 08/25/2023. SURVEY REPRESENTS A SURVEY OF OCCUPATION USING
EVIDENCE FOUND AND REFERENCES SHOWN.

4. UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN IS BASED ON FIELD EVIDENCE AS IDENTIFIED BY NC811 AND
FIELD SURVEY BY BOWMAN CONSULTING GROUP ON 08/23 - 08/25/2023. CONSIDERABLE EFFORT HAS BEEN
MADE TO DETERMINE THE LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES. SOME LOCATIONS ARE ACTUAL FIELD
MEASUREMENTS AND SOME ARE TAKEN FROM UTILITY RECORDS. THIS PLAN DOES NOT WARRANT THAT
UTILITIES ARE SHOWN ACCURATELY NOR THAT ALL UTILITIES ARE SHOWN. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL UTILITIES PRIOR TO BEGINNING DIGGING
OPERATIONS. CALL PALMETTO UTILITIES PROTECTION SERVICE AT 1-888-721-7877 A MINIMUM OF 3
WORKING DAYS BEFORE DIGGING. ANY UTILITIES DAMAGED OR DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL
BE RESTORED TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE. ADDITIONALLY, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM THE CONNECTION POINTS OF NEW UTILITIES TO EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR
TO BEGINNING NEW CONSTRUCTION.

NOTE:
ONLY THE UNDERGROUND WATER LINE WAS MARK ON SUBJECT PROPERTIES AT THE TIME OF SURVEY.

5. THE SURVEYED PROPERTIES AS SHOWN HEREON ARE SUBJECT TO ALL COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF
RECORD AND THOSE RECORDED HEREWITH. BOWMAN CONSULTING GROUP, LTD. WAS PROVIDED WITH A
COPY OF FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NUMBER NCFA23-2661 , EFFECTIVE
JUNE 30, 2023, AT 8:00 AM, LAST REVISED ___________, FOR TITLE INSURANCE, AND SCHEDULE B - SECTION
II EXCEPTIONS ARE ADDRESSED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT REVIEW. NOT ALL DOCUMENTS REFERENCED IN
THE TITLE PACKAGE WERE PROVIDED FROM THE TITLE COMPANY.

6. THE SURVEYED PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE X AS SHOWN ON FEMA FLOOD
INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR WAYNE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER 3720258700K,
EFFECTIVE DATE 06/20/2018.

7. THE LOCATION OF ALL VISIBLE BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED ON THE
SURVEYED PROPERTY, WHICH HAS BEEN CAREFULLY ESTABLISHED BY THE CLASSIFICATION AND
SPECIFICATIONS FOR CADASTRAL SURVEYS, ARE CORRECTLY SHOWN AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY.

8. ALL EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY APPARENT FROM A CAREFUL PHYSICAL INSPECTION OF THE
SURVEYED PROPERTY, OR AS IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE B - SECTION II OF THE COMMITMENT FOR TITLE
INSURANCE ARE CORRECTLY SHOWN UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

9. THERE ARE NO VISIBLE ENCROACHMENTS ON ADJOINING PREMISES, STREETS OR EASEMENTS, BY VISIBLE
BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, NOR VISIBLE ENCROACHMENTS ON SAID PROPERTY BY VISIBLE STRUCTURES
SITUATED ON ADJOINING PREMISES EXCEPT AS SHOWN.

10. NORTH MERIDIAN INFORMATION AS SHOWN HEREON IS BASED ON NORTH CAROLINA STATE PLANE
COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD 83 US SURVEY FOOT, DISTANCES SHOWN ARE HORIZONTAL "GROUND
DISTANCES".

11. AS OF THE DATE OF THE SURVEY, THERE WAS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING
WORK, BUILDING CONSTRUCTION OR BUILDING ADDITIONS ON THE REMAINING SUBJECT PROPERTIES.

12. AS OF THE DATE OF THE SURVEY, THERE WAS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF WETLAND DELINEATION WITHIN
THE PROPERTY.

13. AS OF THE DATE OF THE SURVEY, THERE WAS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PARKING SPACES WITHIN THE
PROPERTY.

14. AS OF THE DATE OF THE SURVEY, A ZONING REPORT HAS NOT BEEN PROVIDED.

15. ADDRESS: #119 SOUTH US HIGHWAY 13, #129 SOUTH US HIGHWAY 13 AND #2808 SOUTH US HIGHWAY 117.

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION
TO: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY AND TWO FARMS, INC

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY
ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(a), 7(a), 8, 11(a), 13, 14, 16, 17
AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD WORK WAS COMPLETED ON 08/23 - 08/25/2023.

I ALSO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE
UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTIONS AS SHOWN ON PLAT), THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION OR POSITIONAL
ACCURACY IS 1: 10000 +; THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.

___________________________________________________________________
JOHN P. PETRUCCO                                                       DATE
NORTH CAROLINA PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR
LICENSE NO. L - 5346                                   

ADVANCE COPY

TITLE COMMITMENT SCHEDULE B-SECTION II REVIEW
I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT (I) I HAVE EXAMINED TITLE DOCUMENTS FOR THE PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED
PROVIDED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NUMBER NCFA23-2661 , EFFECTIVE
DATE JUNE 30, 2023 AT 8:00 AM, LAST REVISED ______________ AND (II) WITH RESPECT TO THE ITEMS
IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE B - SECTION II WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY.

1. Any defect, lien, encumbrance, adverse claim, or other matter that appears for the first time in the Public Records
or is created, attaches, or is disclosed between the Commitment Date and the date on which all of the Schedule B,
Part I-Requirements are met.  *Not a survey matter.

2.  (a) Taxes or assessments that are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes
or assessments on real property or by the Public Records; (b) proceedings by a public agency that may result in
taxes or assessments, or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of such agency or by the
Public records. *Not a survey matter.

3. Any facts, rights, interests, or claims that are not shown by the Public Records but that could be ascertained by an
inspection of the Land or that may be asserted by persons in possession in the Land.  *Not a survey matter.

4. Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records. *Not a survey matter.

5. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that would be
disclosed by an accurate and complete land survey of the Land and not shown by the Public Records.

6. Taxes and assessments for the year 2023 and subsequent years, not yet due and payable.
Tax Parcel Number: 2587754329 (S. US 117 HWY)

2022 Wayne County, North Carolina real estate property taxes in the base amount of $260.81 were paid on
January 5, 2023. Tax bills are usually generated in July each year and due on or before September 1st. Taxes are
delinquent on January 6th. A 2% penalty is applied for the month of January. After February, a 0.75% penalty is
applied monthly until taxes are paid.  *Not a survey matter.

Tax Parcel Number: 2587754313 (S. US 117 HWY)

2022 Wayne County, North Carolina real estate property taxes in the base amount of $323.25 were paid on
January 5, 2023. Tax bills are usually generated in July each year and due on or before September 1st. Taxes are
delinquent on January 6th. A 2% penalty is applied for the month of January. After February, a 0.75% penalty is
applied monthly until taxes are paid. *Not a survey matter.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION PER TITLE COMMITMENT NCFA23-2661
All that certain lot or parcel of land situate in the County of Wayne, State of North Carolina, and being more
particularly described as follows:

TRACT 1

Beginning at a stake in the Western right-of-way line of U. S. Highway No. 117, said stake being N. 15⁰ 46’ E. 80 feet from
the Northeastern intersectional corner of said highway and Carolina Street, as shown on the map hereinafter referred to, and
runs thence with said right-of-way line N. 15⁰ 46’ E. 140 feet to a stake, the Southeastern corner of the lot of Major Benjamin
Price and wife, Edna Jinnette Price; thence N.  74⁰ 14’ W. with the Price line about 125 feet to a stake in the Southern line
of Lot No. 8 of Genoa Terrace; thence with the Southern line of Lot Nos. 8 and 7 S. 72⁰ 16’ W. about 52 feet to a stake, the
Northeastern corner of Lot No. 13’ thence with the line of Lot No. 13 S. 15⁰ 46’ W. 108.94 feet to a stake, the Northwestern
corner of Lot No. 11; thence with the line of Lot No. 11 S. 74⁰ 14’ E. 160 feet to the point of beginning, and being all of Lot
No. 10 and 60 feet off of the Southern side of Lot 9 of Genoa Terrace according to a map prepared by C. Beems, Registered
Surveyor, in November, 1954, which is recorded in Map Book 6, at Page 82, of the Wayne County Registry. And being the
same property conveyed to the parties of the first part herein by D. J. Rose and wife, Virginia H. Rose, by deed dated
February 5, 1969, which will be found duly recorded in the Wayne County Registry, to which reference is hereby made.

TRACT 2

BEGINNING at a concrete monument in the Western edge of Federal Highway #117, it being at the intersection of the
Western edge of Highway #117 and the Northern edge of Carolina Street, and runs thence with the Northern edge of said
Street N. 74⁰ 14’ W. 155.58 feet to a stake; thence S. 72⁰ 16’ W. 5.30 feet to a stake; thence N. 15⁰ 46’ E. 82.93 feet to a
stake; thence S. 74⁰ 14’ E. 160 feet to a stake in the Western edge of Highway #117; thence with the Western edge of
Highway #117 S. 15⁰ 46’ W. 80 feet to the point or beginning, and being Lot No. 11 of the subdivision known as Genoa
Terrace, as shown on a map thereof recorded in Map Book 6 at Page 82 of the Wayne County Registry.  And being the same
lot of land conveyed to Lester Ingram and wife by Lester G. Davis and wife by deed recorded in Book 693 at page 84 in the
Wayne County Registry.

TRACT 3

BEGINNING at a stake in the line of 117 Highway South from the intersection of 102 Highway, and runs said line N. 15
1/2 E. 165 feet to the curve; thence along the line of the curve westward to the line of 102 Highway; thence with said line S.
72 1/2 W. 165 feet to a stake; thence S. 17 ½ E. 160 feet to a stake; thence S. 74 ½ E. 160 feet to the beginning containing
one acre more or less.
LESS AND EXCEPT from Tract 3 that portion conveyed to the State Highway and Public Works Commission in that Right
of Way Agreement recorded in Book 433, Page 95, Wayne County Register of Deeds.

TRACT 4

Beginning at a stake in the Western right-of-way line of U.S. Highway No. 117, being the Northeastern corner of Lot No.
9 of Genoa Terrace and being the Southeastern corner of the property of Major Benjamin Price and wife, Edna Jinnette
Price, and runs thence with the right-of-way of said highway S. 15⁰ 46’ W. 20 feet to a stake; thence N. 74⁰ 14’ W. about
125 feet to a stake in the Southern line of Lot No. 8 of Genoa Terrace; thence with the line of Lot No. 8 N. 72⁰ 16’ E. about
35 feet to a stake in the Southeastern corner of said Lot No. 8; thence with the Northern line of Lot 9 86 feet to the point of
beginning, and being a 20 foot strip off of the Northern side of Lot No. 9 of Genoa Terrace according to a map prepared by
C. Beems, Registered Surveyor, in November, 1954, which is recorded in Map Book 6, at page 82, of the Wayne County
Registry.

TRACT 5

Being Lot No. 8 of the subdivision known as Genoa Terrace according to a plat hereof prepared by C. Beems, surveyor,
dated September 1, 1954and recorded in Plat Book 6 page 82 in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Wayne County,
reference to which plat is hereby made for a more detailed and complete descriptions.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AS NOW SURVEYED
BEING THE PROPERTY OF M.B. PRICE AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 299 AT PAGE 171, DEED BOOK 319 AT PAGE 365, DEED BOOK 319 AT PAGE 367 AND DEED BOOK 2728 AT PAGE 456 ALL OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY, THE PROPERTY OF
BENJAMIN CARL PRICE AND CONNIE LIPPERT PRICE AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 728 OF DEEDS AT PAGE 458 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY (BEING LOT 10 AND A PORTION OF LOT 9 AS SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT PAGE 82 OF THE WAYNE
COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY), THE PROPERTY OF BENJAMIN CARL PRICE AND CONNIE LIPPERT PRICE AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 787 AT PAGE 180 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY (BEING LOT 11 AS SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT PAGE 82 OF THE
WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY) AND THE PROPERTY OF M.B. PRICE AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 425 AT PAGE 339 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY (BEING LOT 8 AS SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT PAGE 82 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC
REGISTRY) AND TOGETHER IN TOTAL BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A FOUND CONCRETE MONUMENT ON THE WESTERLY LINE OF US HIGHWAY 117 (VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY) BEING THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF THE PROPERTY OF M.B. PRICE AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 299 AT PAGE 171,
DEED BOOK 319 AT PAGE 365, DEED BOOK 319 AT PAGE 367 AND DEED BOOK 2728 AT PAGE 456 ALL OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY, HAVING NC STATE PLANE COORDINATES NAD 83(2011) N:575555.06 E: 2287543.89; THENCE WITH SAID
WESTERLY LINE OF US HIGHWAY 117 THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES AND DISTANCES:
1.) S 12°01'34" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 158.64 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE
2.) S 11°18'12" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 220.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY LINE OF CAROLINA STREET (60' RIGHT-OF-WAY) AND BEING THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF THE PROPERTY OF BENJAMIN CARL PRICE AND CONNIE LIPPERT PRICE
AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 787 AT PAGE 180 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY (BEING LOT 11 AS SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT PAGE 82 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY); THENCE WITH SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF CAROLINA 
STREET THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES AND DISTANCES:
1.) N 78°41'48" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 155.58 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE
2.) S 67°48'12" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 5.30 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE PROPERTY OF OUTLAW MOBILE HOME INC. AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 3506 AT PAGE 652 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY (BEING LOT 13 AS
SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT PAGE 82 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY); THENCE WITH SAID EASTERLY LINE OF OUTLAW MOBILE HOME INC N 11°18'12" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 191.56 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE PROPERTY
OF BASS DEVELOPMENT INC AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 3309 AT PAGE 309 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY (BEING LOT 7 AS SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT PAGE 82 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY); THENCE WITH SAID SOUTHERLY
LINE OF THE PROPERTY OF BASS DEVELOPMENT INC N 67°48'12" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 13.07 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE PROPERTY OF BASS DEVELOPMENT INC AND BEING THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE PROPERTY OF M.B. PRICE AS
RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 425 AT PAGE 339 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY (BEING LOT 8 AS SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT PAGE 82 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY); THENCE WITH SAID LINE N 22°11'48" W FOR A DISTANCE OF
160.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF US HIGHWAY 13 (VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY); THENCE WITH SAID SOUTHERLY LINE US HIOGHWAY 13 N 68°10'15" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 178.20 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFOREMENTIONED
WESTERLY LINE OF US HIGHWAY 117; THENCE WITH SAID WESTERLY LINE OF US HIGHWAY 117 S 50°39'04" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 102.18 FEET TO THE POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 71,0320 SQUARE FEET OR 1.631 ACRES OF LAND,
MORE OR LESS.

ADVANCE

COPY

S

X

10
9

OHE

D
S

INDEX CONTOUR
INTERMEDIATE CONTOUR
EDGE OF PAVEMENT
CURB AND GUTTER
PROPERTY LINE
ADJOINER PROPERTY LINE (NOT SURVEYED)
FENCE LINE

SANITARY SEWER
STORM SEWER

OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

UNDERGROUND COMMUNICATION SERVICE

TRAFFIC CONTROL BOX

TRAFFIC SIGNAL

BENCHMARK

POWER / UTILITY POLE
GUY ANCHOR WIRE

SIGN

ELECTRIC BOX

STORM DRAIN MANHOLE (DMH)
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE (SMH)

WATER VALVE
WATER METER
FIRE HYDRANT

STREET LIGHT / LAMP

LEGEND

E

C

SWALE / DITCH LINE

UNDERGROUND GAS SERVICEG
UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC SERVICEE

UNDERGROUND WATER LINEW

EP
C&G

CALCULATED POINT (NO MONUMENT SET)

PK NAIL FOUND
#5 IRON REBAR SET

IRON REBAR FOUND (SIZE NOTED)IRF

IRS
PKF

GM GAS METER
GAS VALVE 

W

CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUNDMONF

BOLLARD / POST
FLAG POLE
MAILBOX 
MISCELLANEOUS ITEM (AS NOTED)

BROAD LEAF TREE (BLF)

SEPTIC TANK 

MARKER WITNESS POST (MKP)

WELL
WATER MANHOLE

BUILDING

CONCRETE

EM ELECTRIC METER

DIRT ROAD

GRAVEL DRIVE

IRON PIPE FOUND (SIZE NOTED)IPF

HVAC UNIT

NC GRID NAD 83 (2011)

TITLE COMMITMENT SCHEDULE B-SECTION II REVIEW
I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT (I) I HAVE EXAMINED TITLE DOCUMENTS FOR THE PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED
PROVIDED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NUMBER NCFA23-2661 ,
EFFECTIVE DATE JUNE 30, 2023 AT 8:00 AM, LAST REVISED ______________ AND (II) WITH RESPECT TO THE
ITEMS IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE B - SECTION II WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY.

6. CONTINUED:

Tax Parcel Number: 2587754563 (S. US 117 HWY)

2022 Wayne County, North Carolina real estate property taxes in the base amount of $2,274.77 were paid on
January 5, 2023. Tax bills are usually generated in July each year and due on or before September 1st. Taxes are
delinquent on January 6th. A 2% penalty is applied for the month of January. After February, a 0.75% penalty is
applied monthly until taxes are paid. *Not a survey matter.

Tax Parcel Number: 2587753294 (2808 S. US 117 HWY)

2022 Wayne County, North Carolina real estate property taxes in the base amount of $833.14 were paid on
January 5, 2023. Tax bills are usually generated in July each year and due on or before September 1st. Taxes are
delinquent on January 6th. A 2% penalty is applied for the month of January. After February, a 0.75% penalty is
applied monthly until taxes are paid. *Not a survey matter.

Tax Parcel Number: 2587753560 (129 S. US 13 HWY)

2022 Wayne County, North Carolina real estate property taxes in the base amount of $217.08 were paid on
January 5, 2023. Tax bills are usually generated in July each year and due on or before September 1st. Taxes are
delinquent on January 6th. A 2% penalty is applied for the month of January. After February, a 0.75% penalty is
applied monthly until taxes are paid. *Not a survey matter.

7. Any lien or right to a lien, for services, labor, or material heretofore or hereafter furnished, imposed by law and not
shown by the public records. *Not a survey matter.

8. Rights or claims of parties in possession not shown by the public records. *Not a survey matter.

9. Rights of tenants, as tenants only in possession of subject property. *Not a survey matter.

10. Any charges for Municipal services (i.e., water, sewer, correction of nuisance conditions, etc.) are the responsibility
of the parties to this transaction. For information regarding existence of any bills, contact the appropriate municipal
office. *Not a survey matter.

TITLE COMMITMENT SCHEDULE B-SECTION II REVIEW
I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT (I) I HAVE EXAMINED TITLE DOCUMENTS FOR THE PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED
PROVIDED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NUMBER NCFA23-2661 ,
EFFECTIVE DATE JUNE 30, 2023 AT 8:00 AM, LAST REVISED ______________ AND (II) WITH RESPECT TO THE
ITEMS IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE B - SECTION II WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY.

11. No insurance is afforded as to the exact amount of acreage contained in the property described herein.
*Not a survey matter.

12. Any mineral or mineral rights leased, granted or retained by current or prior owners. *Not a survey matter.

13. Title to any portion of said land lying in the bed or banks of any waterway, stream or creek lying within the
bounds of subject property, the rights of upper and lower riparian owners to the free and unobstructed flow of said
waters, without diminution or pollution; and the consequences of any past or future change in the location of said
waters. *Not a survey matter.

14. All matters appearing on Plat recorded in Plat Cabinet D, Slide 191, also identified as Map Book 6, Page 82,
aforesaid records. (Tracts 1, 2, 4 and 5) *As shown on survey.

15. Agreement between Jesse M. Thompson and wife, Catherine O. Thompson, Willie Lancaster and wife, Virginia
Lancaster, William Johnson and wife, Everette Johnson, Cecil McLawhorn and wife, Mildred McLawhorn and
Ben Price and wife, Connie Price, dated March 2, 1983 and recorded on March 8, 1983 in Book 1044, Page 774,
aforesaid records. (Tract 2) *Not a survey matter.

16. Easement from Edna Jinnette Price by Jan B. Price, as Attorney-in-Fact, and Carolina Power & Light Company,
dated February 20, 2008 and recorded on April 10, 2008 in Book 2614, Page 868, aforesaid records. (Tract 3)
*General in nature and cannot be plotted with document provided.

17. Right of Way Agreement between M.B. Price and wife Edna J. Price in favor of State Highway and Public Works
Commission, dated January 31, 1955 and recorded on May 24, 1955 in Book 433, Page 95, aforesaid records.
(Tract 3) *May affect subject property, but cannot be plotted with the document provided.

18. Easement between M.B. Price and wife Edna J. Price in favor of Carolina Power & Light Company, dated
December 31, 1962 and recorded on January 7, 1963 in Book 587, Page 226, aforesaid records. (Tracts 3 & 4)
*General in nature and cannot be plotted with document provided.

19. Easement between M.B. Price and wife Edna J. Price in favor of Carolina Power & Light Company, dated
November 14, 1984 and recorded on June 6, 1985 in Book 1101, Page 735, aforesaid records. (Tracts 3-5)
*General in nature and cannot be plotted with document provided.

BLDG - BUILDING

CLF - CHAIN LINK FENCE

COMM - COMMUNICATION

CONC - CONCRETE

COV - COVERED

ELEC. - ELECTRIC

FFE - FINISH FLOOR ELEVATION

IE - INVERT ELEVATION

PC - PLAT CABINET

RCP - REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE

STG - STORAGE

WDF - WOOD FENCE

SITEUS HIGHWAY 117

US HIGHW
AY 13CAROLINA

STREET

TULANE

STREET

G
EN

O
A

R
O

AD

FIVE PO
IN

TS
R

O
AD

HEREFORD

DRIVE

WOODLAND
CHURCH ROAD

AREA TABULATION:
PIN #2587754313 (TRACT1) AREA: 21,657 SQ.FT. OR 0.497 ACRE ±
PIN #2587753294 (TRACT 2) AREA: 12,806 SQ.FT. OR 0.294 ACRE ±
PIN #2587754563 (TRACT 3 AND TRACT 4) AREA: 23,789 SQ.FT. OR 0.546 ACRE ±
PIN #2587753560 (TRACT 5) AREA: 12,779 SQ.FT. OR 0.293 ACRE ±



G







OO
gc

0

cd

cd  

C', 

cd

7:
1

cd

co

00
O

O ¢+ 

0 —

U

cd

Vl

0

Q] 

O

O  

U i 

U

4h+ 

NO
r

N '

C

b° '

d

O

O

cC

o ; 

iN
o

a ~ > 

cd

o

U

a 

U -

dam

i'

ycdv °? 

Cd

d

N

Q '

C

cd ,, 

9 ' 

p' '

a

j '

d ' 

y ' ~ 

U } 

qq
N

1.

4  

sN 

a) 

ct "

Cl 

D

9 •

y .

b

O

U

p> 

yam. 

p

U

rte- 

b "    

U  

pp •

d

U "

C7 ¢, , 

p ! ¢ " 

U - '

4)  .

r

M 

cd >  

V 

U

N .+ 

C '

i~+ •" ,

j) 

0

4- 

4. 

4-   

O  '~+  

i~. 

w  

O   

vpi    

a) 

tUi

O °

u

ani

b.
A

ani

3

cd

a 

y

y

a 

Z

O

a '

b

v

00

O -

d . ° 

ai

a) 

U °' 

Us
El '

s "'

0 ° ° 

O ° 

0 " 

p -

0. 

b

0 "" ' 

t . 

CA

1:

11

on

N

a

U

U ° 

Z

Ua

U

a  

O    

t

ii

o

o, 

Noy ;   °'  

c' 

r

t

y

r

j

G

4

Z

b ~ 

yj

cd

ami

p

cd

O

y

cd 

C

O

a) 

p, 

b

N

O  '

cF

O

O

U

Pl.

O ~ 

N

O

r- .,  

i"
r . 

N

s, 

O

N

O

U

a) 

o

a

cd

Q

N

cd

cd

cd ~ 

4

U

cd

t . $--

4

4. 

cd

UN , 
o > , 

O

o

C4b ° 
v

m

O

cd

O

N

U

cd ,. 

cd

Ucd

C7 

rn

co

to

Cd > 

o 

333  
v. .°

o•

cd  °

a)'' 

I

rn

CA

I

0~ ' ° 

o

a'~'

d

OV

r- 

a ° 

o.

U

N

Qy ) +

1

nbO
0

d

p ° ° ) 

a) 

O "

Cl >, - "

C!

U

a) 

CO

cd

cd

64

Cd

on

U

cid

a) ., 

a) 

U

0

O° - 

U  .. 

0

o

4=

on

bn

U

d

U ° 

o 

3  

b

ci

o

C. 

o

0

4, " 

P, 

a°

i

O

v

oaN) 

V

po
CU ' "

v ,

pOU

0W °  
uo ° 

v

c

4

a) 

aa) 
O

o

0

N ) 

aa. 

U ) 

0Um
Scn

13

cd

0

En

CZ

p

O

M

00 ." 

U, "

d

b

i -

i

C" " ^ 

Cd •~+ 

bA
S'

iS + 

Q

cd , 

O $" 

N

V] 

V1

x

V] " 

V] " 

V1

V] 

cd

U) ° 

Vl ' ~ 

V1 ' - 

Go

C40

ti '

C

cd

V] 

G." 

a) 

V ° 

z

dux °
N

dN 

dN
d' 

d 

d

a) 

d' 

do
r. 

dQ•~ 

dcd 

d 

d  

d° 

d00

cn

f ( 

W . ~ 

ti

v, 

W ~ 

a) 

a) 

v, 

W  

cd

W

c°) 

R;

o

ami

3

o

U

v 

U

wi

y

pW
U

O

W

o

W

C

W .

m

W

2

W

W

W

Q'

I

W> 

mW
d

W

W

v° 

W° 

O° 

W

c

3

b

U

o1:
1 ° , 

cd ' 

O

O

o

14

U, 

MU
x

U

U

0

a

U

Q

o

o

w

v '

d

0

cd

cd

cd

U.~ 

r+ 

cd

on



MW

0z

N

b

U

U

O

O

cd

cd

U
4. 

O

O

o

4

O

N

Q. 

o3

uOV

403CdOU

N

z

MW

0z

N

b



N
U

S
117

H W
Y

R
O

W
E 

ST

BARDEN

SCOTT

LN

BELFAST

RD

HILLSIDE DR

PE
A

N
U

T 
C

T

O
RO

U
RK

E
CT

SCALE DR

N
W

ILLIAM
ST

BE
LF

AS
T

AV

E US 70 BYP

PR
IN

CE
SS

DR

E
US

70 BYP

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-16-23 Dearing Automotive & Diesel (Residential 16 to 
Highway Business/Office and Institutional 1 Conditional 

Zoning)

Z-16-23
Dearing Automotive & Diesel
(Residential 16 to Highway Business/Office and Institutional 1 
Conditional Zoning)
West side of N US 117 Hwy between Scale Dr and Belfast Rd 
3601-32-1584

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:



N
U

S
117

H W
Y

R
O

W
E 

ST

BARDEN

SCOTT

LN

BELFAST

RD

HILLSIDE DR

PE
A

N
U

T 
C

T

O
RO

U
RK

E
CT

SCALE DR

N
W

ILLIAM
ST

BE
LF

AS
T

AV

E US 70 BYP

PR
IN

CE
SS

DR

E
US

70 BYP

R-16

R-16

NB

R-16

R-16

NB
RM-NC

R-16

R-16

R-16
RM-NC

I-2

R-16

R-16

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-16-23 Dearing Automotive & DieselO&I-I
(Residential 16 to Highway Business /Office and 
Institutional 1 Conditional Zoning)

Z-16-23
Dearing Automotive & Diesel
(Residential 16 to Highway Business/Office and Institutional 1 
Conditional Zoning)
West side of N US 117 Hwy between Scale Dr and Belfast Rd 
3601-32-1584

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:



N
U

S
117

H W
Y

R
O

W
E 

ST

BARDEN

SCOTT

LN

BELFAST

RD

HILLSIDE DR

PE
A

N
U

T 
C

T

O
RO

U
RK

E
CT

SCALE DR

N
W

ILLIAM
ST

BE
LF

AS
T

AV

E US 70 BYP

PR
IN

CE
SS

DR

E
US

70 BYP

MU 2

MU 2 MU 2

MU 2

MU
MU

MU 2

MU 2

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-16-23 Dearing Automotive & Diesel (Residential 16 to 
Highway Business /Office and Institutional 1 Conditional 

Zoning)

Z-16-23
Dearing Automotive & Diesel
(Residential 16 to Highway Business/Office and Institutional 1 
Conditional Zoning)
West side of N US 117 Hwy between Scale Dr and Belfast Rd 
3601-32-1584

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:





H



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 63

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER AND CLERK TO SIGN

THE COST SHARING AGREEMENT WITH HACG

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Goldsboro ( HACG) has or will enter into
contracts with Ocean 10 Security LLC for the provision of TSUNAMI 306 Surveillance Systems
with unlimited and/ or " uncapped" internet connectivity and optional add- on license plate
recognition cameras at West Haven, Fairview, Lincoln, and Park Court Developments; and

WHEREAS, the HACG and the City agree that the presence of such surveillance systems
is important to both the City and HACG for the purpose of preventing and solving crimes and
criminal activity; and

WHEREAS, the HACG and the City have agreed to share the cost of such surveillance systems
as set forth in the Agreement, beginning the

1st

day of November, 2023. The City shall not have any
ownership interest in, leasehold interest in, responsibility for maintenance, insuring or security or
protection of, nor any direct financial responsibility, for any of the said surveillance systems or any
component thereof but shall have access to the camera video. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that the City Manager and Clerk are authorized to sign the Cost Sharing
Agreement with the Housing Authority of the City of Goldsboro ( HACG). 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
6th

day of November, 2023

Attested by: 

Holly Jiolnes, Deputy City Clerk

M71 vft_, 
Ms







I



   
 
 

    
  
  
 
 
 

APPLICATION FOR 
 

COMMUNITY HOUSING DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION 
(CHDO) 

 
CERTIFICATION 

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 
City of Goldsboro 

 Community Relations and Development 
214 N. Center Street 
Goldsboro, NC 27530 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  



APPLICATION FOR COMMUNITY HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
ORGANIZATION (CHDO) CERTIFICATION  

  
 

  
  

Table of Contents  
                      

I.     Introduction ................................................................................................................ 1 

II.    Definition of a CHDO ................................................................................................ 1 

III.  The CHDO Set-Aside ................................................................................................. 3 

IV.   Alternative CHDO Roles ............................................................................................ 3 

V.    Process for CHDO Certification ................................................................................. 5 

VI.  Technical Assistance Available to CHDOs ................................................................. 5 

 

Appendices  
Appendix A: CHDO Definition (from 24 CFR 92.2)  
Appendix B: CHDO Checklist  
Appendix C: CHDO Staff Experience & Capacity Narrative Checklist  
Appendix D: Board of Directors Chart  
 Appendix E: Financial and Program Management   
Appendix F: Certification of Low-Income Representation/Description of  
           Process for Obtaining Low-Income Input  
Appendix G: Model Public Input Resolution  



 

1  
    CHDO Certification Application 2023  

I. INTRODUCTION  
    

The National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 (the Act) created the HOME 
Investment Partnerships Program (HOME).  The Act’s objectives include 
promoting partnerships between states, local governments and nonprofit 
organizations and increasing the capacity of nonprofit organizations to develop and 
manage affordable housing.  

  
To help achieve these objectives the Act requires that participating jurisdictions 
(PJs) set aside at least 15% of their HOME funds for housing that is developed, 
owned, or sponsored by Community Housing Development Organizations 
(CHDOs).  CHDOs are a specific type of nonprofit organization defined in the 
HOME Final Rule (24 CFR Part 92).  

  
This application for CHDO certification covers the following topics:  

1) Provides the HOME Program definition of a CHDO;  
2) Outlines the criteria for qualifying as a CHDO;  
3) Describes the eligible uses of CHDO set-aside funds;  
4) Describes the City of Goldsboro process for certifying CHDOs;   
5) Provides supplemental material for organizations interested in becoming a 

CHDO and information on technical assistance available to nonprofits; and  
6) Provides reference materials as appendices.  
  

II. DEFINITION OF A CHDO  
  

The HOME Program definition of a CHDO is found in 24 CFR 92.2 (see Appendix 
A of this Application).  
  

The definition outlines the criteria that an organization must meet to qualify as a 
CHDO. The criteria focus on the legal status of the organization, its capacity and 
experience, the organizational structure, and the relationship of the CHDO to for-
profit entities. The CHDO Checklist (see Appendix B) outlines these criteria in 
detail.   
 
The following is a summary of some of the key criteria to qualify as a CHDO: 
 
Legal Status  
 
1) The CHDO must be organized under state law.  
2) One of the purposes of the organization must be the provision of decent 

housing that is affordable to low-income and moderate-income people.  
3) The CHDO must have nonprofit status under §501(c)(3) or (4) of the Internal 

Revenue Code of 1986.  
4) The organization must have a clearly defined geographic service area that is 

not the whole state.  



 

2  
    CHDO Certification Application 2023  

Capacity and Experience  
 
This application has been updated to reflect the 2013 HOME Appropriation Act 
Capacity and Experience Requirements.  
  
Experience   
 

1) The CHDO must have at least one year of experience serving the community.  
2) The organization must show that its key staff members have the capacity to 

implement housing activities.  
3) The CHDO must have financial management systems that meet the federal 

standards outlined in 24 CFR 84.21.  The most recent version of OMB 
Circulars A-110 (24 CFR 84) and A-133 may be obtained at CIRCULAR A-
110 REVISED 11/19/93 As Further Amended 9/30/99 | The White House 
(archives.gov) or by contacting the City of Goldsboro (The City).  

4) The CHDO must have completed at least one CHDO-eligible development in  
the past two (2) years.   
Eligible developments are:  

• Acquisition and/or rehabilitation of rental housing;  
• Construction of new rental housing;  
• Acquisition and/or rehabilitation of properties for home ownership; 

and  
• New construction for home ownership.  

  
Organizational Structure  
 
1) At least one-third of the organization’s board of directors must be 

representatives of the low-income community; no more than one-third can be 
representatives of the public sector.  

2) The CHDO must also involve low-income program beneficiaries in affordable 
housing project design.  (This is in addition to serving on the board of 
directors.)  

  
Relationship with For-Profit Entities  
  
The CHDO cannot be controlled by for-profit organizations or individuals (See 
Appendix A).  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://obamawhitehouse.archives.gov/omb/circulars_a110/
https://obamawhitehouse.archives.gov/omb/circulars_a110/
https://obamawhitehouse.archives.gov/omb/circulars_a110/


 

3  
    CHDO Certification Application 2023  

III. THE CHDO SET-ASIDE  
  
At least 15% of the City’s HOME allocation must be invested in housing 
developed, owned, or sponsored by a CHDO (see Section IV).  Other nonprofit 
organizations not meeting CHDO criteria can receive HOME funding for projects 
they develop, own, or sponsor, but these projects do not count toward the CHDO 
set-aside.  CHDOs and other nonprofits can also receive HOME funds as a 
subrecipient, but these funds also do not count toward the 15% CHDO set-aside.  
  
Eligible and Ineligible CHDO Set-Aside Activities  
  
Only certain types of activities count toward the 15% set-aside. The eligible 
activities (when carried out by a CHDO acting as a developer, owner, or sponsor) 
are:  
1) Acquisition and/or rehabilitation of rental housing;  
2) Construction of new rental housing;  
3) Acquisition and/or rehabilitation of properties for home ownership;  
4) New construction for home ownership.  
  
The following activities are not eligible for the CHDO set-aside:  
1) Tenant-based rental assistance;  
2) Rehabilitation of owner-occupied properties; and 
3) Direct home buyer assistance for existing housing (not developed, owned, or 

sponsored by the CHDO).  
  
CHDO as a Subrecipient  
  
A CHDO, as well as other organizations, may also participate in the HOME-
funded programs as a subrecipient. Basically, this occurs when a CHDO 
undertakes an activity that is not an eligible activity for the CHDO set-aside (e.g., 
housing rehabilitation for owner-occupants).  In these projects the CHDO enters 
into a contract with the City to administer all or part of a program for the City.    
  

IV. ALTERNATIVE CHDO ROLES  
  
The 15% CHDO set-aside can only be used for projects in which a CHDO is the 
developer, owner, or sponsor.  
  
CHDO as a Developer  
  
A CHDO is a “developer” when it either owns a property and develops a project 
or has a contract with a property owner to develop a project. The CHDO must 
perform all the functions usually expected of for-profit developers as well as 
assume all the risks and rewards associated with being a developer.  
  



 

4  
    CHDO Certification Application 2023  

1) Rental Housing: For rental projects the CHDO must obtain financing and 
build or rehabilitate the project. If it owns the property, the CHDO may 
maintain ownership and manage the project over the long term, or it may 
transfer the project to another entity for management.  

  
2) Home Ownership: For home ownership projects the CHDO must obtain 

financing and build or rehabilitate the units. Title to the property and HOME 
obligations must be transferred to qualified home buyers within a specified 
time frame of project completion. 

    
CHDO as an Owner  
  
A CHDO may be considered an “owner” of a rental development. The CHDO is 
an owner when it has valid title or a long-term leasehold interest (at least 99 
years).  A CHDO can own a rental property with other legal entities (including, 
but not limited to, individuals, corporations, and partnerships). If it owns the 
project in partnership, the CHDO or its wholly owned nonprofit or for-profit 
subsidiary must be the managing general partner with effective control (i.e., 
decision making authority) of the project. The CHDO may be both owner and 
developer or may have another entity as the developer.  
  
CHDO as a Sponsor  
  
A CHDO may be a “sponsor” for either a rental or a home ownership project.  
When a CHDO is a sponsor, it must always own the property prior to the 
development phase of the project.  
  
1) Rental Housing: The CHDO (or another entity) develops a project that the 

CHDO solely or partially owns and agrees to convey ownership to a second 
nonprofit organization at a predetermined time prior to or during development 
or upon completion of the development of the project. The HOME funds are 
invested in the project owned by the CHDO. The CHDO sponsor selects prior 
to commitment of the HOME funds the nonprofit organization that will obtain 
ownership of the property.  

  
2) Home Ownership: The CHDO owns a property and transfers responsibility 

for development to another nonprofit organization at a specified time in the 
development process. The second nonprofit transfers title to the property and 
HOME obligations to qualified home buyers within a specified time frame.   

  
For a more detailed description of the alternative CHDO roles, see HUD Notice 
CPD 97-11.  
  
 
 



 

5  
    CHDO Certification Application 2023  

V. PROCESS FOR CHDO CERTIFICATION  
  
The following is the process for obtaining City CHDO certification:  
  
1) Complete the CHDO Checklist (Appendix B) and provide the required 

supporting materials.   
2) Submit the Application material and the CHDO Checklist to the City for staff 

to review.    
3) If the Application material submitted is complete and meets the criteria for 

qualifying as a CHDO (as described in Section II of this Application and in 
the CHDO Checklist) the City will notify the organization in writing that it 
has been certified as a CHDO.  

4) If the Application is not complete or if the organization does not meet the 
requirements for CHDO certification, a letter will be sent to the organization 
which describes what it must do to meet the certification criteria.  

5) City-certified CHDOs will be asked to recertify their CHDO status annually 
by providing updated information on the organization and its projects to 
ensure that the organization still meets the criteria for CHDO status after 
certification. 

6) To apply for HOME Set-Aside Funds from the City your organization must be 
a certified CHDO. Please note that receiving CHDO certification does not 
guarantee that your organization will receive HOME funds. 

  
VI. TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE AVAILABLE TO CHDOs  

  
City staff members are available to assist and advise CHDOs on how to best meet 
City program requirements. 
 
Non-profits (including CHDOs) may also be eligible to receive technical 
assistance from other organizations including:   
 
• Training and Development Association;   
• North Carolina Rural Economic Development Center;   
• The Affordable Housing Group of North Carolina;   
• North Carolina Department of Commerce, Division of Community Assistance;   
• North Carolina Community Development Initiative; and  
• North Carolina Association of Community Development Corporations.   
  
 
 



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

APPENDIX A 
 

EXCERPT FROM HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM FINAL 
RULE 24 CFR 92.2 DEFINITIONS as of June 15, 2015 

 
Community housing development organization means a private nonprofit organization that:  
 

1) Is organized under State or local laws;  
2) Has no part of its net earnings inuring to the benefit of any member, founder, contributor, or 

individual;  
3) Is neither controlled by, nor under the direction of, individuals or entities seeking to derive 

profit or gain from the organization. A community housing development organization may be 
sponsored or created by a for-profit entity, but:  
 

a. The for-profit entity may not be an entity whose primary purpose is the development or 
management of housing, such as a builder, developer, or real estate management firm; 

b. The for-profit entity may not have the right to appoint more than one-third of the 
membership of the organization's governing body. Board members appointed by the for-
profit entity may not appoint the remaining two-thirds of the board members;  

c. The community housing development organization must be free to contract for goods 
and services from vendors of its own choosing; and  

d. The officers and employees of the for-profit entity may not be officers or employees of 
the community housing development organization.  
 

4) Has a tax exemption ruling from the Internal Revenue Service under section 501(c)(3) or (4) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (26 CFR 1.501(c)(3)-1 or 1.501(c)(4)-1)), is classified as a 
subordinate of a central organization non-profit under section 905 of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986, or if the private nonprofit organization is an wholly owned entity that is disregarded as 
an entity separate from its owner for tax purposes (e.g., a single member limited liability 
company that is wholly owned by an organization that qualifies as tax-exempt), the owner 
organization has a tax exemption ruling from the Internal Revenue Service under section 
501(c)(3) or (4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and meets the definition of “community 
housing development organization;”  

5) Is not a governmental entity (including the participating jurisdiction, other jurisdiction, Indian 
tribe, public housing authority, Indian housing authority, housing finance agency, or 
redevelopment authority) and is not controlled by a governmental entity. An organization that is 
created by a governmental entity may qualify as a community housing development 
organization; however, the governmental entity may not have the right to appoint more than 
one-third of the membership of the organization's governing body and no more than one-third 
of the board members may be public officials or employees of governmental entity. Board 
members appointed by a governmental entity may not appoint the remaining two-thirds of the 
board members. The officers or employees of a governmental entity may not be officers or 
employees of a community housing development organization;  



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

6) Has standards of financial accountability that conform to 24 CFR 84.21, “Standards for 
Financial Management Systems;”  

7) Has among its purposes the provision of decent housing that is affordable to low-income and 
moderate-income persons, as evidenced in its charter, articles of incorporation, resolutions, or 
by-laws;  

8) Maintains accountability to low-income community residents by:  
 

a. Maintaining at least one-third of its governing board's membership for residents of low-
income neighborhoods, other low-income community residents, or elected 
representative of low-income neighborhood organizations. For urban areas, 
“community” may be a neighborhood or neighborhoods, city, county, or metropolitan 
area; for rural areas, it may be a neighborhood or neighborhoods, town, village, county, 
or multicounty area (but not the entire State); and  

b. Providing a formal process for low-income program beneficiaries to advise the 
organization in its decisions regarding the design, siting, development, and management 
of affordable housing;  
 

9) Has a demonstrated capacity for carrying out housing projects assisted with HOME funds. A 
designated organization undertaking development activities as a developer or sponsor must 
satisfy this requirement by having paid employees with housing development experience who 
will work on projects assisted with HOME funds. For its first year of funding as a community 
housing development organization, an organization may satisfy this requirement through a 
contract with a consultant who has housing development experience to train appropriate key 
staff of the organization. An organization that will own housing must demonstrate capacity to 
act as owner of a project and meet the requirements of §92.300(a)(2). A nonprofit organization 
does not meet the test of demonstrated capacity based on any person who is a volunteer or 
whose services are donated by another organization; and  

10) Has a history of serving the community within which housing to be assisted with HOME funds 
is to be located. In general, an organization must be able to show one year of serving the 
community before HOME funds are reserved for the organization. However, a newly created 
organization formed by local churches, service organizations or neighborhood organizations 
may meet this requirement by demonstrating that its parent organization has at least a year of 
serving the community.  
  
  

     



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

APPENDIX B  
  

CHDO CHECKLIST  
  

The information contained in this checklist refers to a Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) 
as defined in Subpart A, Section 92.2 of the HOME Final Rule (24 CFR Part 92). Other information applicable 
to CHDOs is found in Subpart G of the Rule. Please submit this form and the required documentation to (you 
may scan and submit via email):  
 

Felecia Williams, Community Relations and Development Director 
City of Goldsboro 

Community Relations and Development Department 
P.O. Drawer A 

Goldsboro, NC 27533-9701 
Phone: 919-580-4360  

E-Mail: fdwilliams@goldsboronc.gov  
  

Please include all supporting documentation as “Attachment A”. Supporting documentation 
should be included for each item checked off.  Please label each document included with the 
corresponding checklist question number.    

  
I. CONTACT INFORMATION  

 
Organization Name:  
Mailing Address:  
Phone:  
Service Area(s):  

 
II. LEGAL STATUS 

 
A. The nonprofit organization is organized under state or local laws, as evidenced 

by:  
☐ Charter    ☐ Articles of Incorporation 
 

B. No part of its net earnings inures to the benefit of any member, founder, 
contributor, or individual, as evidenced by:  
☐ Charter    ☐ Articles of Incorporation 
 

C. It has a tax exemption ruling from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) under 
Section 501(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as evidenced by:  
☐ 501(c)(3) or (4) Certificate from the IRS 
 



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

D. It has among its purposes the provision of decent housing that is affordable to 
low- and moderate-income people, as evidenced by a statement in the 
organization’s:  
☐Charter    ☐ Articles of Incorporation 

☐ By-Laws    ☐ Resolutions 
 

III. CAPACITY 
 
A. The nonprofit organization conforms to the financial accountability standards of 

Attachment F of OMB Circular A-110, “Standards for Financial Management 
Systems” 24 CFR 84.21, as evidenced by:  
 ☐ A notarized statement by the president or chief financial officer of the 
organization  
 ☐ A certification from a Certified Public Accountant 

☐ A HUD-approved audit summary    

B. The nonprofit organization has demonstrated capacity and experience as 
described in the narrative of Appendix C.  
☐ Narrative in Appendix C  
 

Note: Please complete the “Standards for Financial Management Systems” Questionnaire and 
submit with the application (See Appendix E). 

 
C. Has a demonstrated capacity for carrying out activities assisted with HOME 

funds, as evidenced by: 
☐ Resumes and/or statements that describe the experience of key staff 
members who have successfully completed projects similar to those to be 
assisted with HOME funds, or  
 
☐ Contract(s) with consulting firms or individuals who have housing 
experience similar to projects to be assisted with HOME funds to train 
appropriate key staff of the organization. 
 

D. Has a history of serving the community where housing to be assisted with 
HOME funds will be used, evidenced by: 
☐ Statement that documents at least one (1) year of experience in serving the 
community, or 
 
☐ For newly created organizations formed by local churches, service, or 
community organizations, a statement that documents that its parent organization 
has at least one (1) year of experience in serving the community. 



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

Note: The CHDO or its parent organization must be able to show one (1) year of serving the 
community from the date the participating jurisdiction provides HOME funds to the 
organization. In the statement, the organization must describe its history (or its parent 
organization’s history) of serving the community by describing activities which it provided (or 
its parent organization provided), such as developing new housing, rehabilitating existing stock, 
and managing housing stock, or delivering non-housing services that have had lasting benefits 
for the community, such as counseling, food relief, or childcare facilities. The statement must 
be signed by the president of the organization or by a HUD-approved representative. 
 
IV. ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE  

 
A. The nonprofit organization maintains at least one-third of its governing board’s 

membership for residents of low-income neighborhoods, other low-income 
community residents, or elected representatives of low-income neighborhood 
organizations as evidenced by the organization’s:  
 

  *Please provide all  
 

   ☐ By-laws  ☐ Charter ☐ Articles of Incorporation  
    

Under the HOME program, for urban areas, the term “community” is defined 
as one or several neighborhoods, a city, county, or metropolitan area.  For rural 
areas “community” is defined as one or several neighborhoods, a town, village, 
county or multi-county area (but not the entire state).  
 

B. It provides information on current Board of Directors as evidenced by:  
 ☐ A completed Board of Directors Chart (See Appendix D) 
 
☐ Certification of Low-Income Representation (one form for each low-income 
representative on the Board) (see Appendix F)  
 

Note: Please complete the Certification of Board Status Form and Board Member Certification 
Form located in Appendix F and return with the application. Under the HOME program, for 
urban areas, the term “community” is defined as one or several neighborhoods, a town, village, 
county or multi-county are (but not the entire state). 
  

C. It provides a formal process for low-income program beneficiaries to advise the 
organization in its decisions regarding the design, siting, development, and 
management of all HOME-assisted affordable housing projects, as evidenced by 
at least one of the following:  
☐ By-Laws 

☐ Resolutions (See sample Model Resolution in Appendix G) 

☐ Written statement of operating procedures approved by the governing body. 



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

D. A CHDO may be chartered by a State or local government, however, the State or 
local government may not appoint: (1) more than one-third of the membership of 
the organization’s governing body; (2) the board members appointed by the State 
or local government may not, in turn, appoint the remaining two-thirds of the 
board members; and (3) no more than one-third of the governing board members 
are public officials. This is evidenced in at least one of the following documents:  
☐ Charter    ☐ Articles of Incorporation 

☐ By-Laws    ☐ Not Applicable because this  
      organization is not chartered by a unit of 
      government. 
 

E. A CHDO may be sponsored or created by a for-profit entity. In this case the 
following restrictions apply: (1) The for-profit entity may not appoint more than 
one-third of the membership of the CHDO’s governing body; and (2) the board 
members appointed by the for-profit entity may not, in turn, appoint the 
remaining two-thirds of the board members. This is evidenced in at least one of 
the following documents:   
☐ Charter    ☐ Articles of Incorporation 

☐ By-Laws    ☐ Not Applicable because this  
      organization is not chartered by a unit of 
      government. 

 
V. RELATIONSHIP WITH FOR-PROFIT ENTITIES  

 
A. The CHDO is not controlled by nor receives directions from individuals or 

entities seeking profit from the organization, as evidenced by either:  

☐ By-Laws   or ☐ Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
 

B. A CHDO may be sponsored or created by a for-profit entity.  The for-profit 
entity’s primary purpose does not include the development or management of 
housing, as evidenced by the following:  

☐ Not Applicable  ☐ In the for-profit organization’s By-Laws 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

VI. ADMINISTRATIVE AUDIT AND LEGAL ISSUES  
 

A. Has your organization been placed under administrative restrictions from 
federal, state, or local sources at any time in the past five (5) years? __Y__N 
 

B. Has your organization been involved in any lawsuits? __Y__N 
 

C. Are there any outstanding judgments against your organization? __Y__N 
 

D. Has your organization defaulted on any loans in the past five (5) years? __Y__N 
 

E. Has your organization had any audit findings in the past five (5) years? __Y__N 
 
If you answered “Yes” to any of the above questions, attach a complete explanation labeled 
as “Appendix H”.  
  
  
VII. CERTIFICATIONS  

 
 By signing below:   
 

A. The Applicant Organization certifies that the information provided in this 
application for certification as a City Community Housing Development 
Organization is true and complete;  
 

B. The Applicant Organization understands that the City may conduct its own 
independent review of the information herein and the attachments, and may 
verify information from any source; and  
 

C. The Applicant Organization understands that the City will not be responsible for 
any costs incurred by the applicant in developing and submitting this 
application, and that all applications submitted become the property of the City.  

  
  

Name of Authorized Official:  ________________________________________________________  
  

Signature of Authorized Official:  _____________________________________________________  
  

Title of Authorized Official:  _________________________________________________________  
  

Date:  ______________________________  
  
  
  
   



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

APPENDIX C  
 

CHDO STAFF EXPERIENCE AND ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY 
 

Notes: HUD and HUD’s consultants provided this checklist because the CHDO requirements under the 
2013 HOME Appropriation law are more rigorous than previous years. Now, in addition to meeting all 

the usual standards to be a CHDO, an organization must also demonstrate that it has adequate 
capacity and experience to take on the specific project for which it is applying for CHDO status.  

Specifically, it must show that: 
 

• It has staff with demonstrated development experience, and 
• The organization itself (not merely the individual staff people currently employed by the 

organization) has experience developing projects of the same size, scope, and level of complexity 
as the activities for which HOME funds are being reserved or committed. 

 
This checklist is what HUD recommends as adequate evidence to demonstrate capacity and 

experience requirements are met. 
 

The City of Goldsboro (The City) is required to collect (and keep) documentation that your 
organization has met HUD’s requirements of capacity and experience. We intend to fulfill this 

requirement by having each organization that applies for funds as a CHDO write a narrative response 
which addresses each of the questions HUD included on its checklist. 

  
Staff Development Experience   

  
1. Staff classification and documentation – To be counted as staff, the person must be employed 

by the CHDO, and documentation is needed. 
 

a. Full time or part time employment – This would be evidenced by a payroll report or a 
W-4 or a W-2. 

b. Contracted staff – This would be evidenced by a “contract” for employment and a W-9 
and 1099 (at the end of a year). 

 
Note: Please submit this documentation for each of the staff people who will be working on the 
project for which you’re applying for funding. This is evidence that the key people who will be 

working on this project really are staff or contracted staff, and are not merely consultants, 
volunteers, or board members. Characteristics of consultants are: they have a specific 

contractual engagement for this activity or project, they are time-limited, they have discrete 
tasks not related to general operations, and they have limited or no authority to act on behalf of 
the CHDO. Indicators that the person is genuine staff are:  they are responsible for day-to-day 

organizational duties for this project and beyond, they have authority to act on behalf of the 
CHDO for day-to-day decisions (e.g., approving contracts, payments, and change orders), and 

they oversee the development team (i.e., consultants). 
 
 
 



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

2. Relevant development experience – Document the basis for answers to the applicable project 
type. 
 

a. Homeownership development – Has the staff person been involved in the acquisition, 
rehabilitation/construction and sale of homebuyer housing? Previous experience purely 
in counseling, marketing, or financing activities is not sufficient to be considered 
development experience.   

b. Rental development – Has the staff person been involved in the acquisition, 
rehabilitation/construction and/or ownership/operation of rental housing? 
   

Notes: You are applying for funds for rental development (not homeownership). We need you to 
submit documentation that the key staff people and contracted staff have experience 

comparable to the type of work they will be doing for this project. You can either write out a 
summary of the experience of each of the key people or you can submit a resume for each of the 
key people. If you submit a resume but it isn’t explicit on that resume which functions the staff 
person has performed in the past that they will be performing on this project, you can expect 

that we will follow up with you and ask you for clarification or to submit a written description 
of how the experience on the resume parallels the work on this project. To save time it might be 
easier for you to just write up such a summary initially (rather than submit resumes). We will 

expect at least one staff person to have experience in each of the major areas of rental 
development listed in 2.b. The more explicitly you can draw those parallels in your summaries, 

the easier the CHDO certification process will be for both you and City staff. 
 

Staff are sometimes shared with organizations in a parent/subsidiary relationship. Examples 
are where the CHDO subsidiary serves as a development entity for a multi-service parent, 

national nonprofits with local affiliates (e.g., VOA, Habitat), or “public entity” parents (e.g., 
PHA). If that is the situation with this project, you will need to document the relationship 

between the agencies with an inter-agency agreement that: specifies staff (with their 
experience), specifies services and day-to-day responsibilities and authority, and specifies the 
payment for services. Please submit a copy of this inter-agency agreement to the City. (If this 

organization is not one with shared staff, please merely indicate this in your response.) 
  

Developer Capacity & Fiscal Soundness  
 

1. Past and current performance 
 

a. Has the CHDO performed adequately in the past in HOME, CHDO, and/or other real 
estate development activities?   

b. Is the CHDO currently in good standing in all its development and administrative 
activities? Does it show the capacity to take on this additional activity and continue to 
manage everything that it has ongoing? 
 

Note: Please write up a summary of your past and current performance on rental development 
projects. As part of that summary please list any projects that you’ve worked on in which the 
City has been a partner, so we can follow up with City staff involved with those projects and 

confirm that your understanding of adequate performance matches their understanding of your 
performance. The City of Goldsboro expects that the organization will have done at least one 

CHDO-eligible development in the last two (2) years. 



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

2. Capacity – CHDO Organization   
 

a. Organizational structure – Can the current corporation structure support housing 
development activities, or is there a need for a subsidiary or other organizational 
structure for future development? Are there operations or activities that need to be 
organizationally separate from housing development activities and portfolios? 
 

Note: Please write a paragraph (or more if necessary) explaining how the organizational 
structure is adequate. If your organization shares staff with another organization (perhaps a 

parent organization) please explain the duties of each organization, and how the roles 
played by shared staff on this project will be covered by the CHDO, and not by the 

organization sharing the CHDO’s staff. 
 
b.   Management structure/practices – Does the current management have the ability to 
 manage additional development activities? Are the corporate lines of authority for 
 development activities clear? Are policies & procedures in place governing 
 development activities? 
 
Note: Please write a paragraph (or more if necessary) explaining how your organization is 

on solid ground regarding its management structure and practices. 
 
c. Pipeline/portfolio – What does the CHDO have as its current project pipeline and 

program responsibilities? Will it be able to handle the additional project proposed? If the 
organization pursues housing development, what other activities are likely to suffer or 
not be able to be pursued due to the effort required for development activities? Does its 
portfolio of projects/properties evidence competent management and oversight? Do the 
properties appear to have adequate funding?   
 

Note: Please write a paragraph (or more if necessary) explaining how your organization is 
on solid ground regarding its pipeline/portfolio. 

  
d. Staff capacity – Do(es) the identified staff have the time to direct toward management of 

the proposed project? How strong are staff in the following areas: Legal/financial 
aspects of housing development? Management of real estate development? Oversight of 
design & construction management? Marketing & intake? Property management (if 
applicable)? Are staff encouraged to obtain training and develop new skills? What is 
their potential for learning skills that they currently do not have?   
 

Note: Please write a paragraph (or more if necessary) explaining how your organization is 
on solid ground regarding its staff capacity. 

  
e. Board expertise/skills – Do board members have professional skills directly relevant to 

housing development (e.g., real estate, legal, architecture, finance, management)? Has 
the board demonstrated the ability to make timely decisions? Is there a good relationship 
between the board and staff? Does the board have a committee structure or other means 
of overseeing planning and development? Has there been stability/continuity of board 
members over the last several years?   



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

Note:  Please write a paragraph (or more if necessary) explaining how your 
organization is on solid ground regarding the expertise and skills of its board. 

  
f. Project specific capacity for marketing & sale of homebuyer units or operation of rental 

units – If a homebuyer project, does the CHDO have experience and the capacity to 
market the units and counsel and qualify homebuyers? If a rental project, does the 
CHDO have experience and the capacity to oversee the marketing, management and 
ownership of the project? 
 

Note: You are applying to be a CHDO on a homeowner unit or rental development. Please 
write a paragraph (or more if necessary) explaining how your organization is on solid 

ground regarding the operation of either homeowner or rental units. 
  

3. Development Team Capacity  
  

a. Development team roles – Are all of the key development team roles filled with 
qualified individuals or firms?   

b. Partner/consultant – Does the CHDO have a need for a partner or a consultant to 
supplement its skills and help it to ensure success, while still maintaining development 
control?   

c. Prior experience – Do team members have prior experience directly relevant to the 
proposed project?   

d. Experience working together – Have the team members worked together before or 
demonstrated the ability to work effectively as a team?   
 

Note: Please write a paragraph (or more if necessary) about the organization’s development 
team capacity, addressing these topics. 

 
4. Fiscal Soundness   

 
a. Financial management – Is there evidence that the CHDO meets the 84.21 standards? 

Does it do annual budgeting of its operations and all activities or programs? Does it 
track and report budget CHDO 2015 v. actual income and expenses? Does it have 
adequate internal controls to ensure separation of duties & safeguarding of corporate 
assets? Is there sufficient oversight of all financial activities? Is financial reporting 
regular, current, and sufficient for the board to forecast and monitor the financial status 
of the corporation? 
 
Note: Please write an explanation of your organization’s financial management that 

addresses the topics in paragraph 4.a. above. 
 
b. Financial stability – To what extent does the organization have a diversified and stable 

funding base for operations? How regularly does it experience cash flow problems?   
 

Note:  Please write a paragraph (or more if necessary) of your organization’s financial 
stability that addresses the topics in 4.b. 

  



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

c. Liquidity – Does CHDO management know its current cash position and maintain 
controls over expenditures? Does the current balance sheet and budget indicate 
sufficient funds to support essential operations? Does it have funds available for pre-
development expenses and capital advances required for development? 
  

Note: Please write a paragraph (or more if necessary) of your organization’s liquidity that 
addresses the topics in 4.c. 

  
d. Audit – Does the CHDO have an annual audit? Is the most recent audit current? Were 

there management or compliance findings in the last two years? Are finding resolved?   
 

Note: Please write a paragraph (or more if necessary) about your organization’s audit that 
addresses the topics in 4.d. 

  
e. Portfolio & corporate liabilities – If it has a portfolio of properties, are they in stable 

physical and financial condition or are they a drain on corporate resources? Are there 
assets at risk of default? Does it collect adequate revenues and management fees from 
the properties? Does it maintain adequate insurance – liability, fidelity bond, workers 
comp., property hazard, & project?   
 

Note: Please write a summary of the properties in your portfolio which addresses the 
topics in 4.e. 

  
5. Other Factors   

 
a. Community relations – How strong are the current reputation of the corporation and the 

relationship with the community? To what extent does ‘Not In My Backyard’ NIMBY 
opposition exist to low-income housing in the service area? To what extent do channels 
exist for the CHDO to negotiate with the community and potential opponents?   
 

Note: Please write a paragraph (or more if necessary) about your organization’s community 
relations which addresses the topics in 5.a. 

 
b. Local government relations – How strong is the CHDO’s relationship with the local 

government? How strongly does local government support its housing activities?  
 

Note: Please write a paragraph (or more if necessary) about your organization’s local 
government relations which addresses the topics in 5.b. 

 
c. Lender relations – Does the CHDO have good working relationships with lenders, 

especially those who might participate in the proposed project?  
 

Note: Please write a paragraph (or more if necessary) about your organization’s lender 
relations which addresses the topics in 5.c. 



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

APPENDIX D 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CHART 
 

Please insert the following information for each of the organization’s board members.  Please indicate if they are either representatives of the 
low-income community, or a public member. 

(Additional copies may be attached as necessary) 
 

Name Address City State Phone Number Employer Low-Income 
Rep. 

(Yes/No) 

Public 
Member 
(Yes/No) 

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

APPENDIX E  
  

FINANCIAL AND PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 
 

§ 84.20 Purpose of financial and program management 
 

Sections 84.21 through 84.28 prescribe standards for financial management systems, methods 
for making payments and rules for: satisfying cost sharing and matching requirements, 
accounting for program income, budget revision approvals, making audits, determining allow 
ability of cost. 

 
§ 84.21 Standards for financial management systems.  
 

a. HUD shall require recipients to relate financial data to performance data and develop 
unit cost information whenever practical. 

b. Recipients’ financial management systems shall provide for the following: 
 

1. Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each 
federally sponsored project or program in accordance with the reporting 
requirements set forth in §84.52. If a recipient maintains its records on other than 
an accrual basis, the recipient shall not be required to establish an accrual 
accounting system. These recipients may develop accrual data for their reports 
on the basis of an analysis of the documentation on hand. 

2. Records that adequately identify the source and application of funds for federally 
sponsored activities. These records shall contain information per to Federal 
awards, authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, outlays, 
income and interest.  

3. Effective control over and accountability for all funds, property and other assets. 
Recipients shall adequately safeguard all such assets and assure them they are 
used solely for authorized purposes. 

4. Comparison of outlays with budget amounts for each award. Whenever 
appropriate, financial information should be related to performance and unit cost 
data. 

5. Written procedures to minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds 
to the recipient from the U.S. Treasury and the issuance or redemption of checks, 
warrants or payments by other means for program purposes by the recipient. To 
the extent that the provisions of the Cash Management Improvement Act 
(CMIA) (Pub. L. 101-453) govern, payment methods of State agencies, 
instrumentalities, and fiscal agents shall be consistent with CMIA Treasury-State 
Agreements or the CMIA default procedures codified at 31 CFR part 205, 
‘‘Withdrawal of Cash from the Treasury for Advances under Federal Grant and 
Other Programs.’’ 



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

6. Written procedures for determining the reasonableness, allocability and 
allowability of costs in accordance with the provisions of the applicable Federal 
cost principles and the terms and conditions of the award. 

7. Accounting records including cost accounting records that are supported by 
source documentation.  

c. Where the Federal Government guarantees or insures the repayment of money borrowed 
by the recipient, HUD, at its discretion, may require adequate bonding and insurance if 
the bonding and insurance requirements of the recipient are not deemed adequate to 
protect the interest of the Federal Government. 

d. HUD may require adequate fidelity bond coverage where the recipient lacks sufficient 
coverage to protect the Federal Government’s interest. 

e. Where bonds are required in the situations described above, the bonds shall be obtained 
from companies holding certificates of authority as acceptable sureties, as prescribed in 
31 CFR part 223, ‘‘Surety Companies Doing Business with the United States.’’ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The rest of the page was intentionally left blank. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

“Standards for Financial Management Systems” 24 CFR 84.21 and Questionnaire 
 

Refer to link for regulation (24 CFR 84.21): 
 

24 CFR 84.21 – Standards for financial management systems. – Content Details – CFR-2004-
title24-vol1-sec84-21 (govinfo.gov) 

 
Organization Name:  
Mailing Address:  
Phone:  Fax:  Email: 

 
Person Completing Questionnaire:  
Chief Financial Officer: Phone: 

 
INSTRUCTIONS: 
 
Please complete the questions below with as much detail as necessary. Please attach additional 
documentation when requested.  
 

1. On what basis are financial records maintained? If other than accrual, can pertinent accrual data 
be developed for reports on the basis of an analysis of the records on hand?  

 
2. How do your records identify the source and application of funds for federal sponsored 

activities? What is captured in the records? (i.e., award amounts, grantee authorizations, 
obligations, outlays, etc.)? 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title24-vol1/CFR-2004-title24-vol1-sec84-21
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title24-vol1/CFR-2004-title24-vol1-sec84-21


 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

3. What controls are in place to adequately account for and safeguard funds, property and other 
assets and to assure they are solely used for authorized purposes?  

 
4. Do you have a budget system? If not, what procedures do you have in place to provide a 

comparison of outlays with budget amounts for each award? 

 
5. What procedures do you have in place to relate financial information to performance and unit 

cost data?  
 

6. Please provide written policies on your cash management procedures.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

7. What controls are in place to determine whether disbursements are reasonable and allowable 
under grant programs?   

 
8. What accounting systems do you have in place to ensure that all accounting records are 

supported by source documentation (i.e., accounting software)? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I hereby certify that the responses to the above questions are true and accurate. 
  
Name of Authorized Official: ______________________________ 
 
Signature of Authorized Official:____________________________ 
 
Title of Authorized Official: _______________________________  Date:____________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

APPENDIX F 
 

CERTIFICATION OF LOW-INCOME REPRESENTATION  
  

Each board member representing the interests of low-income families in the Applicant’s service 
area must complete this certification.  Please maintain a copy of this certification in your files and 
send a copy to the City.  Note: The board member needs to check at least one of the three criteria 
listed below but does not need to indicate the specific way in which he or she represents low-
income community interests.  
  
Board Member Name:_______________________________________________________  
  
I certify that I am a current member in good standing of the governing board for  
______________________ (name of the CHDO organization seeking certification) and that I 
represent the interests of low-income families in the Applicant’s service area.    
  
Date Completed: ___________________________________  
  
Signature:___________________________________________  

 
  
Please check and complete one of the following:  
  

________ I am a low-income resident of ________________________, a community in the 
Applicant’s service area.  
  
In order to qualify under these criteria, the board member must be a low-income 
resident of a community that the CHDO is planning to serve or is currently serving.  
Low-income is defined as 80% or less of area median family income.  
  
OR  
  
________ I am a resident of a low-income neighborhood in _________________________, a 
community in the Applicant’s service area.    
  
In order to qualify under these criteria, the board member must live in a low-income 
neighborhood where 51% or more of the residents are low-income.  The board member 
does not have to be low-income.    
  
OR  
  
________I am an elected representative of _________________________________, a 
low-income neighborhood organization within _____________________, a community in 
the Applicant’s service area.  
  



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

In order to qualify under this third criterion, the person must be elected by a low-income 
neighborhood organization to serve on the CHDO Board.  The organization must be 
composed primarily of residents of a low-income neighborhood and its primary purpose 
must be to serve the interests of the neighborhood residents.  Such organizations might 
include block groups, neighborhood associations, and neighborhood watch groups.  The 
group must be a neighborhood organization and IT MAY NOT BE THE CHDO ITSELF.  
If the applicant is representing a low-income neighborhood organization, please attach 
a copy of the signed resolution from the neighborhood organization naming the 
individual as their representative on the CHDO.  
 

  
DESCRIPTION OF PROCESS FOR OBTAINING LOW-INCOME INPUT  

        
Please write a narrative describing your organization’s process for obtaining input from the low-
income community.  
  
In what ways was low-income input sought and implemented in the past year and what were the 
results?  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
How have the low-income residents and program beneficiaries in your service area been involved 
with the CHDO to advise on policies and procedures, program design, site location(s), and the 
development and management of affordable housing?  
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
Are there any unique approaches you have taken to obtain feedback from low-income residents?   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
Having low-income representatives on the board of directors does not satisfy the requirement to 
have a low-income advisory process.  Your organization is required to have a process to collect 
input for the low-income community directly.  If you have not formalized a process, feel free to 
satisfy this requirement by executing the Board Resolution document provided in Appendix G.  

 

 

 



 

CHDO Certification Appendices 2023 

  
APPENDIX G  

  
A Resolution similar to this Appendix is one of the ways to satisfy the organizational structure 

requirement in IV. C of this 2023 application. 
  

MODEL PUBLIC INPUT RESOLUTION  
  

  
The following is hereby resolved by the Board of Directors of  

  
___________________________________________________________,   
  
at a duly called meeting on_________________________________________,  

(date)  
at which a quorum was present:  

  
The following provision is hereby added to the By-laws and shall be designated as Article _____.  
  
For any housing project undertaken by this organization there shall be a formal process by which 
we gather input from intended beneficiaries, low-income residents of the proposed area, and other 
community members.  This process will include:  
  

_____  
  

holding widely publicized open meetings;  

_____  
  

creating ad hoc committees of neighbors of a proposed development site;  

_____  
  

forming a neighborhood advisory council;  

_____  temporarily expanding our governing board to include neighbors during the 
period of planning and development of the housing project; 
 

_____  other:_______________________________________________  
  
  
Input will be sought on project design, location of sites, development, management, and any other 
relevant issues.  
   
  

Name of Authorized Official:  ________________________________________________________  
  

Signature of Authorized Official:  _____________________________________________________  
  

Title of Authorized Official:  _________________________________________________________  
  

Date:  ____________________________________________________________________________  
  



J



 
  

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

PUBLIC FACILITIES 
& IMPROVEMENTS 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
10-27-2023 

 



Table of Contents 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM ......................................... 1 

DETERMINING SERVICE AREAS AND LOW/MOD BENEFIT ........................................ 4 

NEW SANITARY SEWER PROJECTS .................................................................................... 6 

SANITARY SEWER  EXTENSION PROJECTS ..................................................................... 8 

PUBLIC WATER SYSTEM DISTRIBUTION & EXTENSION PROJECTS ....................... 9 

NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS ...............................................................11 

PARKS & RECREATIONAL FACILITIES PROJECTS ...................................................... 12 

PUBLIC FACILITIES ................................................................................................................ 14 

 



 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 1 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM  
 
The following local administrative policies have been established by the Community Relations 
and Development Department of the City of Goldsboro. They will govern all requests for Public 
Facilities & Improvements with the use of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds. 
 
 
POLICIES: 
 
PROJECT BENEFICIARIES: All CDBG Projects must be designed to serve those areas of the 
community with the highest percentage of low- and moderate-income persons, using current 
census data or recent (less than three years old) income survey results. 
 

i. All projects must benefit residents in an area that is at least 51% low- and moderate-income; 
 

ii. Community Relations & Development staff can provide area maps showing eligible low- 
and moderate-income areas. The proposed project’s service area must be approved by the 
Community Relations & Development staff before the submittal of the Funding Request 
Application; 

 
iii. The project area must be primarily residential; and 

 
iv. The service area needs to be the entire area served by the project. This may be more than 

one census tract or municipality depending on the type of project.  
 
MAXIMUM FUNDING: A maximum of will be established for approved projects.  
 

i. The Community Relations & Development Department (CRDD) will accept no more than 1 
(one) Funding Request Applications from or for the benefit of a municipality per program 
year. This includes, but is not limited to, all projects submitted by the municipality itself, water 
or sewer authorities, and/or non-profit community organizations located within and serving 
each municipality. 

 
ELIGIBLE CDBG PROJECT COSTS: CDBG funds cannot be used to finance 100% of the 
project/program costs. 
 

i. For municipal infrastructure or community facilities projects, sponsors are required to certify 
that a minimum of twenty percent (20%) of the total project cost will be financed through 
non-CDBG sources of funding. 
 

a. CDBG funds can be used for construction costs only. 
b. At least five percent (5%) of the cost of construction contracts must be paid with 

non-CDBG funds. 
c. Project sponsors are responsible for covering soft costs: all legal, advertising, right-

of-way acquisition, engineering, and design expenditures. 



 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 2 

 
ii. For housing rehabilitation activities carried out by non-profit organizations, CDBG funds can 

be used to cover construction costs only. The sponsor will be responsible for all administrative 
costs. 

 
PROCEDURES: 
 

1. LETTER OF INTENT: All applicants must submit a “Letter of Intent” with their 
application. 
 

a. This step will ensure that applicants have sufficient time to complete requirements 
and receive any necessary technical assistance necessary. 
 

2. REQUIRED CONSULTATION: All applicants must attend a consultation with the 
CRDD staff. The purpose of this meeting is to review the letter of intent for eligibility and 
fundability of the project.  
 

3. PUBLIC HEARING: The CRDD will schedule a public hearing before the Goldsboro 
City Council for proposed projects before a final funding commitment is made. 

 
a. The purpose of the hearing is to present the proposed project to the public as well 

as provide an opportunity for the public to comment on the proposed project and 
any other local needs which may be addressed by the City’s CDBG Program. 
 

b. A legal notice that announces the public hearing will be published in the local 
newspaper and on the City’s website not less than 10 days prior to the date of the 
hearing. 

 
4. LOCAL PROJECT REVIEW: All proposed project(s) must obtain appropriate local 

approvals prior to submitting the Funding Request Application. 
 

a. For public infrastructure projects, the applicant must submit formal letters of 
approval and/or resolutions from the CCRD, the City Council, and the Planning 
Commission within 30 days of the due date of the Funding Request Application. If 
the formal approval letters cannot be submitted with the funding request, the 
applicant must submit, at least, a letter from each of the governing bodies stating 
that it has at least reviewed the application and that it will be presenting the project 
to its board for approval at its next meeting within the allowed 30-day grace period. 
 

b. For housing or other projects submitted by non-profit community organizations, the 
applicant must submit specific formal written endorsement of their project from 
their governing board and/or from their local municipality’s governing board. 

 
 
 



 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 3 

5. REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS: Prior to the City Council’s notification of a Funding 
Request, CRDD staff will review each Funding Request Application. 
 

a. All requests will be evaluated for completeness of information and for eligibility 
and fundability under the regulations of the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Program. 
 

b. All requests will be reviewed for compatibility and consistency with the priority 
needs and objectives established in the City’s Consolidated Plan. 

 
 

6. OTHER REQUIREMENTS: 
 

a. Municipal and non-profit community organizations must submit a copy of their 
organization’s most recent audited financial statement with their Funding Request 
Application and a copy of their audit completed after the completion of the project. 
If more than one Funding Request Application is being submitted by the 
organization, only one copy of this information is required. 
 

b. No CDBG funds may be used to cover the costs incurred to secure the audit. 
 

 
  



 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 4 

DETERMINING SERVICE AREAS AND LOW/MOD BENEFIT 
 
Before accepting a Funding Request Application, the proposed project’s service area must be 
approved by the CRDD’s staff. 
 
1. REQUIREMENTS: 

 
• The area benefit criteria, the public facility/improvement must benefit all residents of 

an area where at least 51 percent of the residents are Low-to-Moderate Income (LMI). 
The service area need not have coterminous boundaries with Census tract borders or 
other officially recognized boundaries but must be primarily residential in nature. 
 

• Public facilities funded by CDBG may sometimes qualify under the Limited Clientele 
criteria of the LMI national objective. The regulation stipulates that the facility benefits 
a specific targeted group of persons, of which at least 51 percent must be low- and 
moderate-income. 
 

2. COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS: Projects located in commercial districts may qualify, for 
instance, a street improvement project where businesses and stores serve local clientele, and 
the service area boundaries encompass a primarily residential area while still qualifying under 
the low- and moderate-income benefit. 
 

3. PUBLIC FACILITY PROJECTS: Projects that are designed to benefit a targeted group of 
persons and not a general service area may qualify if at least 51% of the beneficiaries are low- 
and moderate-income and documentation and data concerning beneficiary family size and 
income is evident; or the facility has income-eligibility requirements that limit the service to 
persons meeting the low- and moderate-income requirement as evident of the applicants 
procedures, or intake/application forms; or if the facility primarily serves a group presumed to 
be low- and moderate-income such as abused children, battered spouses, elderly persons, 
severely disabled adults, homeless persons, illiterate adults, persons living with AIDS, and 
migrant farm workers.  

 
4. INCOME SURVEYS: Please refer to the CDBG Income Survey Guidelines for direction. 

Surveys must be completed to determine the low- and/or moderate-income of an area. Income 
surveys are required for the following project types: 

 
• New Sanitary Sewer System Projects; 

 
• Sanitary Sewer System Extension Projects; 

 
• New Public Water Distribution System Projects; 

 
• Public Water Distribution System Extension Projects; 

 
• Construction of New Sidewalks where none currently exist; 

 



 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 5 

• Construction/reconstruction of curbs and sidewalks only (not part of a comprehensive 
street improvement project; and 

 
• When the service area of the proposed project is part of census block group(s) that do 

not support a determination of low- and/or moderate-income benefit of 51% or higher 
and the applicant has compelling reason to believe the service area would qualify based 
on a change in either population or income of the area since the census. 

  



 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 6 

NEW SANITARY SEWER PROJECTS 
 
Before accepting Funding Request Applications for new sewage treatment plants and collections 
systems, the City must comply with the following requirements: 
 

1. PROJECT BENEFICIARIES: The project must serve an area where at least 51% of the 
beneficiaries are of low- and/or moderate-income. An income survey achieving a minimum 
response rate must be completed which clearly documents that 51% or more of the 
beneficiaries (total persons) of the proposed new sanitary sewer system project are low- 
and/or moderate-income persons. For projects located in census block group(s) where the 
residents are not primarily low- and/or moderate-income, after achieving a minimum 
response rate, at least 51% of the persons represented by the responding survey must be 
considered low- and/or moderate-income persons. Note that projects with small sample 
sizes will require a 100% response rate. CRDD staff may provide the exact percentage 
required and other assistance on how to conduct an income survey. 
 

2. REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION: The City must provide the following documentation: 
 

• Applied for all necessary Local, State, and Federal permits and approvals; 
 

• Adopted a current (within the past five to seven years) Sewage Facilities Plan in 
accordance with NC’s Laws and Rules for Sewage Treatment and Disposal 
Systems; 

 
• A copy of the current City’s Zoning Map and a formal letter of approval and/or 

resolutions from the Planning Commission, certifying that it is compatible with the 
current City Land Use Plan; 

 
• A formal letter of approval and/or resolutions from the City’s Planning Commission 

for the proposed project; 
 

• A formal letter of approval and/or resolutions from the City Council certifying that 
it is compatible with the City’s Consolidated Plan; 

 
• If the formal letters of approval cannot be submitted with the funding request, the 

applicant must submit, at least, a letter from each of the governing bodies stating 
that it has at least reviewed the application and that it will be presenting the project 
to its board for approval at its next meeting within the allowed 30-day grace period 
from submission of the Funding Request Application; and 

 
• If the formal letters of approval from the governing bodies cannot be submitted 

with the funding request, the applicant must submit, at least, a letter from each of 
the governing bodies stating that it has at least reviewed the application and that it 
will be presenting the project to its board for approval at its next meeting within the 
30-day grace period. 
 

https://ehs.dph.ncdhhs.gov/oswp/docs/rules/Aug98amen.pdf
https://ehs.dph.ncdhhs.gov/oswp/docs/rules/Aug98amen.pdf


 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 7 

3. OTHER REQUIREMENTS: 
 

• A plan to finance the entire sanitary sewer system must be put in place and 
submitted along with the completed Funding Request Application. 
 

  



 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 8 

SANITARY SEWER  EXTENSION PROJECTS 
 
Before accepting Funding Request Applications for sanitary sewer projects that would extend 
sanitary sewage collection lines beyond the existing sanitary sewer service areas, the City must 
comply with the following requirements: 
 

1. PROJECT BENEFICIARIES: The project must serve an area where at least 51% of the 
beneficiaries are of low- and/or moderate-income. An income survey achieving a minimum 
response rate must be completed which clearly documents that 51% or more of the 
beneficiaries (total persons) of the proposed new sanitary sewer system project are low- 
and/or moderate-income persons. For projects located in census block group(s) where the 
residents are not primarily low- and/or moderate-income, after achieving a minimum 
response rate, at least 51% of the persons represented by the responding survey must be 
considered low- and/or moderate-income persons. Note that projects with small sample 
sizes will require a 100% response rate. CRDD staff may provide the exact percentage 
required and other assistance on how to conduct an income survey. 
 

2. REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION: The proposed sanitary sewer extension project must 
be compatible with any existing Sewage Facility Plan/Sewage Treatment Plan the City has 
(adopted within the past five to seven years) and its Land Use Plan. The applicant must be 
proposing to provide or extend public sanitary sewer service as an Immediate Need. The 
applicant must submit the following items:  
 

• Written documentation verifying that the proper Environmental Protection 
Guidelines and Agencies have been followed and approved the sewer planning 
module covering the planned sanitary sewer extension project. 
 

• A current copy of the City’s Zoning Map and a formal letter of approval and/or 
resolutions from the Planning Commission certifying that it is compatible with the 
current Land Use Plan. 

 
• A formal letter of approval and/or resolutions from the Planning Commission. 

 
• A formal letter of approval and/or resolutions from the City Council certifying that 

it is compatible with the City’s Consolidated Plan. 
 

• If the formal letters of approval cannot be submitted with the funding request, the 
applicant must submit, at least, a letter from each of the governing bodies stating 
that it has at least reviewed the application and that it will be presenting the project 
to its board for approval at its next meeting within the 30-day grace period from 
submission of the Funding Request Application. 

 
• Documentation must be submitted along with the completed Funding Request 

Application showing that the City has have investigated other alternatives to 
extending sanitary lines, such as on-lot disposal or spray irrigation systems. 
 



 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 9 

PUBLIC WATER SYSTEM DISTRIBUTION & EXTENSION PROJECTS 
 
Before accepting Funding Request Applications for any proposal to construct a new public water 
treatment plant, filtration plant, and distribution system or extension project, the City must comply 
with the following requirements: 
 

1. PROJECT BENEFICIARIES: The project must serve an area where at least 51% of the 
beneficiaries are of low- and/or moderate-income. An income survey achieving a minimum 
response rate must be completed which clearly documents that 51% or more of the 
beneficiaries (total persons) of the proposed new sanitary sewer system project are low- 
and/or moderate-income persons. For projects located in census block group(s) where the 
residents are not primarily low- and/or moderate-income, after achieving a minimum 
response rate, at least 51% of the persons represented by the responding survey must be 
considered low- and/or moderate-income persons. Note that projects with small sample 
sizes will require a 100% response rate. CRDD staff may provide the exact percentage 
required and other assistance on how to conduct an income survey. 
 

2. REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION: 
 

• The City must have applied for and received all necessary Local, State, and Federal 
permits and approvals prior to applying for CDBG funds to construct a well, water 
treatment plant, water filtration plant, or water distribution system. For example, 
water quality tests must be completed, and applicable permits received indicating 
that both the water quantity and quality are acceptable. 
 

• Applicants must submit formal letters of approval and/or resolutions from the 
Planning Commission and the City Council within thirty (30) days of the due date 
of the Funding Request Application. If the formal approval letters cannot be 
submitted with the funding, the applicant must submit, at least, a letter from each 
of the governing bodies stating that it has at least reviewed the application and that 
it will be presenting the project to its board for approval at its next meeting within 
the allowed 30-day grace period. 

 
• A financing plan for the construction of the entire new public water system must be 

put in place and must be submitted along with the complete Funding Request 
Application. 

 
• If the project area to be served by the new public water system is in a rural area, 

documentation verifying that the City has investigated alternative water supply 
systems must be submitted along with the completed Funding Request Application.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 10 

3. OTHER REQUIREMENTS: 
 

• CDBG funds cannot be used to help finance the discovery of or testing of safe and 
suitable drinking water supplies. 
 

• The water supply, water treatment, or water filtration plant, if necessary, must be 
constructed before or at the same time as the water distribution system. The water 
distribution system cannot be constructed before the public water system is ready 
to supply water.   



 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 11 

NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 
 
Neighborhood Improvement Projects can include curb and sidewalk replacement, major 
stormwater management improvements, street reconstruction, or water main and sewer main 
replacement projects. Neighborhood Improvement Projects can be undertaken in phases.  
 

1. PROJECT BENEFICIARIES: The project must serve an area where at least 51% of 
the beneficiaries are low- and moderate-income. 
 

• The service area of a Neighborhood Improvement Project must include the 
entire area that the project will serve. The service area must be approved by the 
CRDD before submission of the Funding Request Application. Determination 
of income status of a service area must be based on the current census data. In 
some instances, an income survey may be used to determine if the service area 
is low- and moderate-income. 
 

2. REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION: Applicants must submit formal letters of 
approval and/or  resolutions from the Planning Commission and the City Council 
within thirty (30) days of the due date of the Funding Request Application. If the 
formal approval letters cannot be submitted with the funding request, the applicant must 
submit, at least, a letter from each of the governing bodies stating that it has at least 
reviewed the application and that it will be presenting the project to its board for 
approval at its next meeting within the allowed 30-day grace period. 
 

3. OTHER ELIGIBLE PROJECTS: Proposed curb and sidewalk replacement projects 
are eligible, however should be an integral part of an overall neighborhood 
improvement program. If the project involves only the construction/reconstruction of 
curbs and sidewalks, an income survey must be undertaken to determine income status. 
CDBG funds may be used to construct sidewalks where none currently exists only if 
51% of the total residents in the service area are low- and moderate-income. 
Determination of income status is based on census data or recent (less than three years 
old) income survey results.  
 

  



 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 12 

PARKS & RECREATIONAL FACILITIES PROJECTS 
 
CDBG funds may only be used to construct new facilities or purchase new equipment. CDBG 
funds cannot be used to replace equipment that has been vandalized or has deteriorated because of 
a lack of maintenance. 
 

1. PROJECT BENEFICIARIES: 
• In order to be eligible for CDBG funds, all parks and recreational facility 

projects must have primary service areas where at least 51% or more of the 
residents are low- and moderate-income persons. This must be verified by the 
most recent census information available or by the results of recent (less than 
three years old) income surveys. 
 

• All parks and recreational facility acquisition or improvement projects must be 
designed to primarily serve a neighborhood. A park will generally be considered 
to serve a neighborhood if the primary users of the park live within a half-mile 
radius of the park and if the park is no larger than five (5) acres. 

 
• All other recreational facilities, such as those designed to serve an entire 

township, borough, multiple municipalities, or a larger region, are generally 
ineligible for CDBG funds. The only exception to this policy will be if 51% or 
more of the principal users of the park are low- and moderate-income persons. 
Principal users are defined as those residents living within a certain radius of 
the facility. For a park serving the entire City, this will be for all residents of 
Goldsboro. For larger parks and recreational facilities, national standards for 
recreational facilities provided by the United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) will be used to define service area based on the size 
of the park facility. A final decision on granting any exceptions in this regard 
will be made by CRDD staff.  

 
2. REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION: Applicants must submit formal letters of 

approval and/or resolutions from the Planning Commission and the City Council within 
thirty (30) days of the due date of the Funding Request Application. If the formal 
approval letters cannot be submitted with the funding request, the applicant must 
submit, at least, a letter from each of the governing bodies stating that it has at least 
reviewed the application and that it will be presenting the project to its board for 
approval at its next meeting within the allowed 30-day grace period. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 13 

3. OTHER REQUIREMENTS: 
 

• The municipality or non-profit organization submitting the project must 
contribute a local financial match equal to at least fifty percent (50%) of the 
total cost of the project. Local, State, or other Federal funds can be used to meet 
this matching requirement. 
 

• If CDBG funds are used to acquire private property for use as a public park or 
recreational facility, the municipality or sponsoring non-profit organization 
acquiring the land must agree to add a deed restriction requiring the land to 
remain as a public open space, a public park, or a public recreational facility.  

 
  



 

Public Facilities Policy and Procedures  Page | 14 

PUBLIC FACILITIES 
 
CDBG funds may be used for the acquisition, rehabilitation, or installation of public facilities 
and improvements. Public facilities and public improvements are interpreted to include all 
facilities and improvements that are publicly owned, or that are owned by a non-profit 
organization and open to the general public. Examples include the following: Senior Centers, 
Handicapped Centers, Homeless Facilities, Parking Facilities, Childcare Centers, Fire Stations, 
and Facilities for Abused and Neglected Children or AIDS Patients.  
 

1. PROJECT BENEFICIARIES: 
 

• In order to be eligible for CDBG funds, all public facility projects must have 
primary service areas where at least 51% or more of the residents are low- 
and/or moderate-income persons. This must be verified by the most recent 
census information available or by the results of recent (less than three years 
old) income surveys. 
 

• Public facilities funded by CDBG may sometimes qualify under the Limited 
Clientele criteria of low- and moderate-income persons. Limited Clientele is 
described as persons of presumed benefit (abused children, battered spouses, 
elderly persons, severely disable adults, homeless persons, illiterate adults, 
persons living with AIDS, and migrant farm workers); or being of such a 
nature and in a location that it may be concluded that the activity’s clientele 
are low- and moderate-income. 
 

2. REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION: Applicants must submit formal letters of 
approval and/or resolutions from the Planning Commission and the City Council 
within thirty (30) days of the due date of the Funding Request Application. If the 
formal approval letters cannot be submitted with the funding request, the applicant 
must submit, at least, a letter from each of the governing bodies stating that it has at 
least reviewed the application and that it will be presenting the project to its board for 
approval at its next meeting within the allowed 30-day grace period. 



  Community Relations & Development 
                                                                                      214 N. Center Street 

                                                                                      Goldsboro, NC 27530 
 
 

Public Facilities and Improvements Application  
 

 
PROGRAM OVERVIEW .......................................................................................................................... 1 

Eligible Projects ....................................................................................................................................... 1 

LETTER OF INTENT ................................................................................................................................ 2 

AGENCY INFORMATION ....................................................................................................................... 3 

PROJECT ELIGIBILITY .......................................................................................................................... 4 

PROJECT INFORMATION ...................................................................................................................... 6 

PROJECT COSTS ...................................................................................................................................... 9 

BUDGET .................................................................................................................................................... 10 

ENVIRONMENTAL-HISTORIC-ENGINEERING REGs .................................................................. 11 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES .............................................................................................................. 12 

SUBMISSION ............................................................................................................................................ 13 

 
 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 
For municipal infrastructure or community facilities projects, sponsors are required to certify 
that a minimum of twenty percent (20%) of the total project cost will be financed through non-
CDBG sources of funding. 
 

• CDBG funds can be used for construction costs only. 
• At least five percent (5%) of the cost of construction contracts must be paid with non-

CDBG funds. 
• Project sponsors are responsible for covering all legal, advertising, right-of-way 

acquisition, engineering, and design (soft) costs.  
 

All CDBG Projects must be designed to serve those areas of the community with the highest 
percentage of low- and moderate-income persons, using current census data or recent income 
survey results. 
 

• All projects must benefit residents in an area that is at least 51% low- and moderate-
income; or 

• Serve low- and moderate-income qualifying clients and/or a presumed benefit population. 
• Municipal project areas must be primarily residential. 

 
Eligible Projects 
 

• New Sanitary Sewer Systems – Construct new sewage treatment plants and 
collections systems. 

• Sanitary Sewer System Extensions – Extend sanitary sewage collection lines 
beyond existing service areas. 

• Public Water System Distribution and Extensions – Construction of a new public 
water treatment plant, filtration plant, distribution system or extension project. 

• Neighborhood Improvement Projects – Curb and sidewalk replacement, major 
stormwater management improvements, street reconstruction, or water main and 
sewer main replacement. 

• Parks and Recreational Facilities – Construct new facilities or purchase new 
equipment. 

• Public Facility Improvements – Energy efficiency improvements, handicap 
accessibility, and other structural improvements to a public facility that benefits 
low- and moderate-income persons. 

  



 

2 | P a g e  
 

LETTER OF INTENT 
 
Please provide the following information. 
 
Project Information: 

 
Organization Name: ______________________________________________________ 
 
Contact Person: _________________________________________________________ 
 
Contact Title: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Contact Phone Number: ___________________________ 
 
Contact E-Mail: __________________________________________ 
 
Project Name: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Project Location: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Amount of Matching Funds to Complete Project: $___________ 
 
Has the grantee received CDBG funds in the past three (3) years? 
 

☐ Yes *  ☐ No 
 

*Indicate the total amount of funds received in the past three (3) years. 
 
Year 1: $___________ 
 
Year 2: $___________ 
 
Year 3: $___________ 
 

☐ The information provided is correct to the best of my knowledge. I understand 
that that purposeful omission of information is cause for the application to be 
denied. 
 
__________________________________   ________________________ 

Signature             Title 
 

  



 

3 | P a g e  
 

AGENCY INFORMATION 
 
Please provide the following information. 
 
Agency Information: 
 

A.1. Agency Name:_______________________________________________________ 
 

A.2. Agency Type: __________________________________ 
 

A.3. Mailing Address: ____________________________________________________ 
 
A.4. Employer Identification Number: ________________ 
 
A.5. Unique Entity Number: ________________ 
 
A.6. Agency Website: _______________________________________________ 
 
A.7. Is your agency (or fiscal agent) audited every year? ☐ Yes * ☐ No 
*Please upload/attach a copy of proof. 
 
A.8. Does your agency have a non-discrimination in service policy? ☐ Yes* ☐ No 
*Please upload/attach a copy of policy. 
 

 
Agency Point of Contact: 
 

A.9. Name: _______________________________________________________ 
 
A.10. Title:_______________________________________________________ 
 
A.11. Phone Number:_______________________________ 
 
A.12. E-Mail: _________________________________________ 
 

 
Engineering or Architectural Firm 
 

A.13. Firm Name: ________________________________________________________ 
 
A.14. Contact Name: ___________________________________________________ 
 
A.15. Title: _________________________________________ 
 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

A.16. Phone Number: _________________________ 
 
A.17. E-Mail: __________________________________________ 
 
 

PROJECT ELIGIBILITY 
 

Community Development projects MUST meet the basic national fundability criteria established 
by Congress. All projects MUST principally benefit low- and moderate-income persons. 
 
Please provide the following information. 
 
This project principally benefits low- and moderate-income persons based on: 
 

B.1. Please choose the appropriate designation for the Agency/Organization 
Applying: 
 

☐ American Community Survey (ACS) Data – Census Tract/Block Group(s) 
 
☐ Block Group 
 

B.2. Total number of persons in service area: __________ 
 

B.2.a. Percent Low/Mod: _______% 
 

B.3. Did you complete an income survey for your project? ☐ Yes* ☐ No 
*Please indicate the total number of persons in service area and the percentage of 
  Low/Mod-income persons. 

 
Use as a Community Facility: 

 
B.4. Eligible as a presumed benefit. Check all that apply: 
 

☐ Abused Children 
 
☐ Battered Spouses 
 
☐ Elderly Persons 
 
☐ Homeless Persons 
 
☐ Adults Severely Disabled 



 

5 | P a g e  
 

 
☐ Illiterate Adults 
 
☐ Persons living with AIDS 
 
☐ Migrant Farm Workers 
 
☐ Eligible because there are income eligibility requirements which limit the 
facility exclusively to low- and moderate-income persons. 
 
☐ Eligible because of required information on family size and income so that it 
is evident that at least 51% of the clientele are persons whose family income does 
not exceed the low- and moderate-income limit. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  



 

6 | P a g e  
 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
Please provide the following information. 
 
Project General Information: 

 
C.1. Project Name: ___________________________________________ 
 
C.2. Project Location: ____________________________________________ 
 
C.3. Project Zoning Area: ________________ 
 
C.4. Exhibit A – Project Implementation Schedule.  
 

☐ Exhibit A - Project Implementation Schedule* 
*Required. 
*Please upload/attach a copy of the implementation schedule. 
 

C.5. Scope of Work – Please describe the specific project activities that will be 

undertaken. ____________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
C.6. Service Area – Include the exact street location, the geographical boundaries, 
characteristics, and nature of the neighborhood/community of the project. 
 

☐ Exhibit B – Project Location and Service Area Maps* 
*Required. 
*Please upload/attach a map showing the location and service area 
boundaries of the project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

7 | P a g e  
 

Definition of the Problem and Need: 
 

C.7. Describe the circumstances in your community that make this project 
necessary. You must provide detailed specific information on the urgency and 
severity of the need for this project, such as health and safety problems, 
substandard housing conditions, public facility problems, lack of essential services, 
etc. ____________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
C.8. Explain why the proposed project cannot be undertaken without CDBG funds. 

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
☐ Exhibit C – Project Photos and Preliminary Site Plans and Documentation* 
 
*Required. 
*Please upload/attach supporting documentation and photographs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

8 | P a g e  
 

County and Local Planning Goals and Objectives: 
 

C.9. Explain the proposed project’s relationship to the goals and objectives outlined 
in the City’s Consolidated Plan. ____________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
C.10. Clearly explain the project’s local priority and its relationship to your 
municipal (or organizational) comprehensive planning and/or capital improvements 
program. _______________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
C.11. Describe how your municipality/organization has worked and/or is working to 
provide and support affordable housing within this specific neighborhood or 
community. Additionally, provide an assessment of the impact of any improvements 
completed to date in the designated neighborhood or community. 
_______________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
☐ Exhibit D – Local Governing Board and Planning Commission Approval* 
*Required. 
*Please upload/attach formal letters of approval and/or resolutions from the 
local governing body and planning commission. Organizations must obtain 
formal written endorsement from the governing board. 
 
 



 

9 | P a g e  
 

PROJECT COSTS 
 
Provide the financial data requested below. Costs should be based on the best information 
available. More exact figures will be requested if needed. When preparing this data, consider the 
following: 
 

• A project should be completed in one phase, if feasible; 
• Federal Prevailing Wage Rates apply to all construction projects over $2,000; 
• Cost estimates must be as detailed as possible; 
• Project sponsors must certify that a minimum of twenty percent (20%) of the total project 

cost will be financed through non-CDBG sources of funding. At least five percent (5%) 
of the costs of construction contracts must be paid with non-CDBG funds. Project 
sponsors are responsible for covering all legal, advertising, right-of-way acquisition, 
engineering, and design (soft) costs. Proposed community park projects require a fifty 
percent (50%) Match through non-CDBG sources of funding. 
 

D.1. Total Cost of the Project: $__________ 
 
D.2. Grant Amount Requested: $___________ 
 
D.3. Percent Request Total: ________% 
 
D.4. Total Other Funding: $__________ 
 
D.5. Total Match Funding: $__________ 
 
D.6. Construction Costs Only 
 

☐ Exhibit A – Construction Cost Estimates* 
 
*Required. 
* Please upload/attach a detailed line-item construction budget. 
 

D.7. Construction Amount Estimate: $__________ 
 
D.8. Date of Estimate: _____________________ 
 
D.9. Source of Estimate: ________________________________________________ 
 

 
  



 

10 | P a g e  
 

BUDGET 
 

Please provide the following information. 
 

Current Year Summary: 
  
E.1. Annual Budget: $_________ 
 
E.2. Capital Improvement Budget: $_________ 
 
E.3. Anticipated Operating Reserve: $_________ 
 
E.4. Please submit a Current Year Budget. 
 

Municipal Water and Sewer Authorities: 
 
E.5. Current Number of Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDUs): _________ 
 
E.6. Current Amount of Indebtedness: $________ 
 
E.7. Present Hook-Up or Tapping Fees: $________ 
 
E.8. Quarterly or Monthly User Fees: $________ 
 
E.9. Do you have other fees not listed?  ☐ Yes* ☐ No 
*Please specify/describe any other fees and their amounts. 
 
E.10. Please submit your most recent Audited Financial Statement. (All Community 
Facilities must also submit proof of their IRS 501(c)(3) Nonprofit Documentation) 
 
  



 

11 | P a g e  
 

ENVIRONMENTAL-HISTORIC-ENGINEERING REGs 
 

Please provide the following information.  
 

F.1. Has the Applicant identified any of the following in the proposed service area? 
Check all that apply: 
 

☐ Historic Buildings/District 
 
☐ Floodplain and/or wetlands – Attach FEMA Map 
 
☐ Endangered Species 
 
☐ Explosive and Flammable Hazards 
 
☐ Farmland Protection 
 
☐ Farmland Protection 
 
☐ Airport Hazards 
 

F.2. List all applicable Federal, State, and Local permits or approvals required for 
this project and list the current status of each permit or approval. 
 

Permit/Approval Required Application Date Application Status 
   
   
   
   
   

 
F.3. If the need for permits or approvals has not been identified and/or if the 
application submission process for permits has not been started, please explain why 
not. ____________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 



 

12 | P a g e  
 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES 
 

Please provide the following information. 
 
Objective of the Project: 
  

F.1. Identify which objective will be addressed by the proposed activity. (Select one) 
 

☐ Suitable Living Environment – This objective relates to activities that are 
designed to benefit communities, families, or individuals by addressing issues in 
their living environment. 
 
☐ Decent Affordable Housing – This objective focuses on housing programs 
where the purpose of the program is to meet individual family or community 
needs and not programs where housing is an element of a larger effort.  
 
☐ Creating Economic Opportunities – This objective applies to the types of 
activities related to economic commercial revitalization or job creation.  
 

Expected Outcome of the Project: 
 

F.2. Identify which outcome category best reflects what you are seeking to achieve in 
funding this particular activity. (Select one) 
 

☐ Availability/Accessibility – This outcome category applies to activities that 
make services, infrastructure, housing, or shelter available or accessible to low- 
and moderate-income persons, including persons with disabilities. In this 
category, accessibility does not refer only to physical barriers, but also to making 
the affordable basics of daily living available and accessible to low- and 
moderate-income persons. 
 
☐ Affordability – This outcome category applies to activities that provide 
affordability in a variety of ways in the lives of low- and moderate-income 
persons. It can include the creation of maintenances of affordable housing, basic 
infrastructure hook-ups, or services such as transportation or daycare.  
 
☐ Sustainability – Promoting Livable or Viable Communities – This outcome 
applies to projects where the activity or activities are aimed at improving 
communities or neighborhoods, helping to make them livable or viable by 
providing benefits to persons of low- and moderate-income, or by removing slums 
or blighted areas through multiple activities that sustain communities or 
neighborhoods.  



 

13 | P a g e  
 

SUBMISSION 
 
Once an application is submitted, it can only be “Re-opened” by an Administrator. 
 
CERTIFICATIONS 
 
The Applicant hereby assures and certifies that it will comply with the regulations, policies, 
guidelines, and requirements with respect to the acceptance and use of federal funds for this 
federally assisted program, if approved for funding. Also, the Applicant gives assurances and 
certifies with respect to the grant that: 
 
☐ It possesses the legal authority to make a grant submission and execute a Grant Contract 

to undertake the proposed program; 
 
☐ Its governing body has adopted or passed as an official act, a resolution, motion, or 

similar action authorizing the submission of the Funding Request Application; 
 
☐ The Applicant will work to affirmatively further fair and affordable housing and take 

appropriate actions to overcome the effects of any identified impediments to fair and 
affordable housing choices for low- and moderate-income persons and families. When 
affordable housing is being developed within the municipality, the Applicant agrees that 
this may include working in cooperation with the City of Goldsboro; 

 
☐ The Applicant will administer the grant, if provided, in accordance with Community 

Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) regulations defined in 24 CFR Part 570 and 
other Federal regulations, policies, guidelines, and requirements, including those outlined 
in 2 CFR 200 as they relate to the acceptance and use of Federal funds under this 
federally assisted program; and the Uniform Administrative and Program Management 
Standards and Cost Principles contained in 2 CFR 200; 

 
☐ No member, officer, or employee of the Applicant, or its designees or agents, no member 

of the City Council, or any other public official of such locality or localities who 
exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the program during his/her  
tenure in office or for one year thereafter, shall have any interest, directly or indirectly, in  
any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be performed in  
connection with the program assisted under this grant, if approved; and 

 
☐ It will give HUD, the Comptroller General, the City of Goldsboro, or any other 

authorized representative access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers,  
or documents.  

 



 

14 | P a g e  
 

☐ THE APPLICANT CERTIFIES THAT: To the best of their knowledge and belief, the data 
and statements presented in this Application are true and correct; the governing body of the 
Applicant has duly authorized the document; and the Applicant will comply with the 
certifications listed above if the application is approved. 

 
 
_________________________________   ________________________ 
                        Signature        Title 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 



K



1 |Rental Housing Development  

                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AFFORDABLE RENTAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
PROGRAM GUIDELINES 

 

 
 

 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT 

 

 
 

 
 

https://fr.wikipedia.org/wiki/D%C3%A9partement_du_Logement_et_du_D%C3%A9veloppement_urbain_des_%C3%89tats-Unis
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/


2 |Rental Housing Development  

PROGRAM SUMMARY 
The City of Goldsboro's Community Relations & Development Department announces the 
availability of funds under the City's Affordable Rental Housing Development Program for 
qualified developers to submit proposals for the new construction or acquisition and/or 
rehabilitation of multifamily or single-family rental units. Rental units assisted with City funds 
must be affordable to families, individuals, and/or the elderly with annual incomes at or below 
80% of the area median income (AMI). Funds are available through allocation of the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development's (HUD) Home Investment Partnership 
(HOME) Grant. 

1) APPLICATION DEADLINE AND SCHEDULE 
Developers may submit proposals to the City at any time, subject to the availability of 
funds. 

2) ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 
For-profit or non-profit corporations, individuals, general or limited partnerships, or 
limited liability companies with demonstrated experience and capacity in the 
development and management of affordable rental housing may apply. Applicants 
without the necessary experience may be required to attend a developer workshop 
prior to funding commitment. 

3) ELIGIBLE PROJECTS 
a. Projects may include the construction of new units, the rehabilitation of existing 

units, or the adaptive re-use of existing structures. 
b. The property must meet the minimum property standards and all applicable building 

codes upon completion of construction or rehabilitation. Higher scores will be given 
to projects that commit to meeting Energy Star requirements or better (third-party 
verification required upon completion of construction/rehabilitation). 

c. Projects must contain at least four (4) assisted rental units within a four (4) block 
radius. 

d. Development of permanent supportive housing, transitional housing, and non- 
congregate shelter intended for occupancy by lower-income households are 
allowable projects under this program NOFA. 

e. The properties must be located within the city limits of Goldsboro or be in the 
process of annexation prior to staff making recommendations to the City 
Council. 

f. Projects that are presently occupied must include relocation expenses in the 
development budget. (NOTE: Tenants cannot be asked to relocate in anticipation of 
awarding for City funds. Please see 49 CFR 24.205 for further details on the Uniform 
Relocation Act). 

g. Projects must have secured site control at the time of application. In the case of City- 
owned property, The City of Goldsboro is open to various site conveyance options, 
including fee-simple ownership and a long-term ground lease. A long-term ground 
lease is preferred for the proposed rental developments. 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-A/part-24


3 |Rental Housing Development  

h. Staff will review applications in the rezoning process; however, staff will not 
recommend a loan for approval if the site is not zoned correctly for its intended use. 
The developer shall take full responsibility for any required rezoning. 

i. Projects for public housing modernization or operations are ineligible activities 
under this program. 

4) ELIGIBLE COSTS 

• Property Acquisition 
• Demolition 
• On-Site Improvements 
• Off-site Utility Connections 
• Construction costs necessary to construct or rehab a non-luxury project with 

suitable amenities in accordance with HUD property standards. 
• Soft costs associated with the development and financing of the project 
• Reasonable developer fees 
• Relocation costs 

INELIGIBLE COSTS 

• Costs associated with construction items or materials of a luxury nature 
• Furnishings (except where required for special needs projects) 
• Most off-site improvements (utility connections into the adjacent street are eligible 

costs) 
• Developer/sponsor administrative costs (other than included in the developer fee) 
• Substitution of City funds for any source of funds that have been previously 

committed to the project, or represented to any other funding source as being 
available for the project, is not permitted 

• Capitalized replacement reserve 

5) RENT AND INCOME LIMITS 
All City-assisted rental units will follow HOME requirements and carry rent and 
occupancy restrictions for varying lengths of time, depending upon the average amount 
of HOME funds invested per unit. 

 
Activity Average Per-Unit HOME $ Minimum Affordability 

Rehabilitation or Acquisition 
of Existing Housing 

< $15,000/unit 
$15,000-$40,000/unit 

>$40,000/unit 

5 years 
10 years 
15 years 

Refinancing of Rehabilitation 
Project 

Any $ Amount 15 years 

New Construction or 
Acquisition of New Housing 

Any $ Amount 20 years 

 
 
 

 



4 |Rental Housing Development  

The rent limits apply to the rent plus the utilities or the utility allowance. One hundred 
percent (100%) of units funded with City of Goldsboro loan funds must meet the following 
rent restrictions: HOME Program Rent Limits 

The maximum HOME rents (High HOME Rents) are the lesser of: 
a. The fair market rent for existing housing for comparable units in the area as 

established by HUD under 24 CFR 888.111; or 
b. A rent that does not exceed 30 percent of the adjusted income of a family whose 

annual income equals 65 percent of the median income for the area, as determined 
by HUD, with adjustments for the number of bedrooms in the unit. The HOME rent 
limits provided by HUD will include average occupancy per unit and adjusted income 
assumptions. 

In rental projects with five or more HOME-assisted rental units, at least 20 percent of 
the HOME-assisted units must be occupied by very low-income families and meet one of 
the following rent requirements: 
a. The rent does not exceed 30 percent of the annual income of a family whose income 

equals 50 percent of the median income for the area, based on household size, as 
determined by HUD. 

b. The tenant portion of rent does not exceed 30 percent of the family's adjusted 
income (for families that receive Federal or State project-based rental subsidy); the 
maximum rent (i.e., tenant contribution plus project-based rental subsidy) is the 
rent allowable under the Federal or State project-based rental subsidy program. 

Rents and tenant incomes will be annually reviewed for compliance. Priority and more 
generous financing terms will be given to developments that set aside units for persons 
making at or below 30% of AMI. See HUD Income Limits 

CITY FUNDING IN COMBINATION WITH SECTION 8 
Projects may not increase rents above the City's formula for tenants with tenant-based 
rental assistance (such as Section 8 vouchers). Units with project-based rental assistance 
(such as project-based Section 8); however, can rent for the maximum rent allowed 
under the rental assistance program provided that they are rented to a very low-income 
household and the tenant contribution to rent is no more than 30% of the household 
income. 

ANNUAL RECERTIFICATION OF TENANT INCOME 
Owners are required to re-examine tenant incomes annually for all restricted units to 
ensure that tenants continue to meet the income requirements of this and other 
applicable funding programs. Rent schedules and utility allowances, including any 
increases, must be reviewed and approved annually by the City. In the event that a 
tenant's income exceeds the applicable HUD income limits for lower-income 
households, the tenant's rent must be increased to an amount equal to 30% of the 
tenant's adjusted income, less an allowance for tenant-paid utilities. Projects that are 
also assisted with Low-Income Housing Tax Credits or other state sources will be subject 
to those relevant rules regarding over-income tenants. 

https://www.hudexchange.info/programs/home/home-rent-limits/
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/section-888.111
https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/il/il2022/2022summary.odn


5 |Rental Housing Development  

6) LOAN TERMS 
a. For rental projects, the maximum City loan amount is 100 percent of the total 

residential development cost of the project's affordable units (those units are 
subject to long-term affordability restrictions). The interest rate shall be 4% in cases 
where the City of Goldsboro provides primary financing. 

b. If applicable, the value of any City land donations will be counted as part of the 
maximum allowable subsidy total. 

c. Other sources of appropriate financing must be identified but not necessarily 
committed at the time of application. Projects will be reviewed to ensure that only 
the minimum level of City subsidy needed will be provided. All other funding sources 
must be committed before closing the City loan. 

d. HOME-assisted units are subject to the HOME Maximum Per Unit Subsidy Limits as 
published annually by HUD. 

The terms of the City funds will be negotiated consistent with the following 
guidelines: 
1. Construction-to-permanent financing (Single close loan) – The loan starts as a 

construction loan where money is drawn as needed to pay for costs of 
construction, then converts to a permanent mortgage upon completion. 

2. Interest Rate: 0%-4%, depending on a project's needs. 
3. Term: 5/10/20/30/40 Years, dependent upon per unit investment. 
4. Repayment: Payments of interest and principal will be due from excess cash flow 

from operations after payment of operating costs, senior debt, reserves, and 
deferred developer fees. To the extent payments cannot be made, they will be 
deferred for the term of the loan. All loans are due on sale, refinancing, or 
transfer (except to a related entity, such as a limited partnership, subject to City 
approval) or at the end of the term. 

5. Lien: City loans will be evidenced by a promissory note secured by a mortgage on 
the project. A development agreement will specify all development obligations 
per state requirements as listed in NC Statute 160D-1001. Post-occupancy use 
restrictions will be enforced through a regulatory agreement recorded against 
the project, including the land and the improvements. 

6. Right of First Refusal: If the owner decides to sell the property, the City of 
Goldsboro has the right to purchase the property first. 

 
7) FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS AND UNDERWRITING ASSUMPTIONS 

The City will review the development budget for accuracy and reasonableness. 
Operating budgets and proformas for the term of 5/10/20/30/40-year affordability must 
meet the following criteria: 
a. The operating budget must show positive cash flow inclusive of all fees within 18 

months of initial rent-up, and the first-year Debt Service Coverage ratio shall not be 
less than 1.15:1. Ideally, the budget should show sufficient cash flow to make a 
modest payment to the City loan. 

b. Include operating and replacement reserves (See Replacement and Operating 
Reserve Requirements below). 

https://www.ncleg.gov/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/PDF/ByArticle/Chapter_160D/Article_10.pdf


6 |Rental Housing Development  

c. 5% annual vacancy/collection loss for family, senior, and preservation projects and 
7% annual vacancy/collection loss for Single Room Occupancy (SRO) or special needs 
projects. 

d. A 3.0% annual increase for expenses (other than property taxes and replacement 
reserves deposits) and a 2.0% annual increase for income. 

e. The operating budget will be reviewed to ensure it is sufficient for proper 
maintenance and management but is not excessive compared to other similar 
properties. 

f. If the project has a commitment for rental assistance, two operating proformas must 
be provided, one assuming rental assistance will be renewed and one assuming 
rental assistance will expire after the initial contract term. Rents must remain 
restricted according to City requirements even if the rental assistance is no longer 
available. 

g. General requirements, builders' profit, overhead, consulting fees, contingency, 
architect's fees, and developer's fees are reasonable within the scope of the project 
and within the limits, as listed in NCHFA's Qualified Allocation Plan (QAP). 

h. City legal fees, which are the responsibility of the developer or sponsor, are included 
in the development budget. 

i. A 5% construction cost contingency is required for new construction projects. A 10% 
construction cost contingency is required for rehab projects. 

j. Replacement Reserves are 0.6% of the replacement cost of the structure annually, 
up to $500 per unit for family developments and $400 per unit for senior 
developments. For rehabilitation projects, developers will be required to submit a 
third-party replacement cost analysis in which the lifecycle and cost of major 
building systems are estimated and amortized over the number of units and years. 
Gut rehab projects should use reserve standards for new construction projects. The 
City reserves the right to request an updated replacement reserve analysis every five 
years. 

k. Operating Reserves are annual deposits of not less than 1% of annual gross rental 
income are required until an operating reserve has been capitalized at a level equal 
to three months of operating costs and debt service. The operating reserve must be 
maintained at the level of three months of operating costs during the term of the 
City regulatory agreement. 

l. The City funds are typically provided for gap financing. Fees are capped at award and 
may not increase thereafter. 

8) EVALUATION CRITERIA 
The following criteria will be used to evaluate development proposals. The relative 
importance of the evaluation criteria attempts to track the evaluation criteria of the 
NCHFA as well as Goldsboro's housing goals. The probability of the project closing is an 
important criterion. The location of the site, the quality of the proposed improvements, 
the population being served, the financial strength and the capability of the developer, 
the capability of the property manager, and the ability to repay the loan with the 
minimum repayment terms are also important criteria. The City will not issue a 
commitment unless the zoning is appropriate to the plan. 

https://www.nchfa.com/rental-housing-partners/rental-developers/qualified-allocation-plan


7 |Rental Housing Development  

a. Financial Feasibility, Leveraging, and Development Costs (30 points) 
Leveraging (10 points): Degree to which outside funding will be pursued. Points will 
be awarded for the projected applicant's equity and permanent financing, excluding 
City of Goldsboro NC resources of the total development costs. 

Funding Commitments (10 points): Degree to which outside funding has been 
committed. 

Discretionary Land Use Approvals (10 points): Maximum points awarded for sites 
that have obtained discretionary public land use approvals and present evidence of 
site control. 

b. Location (15 points) 
Targeted Redevelopment Area (10 points): The development proposal is within any 
area designated as a development area by the City of Goldsboro. 

Proximity to appropriate services and/or employment centers and transportation (5 
points). 

c. Development Quality (20 points) 
The building design and use are compatible with the surrounding environment and 
existing neighborhood with appropriate vehicular and pedestrian connections to 
nearby amenities (0 to 7 points). 

The overall building design is aesthetically pleasing and well thought out and is 
characterized as possessing "architectural appeal" with material selections that are 
of good quality, designed for normal maintenance, and can be expected to perform 
well over the long term (0 to 7 points). 

The site is suitable for the proposed development without additional major 
geotechnical, environmental, or utility infrastructure expenditures (0 to 6 points). 

d. Development and Management Team (20 points) 
Capacity and experience of the development team points are awarded based on 
evidence that the lead staff and supervisory staff proposed to work on the current 
proposal have the necessary expertise and capacity to undertake the project (0 to 7 
points). 

Capacity and experience of the property management company with comparable 
size and type projects evidenced by occupancy levels, maintenance and repair of 
existing rental units, compliance with federal requirements, and record-keeping and 
reporting (0 to 7 points). 

The financial strength of the developer: Points are awarded based on evidence that 
the developer is financially sound and will be able to sustain the costs of effectively 
following through with the current proposal. (0 to 6 points). 

e. Target Population and Supportive Services (10 points) 
The project designates at least 20% of units to households earning at or below 30% 
AMI (5 points). 



8 |Rental Housing Development  

The project serves vulnerable populations (older adults age 55+, individuals with 
disabilities, homeless, or veterans (3 points). 

The proposal includes a detailed supportive services plan to outline the description 
of case management and referral services to assist households in living 
independently and achieving self-sufficiency (2 points). 

f. Bonus (10 points) 
The City of Goldsboro prohibits discrimination in any manner based on race, color, 
creed, national origin, sex, age or handicap, or sexual orientation and will pursue an 
affirmative policy of fostering, promoting, and conducting business with women and 
minority-owned business enterprises. 

The City of Goldsboro encourages participation by certified minority and women- 
owned businesses. The organization or individuals applying should make a good faith 
effort to achieve this goal and include documentation with their proposal that 
addresses these criteria (0 to 5 points). 

If a market study is conducted to demonstrate a housing market in the area (0 to 5 
points). A market study is required for development proposals over 48 units. 

9) EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS 
Applications will be reviewed for completeness and eligibility. All eligible proposals will 
be ranked according to the criteria stated in this Request for Proposals. Also, note that 
all sources of financing must be identified before a commitment letter will be issued. All 
sources of funding must be secured before closing. Commitments will be valid for 12 
months. 

Note: Should any project with a funding commitment return to the City or with 
requests for additional funds, payment changes, changes in terms of funding 
commitment, units produced, or any other substantial change to the original 
commitment, the developer will be required to resubmit an application for the 
changes to be considered. 

10) ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW AND ASSESSMENT (NEPA) 
HOME-funded projects must be assessed in accordance with the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1960 (NEPA) prior to loan closing. This includes a Phase I 
environmental assessment, and if recommended by Phase I, a Phase II assessment must 
be provided before a project will be recommended to the City Council. With the Phase 
II, applicants must also provide a discussion of mitigation measures, the impact of any 
recommendations on the project budget, design, etc. 

Choice-Limiting Actions Prohibited During NEPA Review. Because of the likelihood that 
federal funds will be awarded, applicants must refrain from undertaking activities that 
would have an adverse environmental impact or would otherwise limit the choice of 
reasonable alternatives between the time of application submittal and when the City 
has completed its environmental review process. Such activities include acquiring, 
rehabilitating, converting, leasing, repairing, or constructing a property, any site 
preparation, or committing or expending HUD or non-Federal funds for HOME program 



9 |Rental Housing Development  

activities with respect to any project eligible under this NOFA. If the applicant has 
entered into a purchase agreement or contract for any of the above activities prior to 
applying for NOFA funds, work may continue pursuant to that contract. But 
amendments to the contract or new contracts may not be entered into. HOME funds 
may not be used to reimburse an applicant for project-related costs incurred after the 
applicant has submitted the application for funding and before the completion of the 
City's environmental review process except for activities that are excluded and not 
subject to federal environmental review requirements, and for certain relocation costs. 

Applicants must sign a certification that they understand this restriction. The prohibition 
against choice-limiting actions begins on the date that the application is submitted to 
the City. Applicants are encouraged to check with the City's Community Relations and 
Development staff regarding eligible expenditures after the submission of an 
application. Failure to comply with this requirement could result in a project being 
ineligible for City funding. 

City Community Relations & Development staff will seek to obtain NEPA approval in a 
timely manner. Completing the NEPA review, including local and federal notice periods, 
takes a minimum of 8-12 weeks after receipt of all necessary information. 

11) FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS 
All HOME-funded projects must comply with applicable federal statutes and laws, 
including, but not limited to: 

• Section 3 of the U.S. Housing Act of 1968, as amended 
• Equal Opportunity and related requirements in 24 CFR Section 982.53 
• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
• Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 
• Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 
• Fair Housing Act of 1988 
• National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA) 
• Federal prevailing wage requirements, including Davis-Bacon and Related Acts 

12) RIGHT TO REJECT PROPOSALS 
The City of Goldsboro reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received as a 
result of the Request for Proposals or to negotiate on the terms of the funds to best 
serve the interests of the City of Goldsboro. 

 
13) GENERAL LOAN TERMS 

TIMELINE OF CITY COMMITMENTS 
City conditional financing commitments are made for 12 months from the date of City 
Council approval. All other sources of funds must be committed within that time frame. 

City staff will review the project for feasibility and assess the likelihood of receipt of 
proposed funding. If the 12-month period elapses without the commitment of full 
project financing, the City funding commitment will be revoked, and the project must 
re-compete for funds through the NOFA. The inability to meet a project schedule may 
also result in negative points for future NOFA applications. 



10 |Rental Housing Development  

Projects funded with HOME must complete construction within four years of signing a 
written agreement with the City. 

Rental units assisted with HOME funds must be occupied within 18 months of project 
completion. 

MONTHLY UPDATES 
Upon commitment of funds from the City, the borrower must provide written monthly 
updates to Community Relations & Development staff. Monthly updates will allow staff 
to anticipate upcoming approvals needed and to stay informed about efforts to move the 
project forward on schedule. If monthly updates are not provided in a timely manner, 
decreased developer capacity points may be assessed for the next NOFA application 
submitted by the project sponsor. Monthly updates must include a schedule projection 
related to the four-year completion deadline required by HOME program regulations. 

SUBORDINATION 
The City will subordinate its affordability covenants to the mortgages securing other 
lenders' financing, subject to staff approval and loan ratio to total development cost. 
The affordability covenants control, among other things, the maximum income of 
tenants of project units and the maximum rents allowed for project units. The City 
mortgage may be subordinated to private financing on a case-by-case basis. 

PAYMENTS 
Payments of interest and principal will be due from excess cash flow from operations 
after payment of operating costs, senior debt, reserves, and deferred developer fees. To 
the extent payments cannot be made, they will be deferred for the term of the loan. All 
loans are due on sale, refinancing, transfer (except to a related entity, such as a limited 
partnership, subject to City approval), or at the end of the affordability term. 

City loans will be evidenced by a promissory note secured by a mortgage on the project. 
A development agreement will specify all development obligations. Post-occupancy use 
restrictions will be enforced through a regulatory agreement recorded against the 
project, including both the land and the improvements. The minimum term for 
affordability restrictions is five years. 

14) DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS 
Funds will be disbursed to the borrower only for costs actually incurred. Payment for 
construction costs will be made on a progress payment basis, subject to the approval of 
each draw request by the City. The progress schedule can be negotiated but will 
typically be disbursed at 25%, 50%, 75%, and 100% completion. The City will retain ten 
percent (10%) of the amount of City financing as performance retention, to be released 
upon recordation of a Notice of Completion, the release of all liens, and satisfactory 
compliance with any other City requirements including City contracting programs. 
Therefore, City funds will be disbursed in the following increments: 15% at 25% 
completion; 40% at 50% completion; 65% at 75% completion; and 100% at final draw. 
 
 



11 |Rental Housing Development  

15) MARKET DEMANDS AND DESIGN GUIDELINES 
Projects should be planned and designed according to market demand. A market study 
prepared by an approved third-party market analyst must be submitted with the 
application to ensure there is adequate demand for any proposed project which 
includes 48 or more units. At City discretion, this requirement may be suspended for 
smaller projects. 

LIVABILITY STANDARDS 
The City's provision of affordable housing financing is a long-term investment. 
Underwriting includes assuring that each development will be well-designed and well- 
constructed to provide decent, safe, affordable housing over the long term for a 
population that does not have a wide range of housing choices. 

The quality and marketability of any housing unit are affected by its size and the 
livability of the space, including the space's ability to accommodate the potential 
number of occupants and the necessary furniture. A larger unit does not guarantee the 
successful accommodation of a particular furniture layout over a more efficiently laid 
out smaller one. The project must meet all code requirements imposed by the City’s 
Minimum Housing Standards, but it may be appropriate to exceed these requirements 
for certain projects. 

• Windows/Lighting/Ventilation – Units must be designed so that there is adequate 
natural light and ventilation. 

• Parking – In general, the minimum number of spaces required for the particular 
site shall be provided. Any reductions in that number must be approved by 
Development Services. 

• Building Shape and Appearance – The structure should respond to its context, 
enhance the neighborhood, and create a pride of place for its residents. 

• Landscaping – The design should be appropriate for the intended use of all the 
residents. 

• Quality of Building Materials – Materials must be of quality and durability to assure 
the long-term viability of the structures. 

• Open Space/Storage Space - The project must address adequate levels of the 
following, based on the type of project, location, and target group. Examples of 
acceptable open space/storage space include: 

 common space (e.g., community room); 
 secure, on-site laundry facilities; 
 children's play area (family projects); 
 storage space (both inside and outside of the unit); 
 open space (public and private space within the housing complex) 

 
 
 
 
 



12 |Rental Housing Development  

16) OTHER GUIDELINES AND CITY REQUIREMENTS 
APPRAISALS 
If an acquisition is included in the development budget, applicants are required to 
submit a recent appraisal of the project site and any existing improvements as part of 
the application. Appraisals must have been completed within six months of the 
application deadline or, if the project has already been acquired, within six months of 
acquisition. 

DONATED PROPERTY 
If land or buildings have been donated for the project, the value of the donated 
property should be included in the total development cost both as an acquisition cost 
and as a source of funds. If the property is to be donated, the value of the property will 
be included when calculating the percentage of City subsidy. 

MANAGEMENT AND MARKETING (for 4% LIHTC projects only) 
A Preliminary Management Plan and Marketing Plan must be submitted in the 
application. A Final Management and Marketing Plan will be required 120 days prior to 
construction completion, and a Management Contract must be submitted to the City 30 
days prior to construction completion. The final Marketing Plan must be approved prior 
to beginning rent-up activities, including marketing flyers and application materials. 

A complete market study for the project must be reviewed and approved by the City of 
Goldsboro prior to loan closing. 

COST CERTIFICATION 
Developers must arrange for an independent cost certification on completion of a 
project. Approval of this certification is a requirement for the City's release of final 
payments. 

The cost certification must include final sources and uses budget-based on all the 
original City approved budget line items. The developer must show all sources in lien 
order and include limited and general partner contributions, if applicable. This should 
include loans or equity contributions that were spent and expenses that were incurred 
during the development period. 

The developer must show the total proposed initial sources and uses and the actual 
sources and uses by line item. The analysis must explain any difference for line items 
over or below 10% of the original sources and uses budget. Please note that the City's 
approved budget must be used for this analysis. The City will use this analysis to ensure 
that all of the City's final uses were spent on HOME-eligible costs. 

RELOCATION 
Federal relocation law will apply for projects that temporarily or permanently displace 
current business or residential occupants, and relocation assistance and benefits may be 
required, which can add substantially to the project cost. See the Application 
Instructions for more information. 
 
 



13 |Rental Housing Development  

RESIDENT SERVICES AND SPECIAL NEEDS UNITS 
Supportive and social service coordination reasonable for the population being served 
may be included as a cost paid by building operations. However, direct service provision 
may not be paid for from the building's operating funds unless another funding source 
requires the direct service. 

"Special needs units" are defined as units reserved for populations including the 
following: veterans, developmentally disabled, survivors of physical abuse, persons with 
chronic illness including HIV/AIDS or mental illness, displaced teenage parents (or 
expectant teenage parents), individuals exiting from institutional settings, youth exiting 
foster care, chronic substance abusers, or another specific group as approved by the 
City of Goldsboro. 

UNITS FOR HOMELESS HOUSEHOLDS OR THOSE AT RISK OF HOMELESSNESS 
For NOFA scoring purposes, the City will utilize the HUD definition of "homeless" and "at 
risk of homelessness." 

Projects with units set aside for formerly homeless households or those at risk of 
homelessness must provide sufficient support services for the population served and 
show adequate commitment to services. 

MIXED-INCOME PROJECTS 
In mixed-income properties, the affordable units must not be substantially different 
from the market rate units. All lower-income units must be of the same construction 
type as market-rate units but need not contain the same interior amenities or the same 
amount of floor space as long as livability is maintained. The exterior of the lower- 
income units must be indistinguishable from the exterior of the market rate units. 
Lower-income units should be reasonably distributed throughout the project and should 
not be isolated or segregated in only one portion of the project. 

INSURANCE 
During development, developers must obtain comprehensive general liability and 
property (hazard) insurance coverage of at least $2 million. The City also requires 
property damage or builder's risk insurance in an amount equal to 100% of the 
structure's replacement cost, with a lender's loss payable endorsement in favor of the 
City. Construction contractors will be required to obtain liability and builders risk 
insurance in an amount equal to $2 million. Automobile insurance, professional liability, 
workers' compensation, and employer's liability coverage are also required. 

After completion, similar levels of liability and hazard coverage are specified by the 
regulatory agreement. All policies must name the City as an additional insured; property 



14 |Rental Housing Development  

insurance must have a lender's loss payable endorsement. For more information on 
insurance requirements, please contact the Housing Development staff. 

PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BONDS 
As per 2 CFR Part 200.326, for projects exceeding $250,000, general contractors will be 
required to provide payment and performance bonds equal to 100% of the construction 
contract amount. 

DISABLED AND SENIOR ACCESSIBILITY 
Developments assisted by the City must meet the requirements of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act, among other local, state, and federal laws. 
Projects with federal funding must also meet the more stringent accessibility 
requirements of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (24 CFR 100.205 and Part 
8). Section 504 sets minimum percentages of accessible units and calls for fully 
accessible common areas, among its numerous requirements. For projects funded with 
HOME, 5% of the total number of units must be accessible to people with physical 
disabilities, and an additional 2% of units must be accessible to people with auditory and 
visual disabilities, as defined in the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (UFAS). 

Where Section 504, the Fair Housing Act, or ADA apply, the developer and project 
architect must provide written certification of compliance. 

LEAD-BASED PAINT 
The use of lead-based paint on City-funded projects is prohibited. Testing and 
abatement of lead-based paint in demolition projects may be required. Projects must 
follow the federal guidelines, which require lead-safe work practices and notification to 
prospective residents of potential lead-based paint hazards, among other requirements. 
If applicable, Project sponsors should be aware of the EPA regulation that requires all 
renovators of pre-1978 homes and child-occupied facilities to be trained in lead-safe 
work practices and certified by the EPA. For more information, go to 
www.epa.gov/lead/pubs/renovation.htm. 

NON DISCRIMINATION 
All applicants must agree not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, ancestry, 
national origin, religion, sex, sexual preference, age, marital status, family status, source 
of income, physical or mental disability, Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) 
or AIDS-related conditions (ARC), or any other arbitrary basis. 

http://www.epa.gov/lead/pubs/renovation.htm


15 |Rental Housing Development  

APPLICATION SUBMISSION CHECKLIST 
 

To be considered complete, the proposal must include the following supporting documents: 

 Project schedule: For all projects, please submit a detailed timeline showing when each 
work task will be completed over the duration of the project. (HOME funds require that 
project construction begin within 12 months of issuing the final commitment letter and 
be complete within four years) 

  Location maps indicating the project site 

• Site map showing lot boundaries, locations of structure(s), and other site features 

• General location map (at least ½ mile radius) 

 Evidence of site control (deed, contract of sale, option to purchase, or other evidence 
acceptable to the City) 

 Evidence of zoning compliance for the proposed project or evidence that zoning change 
is in process with a likelihood of approval prior to making recommendations 

 Outline plans and specifications, including elevation, floor plans, and a site plan 

 Resume or other qualifications of the developer or sponsor, including a list of previous 
projects with current vacancy rates 

 Letters of Support/ Financial commitment letters from all funding sources 

 Description of supportive services offered to tenants (if applicable), including the 
provider of services, history of providing services to the proposed population, and 
annual budget for the supportive service delivery 

 Description of how the developer intends to recruit/use small disadvantaged minority & 
women-owned businesses in the project 

 Appraisal (required for all acquisitions prior to closing) and Phase I, if available 

 Previous two years' financial statements for the lead applicant 

 Total development budget including sources and uses and proforma in accordance to 
5/10/20/30/40-year affordability period 



   
 

1 
 

 

Affordable Rental Housing Development 
Program Application 

2023-2024 

Table of Contents 
PROGRAM OVERVIEW .......................................................................................................................... 2 

A. AGENCY INFORMATION ............................................................................................................... 3 

B. AGENCY STRUCTURE & BACKGROUND ................................................................................. 5 

C. PROJECT TEAM ............................................................................................................................... 9 

Labor Standard/Davis-Bacon Requirements ........................................................................................ 9 

Section 3 Requirements .......................................................................................................................... 9 

D. GENERAL INFORMATION ........................................................................................................... 11 

Relocation............................................................................................................................................... 11 

Supportive Services ............................................................................................................................... 12 

Program Intake Process/Marketing Plan ............................................................................................ 13 

Estimated Project/Program Implementation Schedule ..................................................................... 14 

E. CONSISTENCY WITH LOCAL NEEDS AND DEMAND .......................................................... 15 

F. PROJECT FINANCIALS ................................................................................................................ 16 

G. AFFORDABILITY ........................................................................................................................... 18 

Development Rents/Affordability ........................................................................................................ 18 

Special Populations ............................................................................................................................... 19 

Monthly Utility Allowance .................................................................................................................... 20 

H. PROPERTY SITE AND BUILDING CONSIDERATION ........................................................... 21 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Fair Housing Act ......................................... 22 

I. DEVELOPMENT PLAN ................................................................................................................. 23 

Energy and Equipment Information ................................................................................................... 24 

J. REQUIRED DOCUMENTS ................................................................................................................ 26 

K. SUBMIT ............................................................................................................................................. 27 

 
 
  



2 | P a g e  
 

 
PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 
The City of Goldsboro (The City) announces the availability of HOME Investment 
Partnership Program (HOME) funds under the Affordable Rental Housing Development 
Program. The goal of this program is to increase the supply of decent and affordable 
housing in Goldsboro. The proposed project must create new affordable rental housing 
units or protect and preserve existing affordable rental housing through rehabilitation. 
Qualified for-profit and non-profit developers (Applicants) including Community Housing 
Development Organizations (CHDOs), are invited to submit applications for the 
rehabilitation or new construction of affordable rental housing units. The funds received 
by the City are used within the City’s geographic jurisdiction.  
 
The HOME program was established by Congress to address affordable housing needs 
under Title II of the Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act, as amended. Final HOME 
Rule and Regulations may be found in Part 92. The United States Department of Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD) provides the City annual entitlements such as the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and the HOME funds to address a broad 
range of housing and community and economic development needs. These guidelines 
provide background information, as well as the application and application process 
information for the usage of HOME funds.  
 
The City’s Consolidated Plan (ConPlan) identifies the community’s priority needs such as 
housing, homelessness, special needs, community development, and economic 
development. The City uses its funds to further its community development efforts and 
meet the identified priority needs.  
 

   
  



3 | P a g e  
 

A. AGENCY INFORMATION 
 

Please provide the following information (If more space is needed, attach paper to application). 
 

A.1. Legal Name of Agency: _______________________________________________ 
 

A.2. Agency Address: _____________________________________________________ 
 

A.3. Agency Telephone: ___________________________________________________ 
 

A.4. Agency Email: _______________________________________________________ 
 

A.5. Agency Website: _____________________________________________________ 
 

A.6. Federal Identification Number: ________________________________________ 
 

A.7. Unique Entity Identification Number: ___________________________________ 
 

A.8. Date Organization was Established: _____________________________________ 
 

A.9. Is the Agency registered to conduct business in the State of North Carolina?  
☐ Yes * ☐ No 

 
*Please upload/attach a copy of your State of North Carolina Business License. 
 

A.10. Is the Agency a Minority-owned Business Enterprise (MBE)? ☐ Yes ☐ No 
 

A.11. Is the Agency a Women-owned Business Enterprise (WBE)? ☐ Yes ☐ No 
 

A.12. Will the applicant include any MBE/WBE partners? ☐ Yes ☐ No 
 

A.13. Contact Information: 
 Name & Title: _____________________________________________________ 

 Email: ___________________________________________________________ 

 Phone: ___________________________________________________________ 

 

  



4 | P a g e  
 

A.14. Please list other managing general partner(s): 
 

Name:                                                                                   Partnership Percentage: 
  
  
  

 
  

A.15. Will the development be owned or sponsored by a Community Housing Development 
Organization (CHDO)? ☐ Yes*   ☐ No 

 
*Please upload/attach a copy of your CHDO Eligibility Documents.  

 
  



5 | P a g e  
 

B. AGENCY STRUCTURE & BACKGROUND 
 

Please provide the following information (If more space is needed, attach paper to application). 
 
B.1. Type of Agency: _____________________________________________________ 

 
*If a 501(c), please upload/attach a copy of your determination letter from the IRS. 
 
*All agencies are required to upload/attach a copy of your current Bylaws, Articles 
of Incorporation, and Certificate of Good Standing with the State. 
 

B.2. Board Information: 
 
Name: Position/Title: City of Residence: Time on 

Board: 
Expiration 
of Term: 

     
     
     
     
     

 
B.3. Mission Statement: ___________________________________________________ 
 
B.4. Date of Incorporation: ________________________________________________ 
 
B.5. Purpose of Agency: ___________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 

B.6. Type(s) of Service(s) Provided: _________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 

B.7. Please describe the Agency’s capabilities: ________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 

B.8. Are there required licenses to operate? ☐ Yes*  ☐ No 
 

*Please upload/attach a copy of the required licenses. 
 



6 | P a g e  
 

B.9. Please describe the Agency’s previous experience implementing similar 

programs/projects: _____________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

B.10. Briefly describe the Agency’s existing staff positions and qualifications:  

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

B.11. Please describe the Agency’s capacity to carry out the proposed activity(ies):  

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

B.12. Does the Agency have a Personnel Policy manual with an Affirmative Action Plan 
(AAP) and Grievance Procedures? ☐ Yes*  ☐ No 

 
*Please attach supporting documentation. 



7 | P a g e  
 

B.13. Has the Agency received any Federal finding, resolved or unresolved, within the past 
five (5) years? ☐ Yes*  ☐ No 

 
*Please attach supporting documentation explaining. 

 

 

B.14. Briefly describe how the Agency will monitor progress in implementing the program: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

B.15. Describe and discuss the Agency’s experience in reporting, monitoring, or 

recordkeeping compliance requirements: __________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

B.16. Describe the Agency’s fiscal management, including financial reporting, 

recordkeeping, accounting systems, payment procedures, and audit requirements:  

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 



8 | P a g e  
 

B.17. Does the Agency have written procedures for financial management and personnel? 

☐ Yes* ☐ No 

*Please attach supporting documentation. 

 
B.18. Indicate your Agency’s status as it relates to audit reports by one of the options 
below: 

  ☐ Most Recent Audit* 

  ☐ Financial Statements: including the General Ledger & Balance Sheet detail 
    from the last two most recent reporting periods of operation.* 
 

*Please attach supporting documentation. 

 

B.19. Does the Agency have liability insurance coverage?  ☐ Yes* ☐ No 

*Please attach Insuring Agency information and the dollar amount covered. 
 

 
B.20. Does the Agency pay all payroll taxes and worker’s compensation as required by 
Federal and State laws? ☐ Yes   ☐ No 

 
 
 

B.21. Does the Agency have fidelity bond coverage for principal staff who handle the 
Agency’s accounts?  ☐ Yes*  ☐ No 
 

*Please attach Insuring Agency information and the dollar amount covered. 
 

B.22. Is the applicant or any of their partners listed on the EPLS? ☐ Yes  ☐ No 
 
  



9 | P a g e  
 

C. PROJECT TEAM 
 

If applicable, provide the name of the consultant or staff person, agency, telephone number, and 
email that will perform the following tasks. Please note that consultants paid for with City funds 
must be selected through a competitive process in accordance with 2 CFR 200. 
 
C.1. Do you have a Project Team?   ☐ Yes*  ☐ No 
 

*Please complete the table below. 
 

 Prime Contractor Architect Engineer Team Member Team Member 
Name      

Telephone      

E-Mail      

Most 
recent 
Project(s) 
completed: 

 

 
 

Labor Standard/Davis-Bacon Requirements 
 

C.2. Do you have Davis-Bacon payroll reports from contractors/subcontractors and 
submitted to the City of Goldsboro?  ☐ Yes*   ☐ No 

 
*Please upload/attach a copy of the reports. 

 
Section 3 Requirements 

 
C.3. Upload/attach a copy of the forms from contractors/subcontractors. 
 
 
C.4. Does the developer/owner hold a direct financial interest in any development team 
member listed above? ☐ Yes*   ☐ No 

 
*Please provide details of the relationship. 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 



10 | P a g e  
 

C.5. Has the developer, sponsor, or any other development team member listed including 
any of their owner or partners, ever been debarred from Federal contracting opportunities 
by any agency of the Federal Government? ☐ Yes* ☐ No 

 
*Please provide details. 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
  



11 | P a g e  
 

D. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

D.1. What is the status of the project? _______________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________ 

 
 
D.2. What has been done so far? ___________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________ 

 

 

D.3. What are the sources of financial assistance already received? What is the amount of 

financial assistance already received? ______________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________ 

 

Relocation 
 

Relocation is the moving of residential or commercial occupants from their current space. Please 
indicate which statements apply to your proposed project. 

 
☐ Building on undeveloped site. 
 

 ☐ All buildings have been vacant for at least 90 days prior to application’s submission. 
 

☐ Some or all of the buildings are (or were) occupied within 90 days prior to 
application’s submission. 
 

 
D.4. Will your development plans require any occupants to move temporarily? 

 ☐ Yes* ☐ No 
*Please provide the number of households to move temporarily. ________________ 



12 | P a g e  
 

 
D.5. Will your development plans require any occupants to move permanently? 

 
     ☐ Yes* ☐ No 

 
*Please provide the number of households to move permanently. ________________ 
 

D.6. Will your development plans require any commercial occupants to move? 
 

☐ Yes* ☐ No 
 

*Please provide the number of households to move permanently. ________________ 
 
D.7. Upload/attach a copy of your Relocation Plan. 
 
 
Supportive Services 

 
D.8. Are you using/providing any supportive services? ☐ Yes* ☐ No 

 
*Please describe the supportive services to be provided and how your Agency will 

coordinate with other Agencies to provide needed services. ___________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 



13 | P a g e  
 

Rental Application Process/Marketing Plan 
 
D.9. How will the HOME-assisted units be marketed to the qualifying population(s)? 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
D.10. How will this marketing approach promote equal opportunities and ensure 

compliance with Federal Fair Housing regulations? _________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
D.11. Describe your marketing plan for qualified renters. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
D.12. Upload/attach an Affirmative Marketing Plan or applicable HUD form 935.2. 
 
D.13. Do you have a waiting list of pre-approved applicants? ☐ Yes* ☐ No 

 
*Please provide the number of households currently on the waitlist. ______________ 



14 | P a g e  
 

D.14. Describe how you will find eligible applicants. ___________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Project/Program Implementation Schedule 
 
Work funded with HOME funds should not start until the environmental review has been 
completed; funds are released by HUD and the applicant is under contract with the City of 
Goldsboro. 
 
D.15. Implementation Schedule: 
 

Milestones Projected Number of Days 
to be Completed 

  

  

  

  

  

 
 

D.16. What type of development activity applies to the project? (check all that apply): 
 

☐ New construction of rental housing. 
☐ Reconstruction of a structure on the same lot. 
☐ Conversion of an existing structure from another use to affordable rental housing. 
☐ Site improvements. 
☐ Acquisition of existing standard property, or substandard property in need of rehab. 
☐ Acquisition of vacant land. 
☐ Demolition of an existing structure. 
☐ Relocation costs. 
☐ Project-related soft costs. 



15 | P a g e  
 

E. CONSISTENCY WITH LOCAL NEEDS AND DEMAND 
 
Please provide the following information. 
 
E.1. Provide a brief narrative of the proposed project, include project objectives, target 
population(s), major project characteristics, number and type of units, surrounding 
neighborhood(s), proximity to services, public or other transportation, etc. Explain how the 
use of City funds makes this project feasible.  
_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

E.2. How were the housing priorities determined? Cite reference to the need as identified in 
the City’s ConPlan 2020-2024. Refer to the application guidelines for more information. 
_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

E.3. Has the Applicant prepared a Market Study? ☐ Yes*  ☐ No 
 

*Please upload/attach a copy of the Market Study. 
  



16 | P a g e  
 

F. PROJECT FINANCIALS 
 
City funds are provided in the form of an amortized loan or grant. The costs listed in this 
application are to be based upon firm bids or estimates and should be reasonable and sufficient to 
complete the proposed development project. The costs in this application should include only those 
costs that are reasonable and directly necessary to the construction and financing of the project. 
The applicant must provide any funds necessary to  complete the development of the project over 
and above the sources indicated as available to complete the project and it has such funds available 
to pay such costs.  
 
Please provide the following information. 

 
F.1. If you are requesting additional funds for a project currently receiving funding from 
the City, indicate the anticipated date of project completion and estimate any additional 
financial assistance that must still be secured, including the amount requested by this 
application, to complete the project. ______________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

F.2. Reduction Options – Can your project be funded at a reduced level if necessary? 

☐ Yes*  ☐ No 
 

*Please provide the minimum amount needed to make project viable. ____________ 

 

 

F.3. Explain what element of your project would be modified to address this reduction. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 



17 | P a g e  
 

F.4. Is the project for which funds are being requested a multi-phased activity requiring 

funds from future years. ☐ Yes* ☐ No 

*Please describe how the project will be completed should additional funds not be 

available or awarded. __________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

F.5. Has the applicant been in arrears and/or delinquent with any loan in the past five (5) 

years? ☐ Yes*  ☐ No 

*Please explain and include supporting documentation. _____________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

F.6. Please upload/attach documentation on the following: 

☐ Unit Mix and Rent Schedule 
☐ Detailed Project Budget (including Acquisition, Development/Construction Costs)* 
☐ Operating Budget* 
☐ All of the project financing sources and uses (including commitment letters)* 
☐ Cashflow Proforma 
☐ Terms of repayment, interest, and repayment schedule 

 
*Required 

 

 
 

  



18 | P a g e  
 

G.  AFFORDABILITY 
 
City Community Development funds received from the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban 
Development (HUD) must assist low- to moderate-income persons. Rental units assisted with 
HOME funds must serve households at or below 80% of the area median income. Rents must not 
exceed HUD’s published maximum rents for the HOME program. In projects with five or more 
HOME-assisted units, the Community Relations & Development Department will use HUD’s 
HOME Share Ratio Calculator to determine the minimum number for the unit type that must be 
HOME-assisted. 
 
Please provide the following information. 
 
G.1. Explain the measures that will ensure long-term affordability of the units. Describe all 
provisions made to ensure low-income households will occupy the units initially and 
throughout the life of the project.  
_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Development Rents/Affordability 

 

For acquisition, rehabilitation, and/or new construction of rental housing projects, complete the 
following tables for units designated as low-income and for those units with market rents.  

 
G.2. Indicate one of the following: 
 

☐ Acquisition of rental housing projects. 
 

☐ Rehabilitation of rental housing projects. 
 

☐ New construction of rental housing projects. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



19 | P a g e  
 

G.3. Units Designated Low-Income: 
 

Total 
# of 

units 

# of 
Bed/Bath 

 

Total # of 
HOME-
assisted 

units 

# of Tax 
Credit 
units 

# of Non-
subsidized 

units 

Monthly 
Resident 
Rent w/o 
Utilities 

Monthly 
Utility 

Allowance 

Monthly 
Rent + 
Utility 

Allowance 

% of 
AMI 

Targeted 

         
         
         
         
         

 
G.4. Total Rental Income: _____________ 
 
G.5. Total Non-Rental Income: _____________ 
 
G.6. Less Vacancy Allowance of: _____________ 
 
G.7. Effective Monthly Income: _____________ 
 
G.8. Effective Annual Income: ____________ 
 
G.9. What is the expected annual increase in net rent? _____________ 
 
 
Special Populations 
 
G.10. Number of units designated for elderly (ages 62 and older): ________ 
 
G.11. Number of units designated for disabled (mental/physical): _________ 
 
G.12. Number of units designated for victims of domestic violence: ________ 
 
G.13. Number of units designated for large families (5 or more members): ________ 

 
  



20 | P a g e  
 

Monthly Utility Allowance 
 

Complete the following table of allowances for tenant-paid utilities. 
 

Expense Item Electric 
or Gas? 

Paid by Property Owner? 
Or Paid by Tenant? 

# of Bed/Bath Amount Paid 

     

     

     

     

     

 
G.14. What is the source of your utility allowance data? _____________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
G.15. Do you expect to receive or are you currently receiving any rental subsidies for this 
development? ☐ Yes*  ☐ No 

 
*Please check the type(s) of subsidy. 

 

☐ Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation 
 

☐ Section 8 Project-Based Assistance 
 

☐ Other: ______________________________ 
 

G.16. Number of units expected to receive assistance: _______ 
 
G.18. Number of years in assistance contract: _______ 
 

 
  



21 | P a g e  
 

H. PROPERTY SITE AND BUILDING CONSIDERATION 
 
Projects must provide services within the city limits of Goldsboro. If your project is located outside 
of the City, then the services provided must be accessible to all citizens of the city of Goldsboro. 
 
Please provide property site information by answering the following. 
 
H.1. Does applicant currently have site control? ☐ Yes*   ☐ No 
       *Please provide copies of the Deed and Purchase Option Agreement. 

 
H.2. Parcel Identification Number: _________________ 
 
H.3. Address: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
H.4. Property Size: ________________ 
 
H.5. Zoning Classification: ____________ 
 
H.6. Year Built: ________ 
 
H.7. Landmark Designation: ____________________ 
 
H.8. Has an appraisal been prepared for the project? ☐ Yes* ☐ No 
        *Please upload/attach a copy of the appraisal. 

 
H.9. Please List Deed Restrictions, Liens, and Covenants: ____________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
H.10. Dollar Amount of Existing Debt: ____________ 
 
H.11. Lien Holder Address: ________________________________________________ 
 
H.12. Do you have a map of the site? ☐ Yes*  ☐ No 
         *Please upload/attach a map of the site. 

 
 

H.13. Describe any special or unusual features that should be known about the site: 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 



22 | P a g e  
 

H.14. What utilities are presently available to the site? _______________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

H.15. Is the location of the proposed project currently occupied? ☐ Yes* ☐ No 
*Please upload/attach copy of supporting documentation of whether there is a need 
for residents to be temporarily or permanently relocated for any reason. 
 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Fair Housing Act 
 

For certain developments, HUD requires a minimum of 5% of the units to be accessible to 
individuals with mobility impairments and an additional 2% of units be accessible to individuals 
with sensory impairments (i.e., hearing or vison impairments). These developments include: 
 

• New construction of multifamily developments. 
 

• Substantial alterations of a housing development with 15 or more units where the 
costs will be 75% or more of the replacement cost of the completed facility. 

 

• When other alterations that do not meet the regulatory definition of substantial 
alterations are undertaken in multifamily rental housing developments of any size. 

 
H.17. Number of units for individuals with mobility impairments: _________ 
 
H.18. Number of units for individuals with sensory impairments: _________ 

  



23 | P a g e  
 

I. DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
Please provide the following information. 
 
I.1. Is this for a development project? ☐ Yes* ☐ No 

 
*Please indicate the type of housing and occupancy planned. _________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
I.2. Target Unit Type: _________________ 
 
I.3. Target Unit Number: ____________ 
 
I.4. Total Number of Units Planned: __________ 
 
I.5. Residential Floor Area Planned: ___________ 
 
I.6. Total Floor Area Planned: ____________ 
 
I.7. Total Number of Buildings: _________ 
 
I.8. For existing buildings, indicate the year built: ________ 
 
I.9. Are the buildings Residential or Commercial? _______________________ 
 
 
I.10. Describe the Structural System: _____________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
I.11. Describe the Floor System: _________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
I.12. Are there Garages? ☐ Yes* ☐ No 
 
      *Please indicate how many garages and parking spaces are present. ______________ 



24 | P a g e  
 

 
I.13. Are there covered parking spaces? ☐ Yes* ☐ No 

 
*Please indicate how many covered parking spaces are present. ________________ 

 
I.14. Are there parking pads? ☐ Yes*  ☐ No 

 
*Please indicate how many parking pads are present. ______________ 

 
I.15. Number of Recreational Facilities planned: __________ 
 
I.16. Number of Commercial Space planned: __________ 
 
I.17. Number of Accessory Buildings planned: _________ 
 
I.18. Number of Security Procedures planned: _________ 
 
I.19. Cost(s) for use of any of the above, if not part of the unit rent: _____________ 
 
 
Energy and Equipment Information 
 
I.20. Describe the project’s HVAC System: ________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

I.21. Will any of the units follow Energy Star or Green Building Certification System 
Standards? ☐ Yes*  ☐ No 
 *Please indicate the number of units. _____________ 
 
 
I.22. Describe interior features and specifications that will be included in the units and 

HOME-assisted units. __________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 



25 | P a g e  
 

I.23. On-Site Amenities – Rental Developments Only 
 

☐ Community Room 
☐ Recreation Room 
☐ Common Dining 
☐ Crafts Room 
☐ Tennis Court 
☐ Residential Kitchen 
☐ Other: ________________________ 

 
Note: HOME funds may pay for the development costs to make utility connections, including 
connections from the property line to the adjacent street. This includes broadband internet 
connections. HOME funds cannot be used for any off-site improvements, including running 
broadband internet cable or wires to the project site. Use of HOME funds are limited to the 
improvements to the project site, i.e., the land owned by the project owner, upon which the HOME-
assisted project is located. 

 
I.25. Please upload/attach the following documents. 

 

☐ Elevation Renderings 
 

☐ Floor Plans for Each Unit 
 

☐ Site Plan* 
 
*Required 
  



26 | P a g e  
 

J. REQUIRED DOCUMENTS 
 
Please provide the following information.  
 
☐ Articles of Incorporation 
 
☐ Current Bylaws 
 
☐ Board of Directors (for Non-profit organizations) 
 
☐ Organization Chart 
 
☐ Current Resumes 
 
☐ A copy of the most recent Audit; if not available, then financial statements that include 
General Ledger and Balance Sheets for a two-year period. 
 

  



27 | P a g e  
 

K.  SUBMIT 
 

*Once an application is submitted, it can only be “Re-opened” by an Administrator. 
 
☐ I have reviewed the Federal and General Requirements contained within the provided link. 
 
☐ The undersigned hereby makes application to the City of Goldsboro through its Affordable 
Rental Housing Development Program for HOME funding to undertake the activities described in 
this application. The financial assistance will be in the form of an amortized loan unless the entity 
is a non-profit, unit of local government, or a public agency. 
 
☐ It is understood by the applicant that this is a formal application for financial assistance. The 
applicant also understands that the City of Goldsboro will not be responsible for any costs incurred 
by the applicant in developing and submitting this application and that all applications submitted 
become the property of the City of Goldsboro and a matter of public record.  
 
☐ The applicant understands that the City of Goldsboro makes no representations or warranties 
regarding the financial feasibility of the development and that any and all financing of the 
development is solely based on representations made by the  applicant. The applicant therefore 
agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the City of Goldsboro and the individual directors, 
employees, members, officers, and agents of the City of Goldsboro in the event that the applicant 
or anyone acting on behalf of the applicant, at their request or by and through the applicant, incurs 
any loss in conjunction with the development. 
 
☐ It is understood and agreed by the applicant that, for the purposes of determining the terms 
under which a commitment may be made, the City of Goldsboro may require changes in the 
information contained herein (including attachments) or in any documentation or materials now 
or hereafter submitted in connection with this application. It is further understood by the 
applicant that additional information may be requested in order to facilitate the decision-making 
process.  

 
☐ By execution of the application, the applicant understands and agrees that the City of 
Goldsboro will conduct its own independent review and analysis of the information provided in 
the application, that such any review or analysis will be made for the sole and exclusive benefit 
of the City of Goldsboro. 
 
 
☐ I understand and agree that my application for financing, all attachments thereto, and all 
correspondence relating to my application are subject to a disclosure request and I expressly 
consent to such disclosure. I further understand that any and all correspondence to me from the 
City of Goldsboro relating to my application is subject to a request for disclosure and I expressly 
consent to such disclosure. I agree to hold harmless the City of Goldsboro and the individual 



28 | P a g e  
 

directors, employees, members, officers, and agents of the City against all losses, costs, damages, 
expenses, and liability of whatsoever nature or kind (including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees, 
litigation, and court costs) directly or indirectly resulting from or arising out of the release of all 
information pertaining to my application pursuant to a disclosure request. All Federal, State, and 
Local subsidiaries have been disclosed and revealed. 

 
☐ I certify that the information contained in this application is true and correct and that it contains 
no misrepresentations, falsifications, intentional omissions, or concealment of material facts.  

 
 
 
 
Signature & Date 



L



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 — 5
L' 

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE " GOLDSBORO COMMUNITY FLOODPRINT" REPORT

WHEREAS, the citizens within the City of Goldsboro are subject to the effects of natural hazards that
pose threats to lives and property, and with the knowledge and experience that areas within regulatory
flood zones are particularly susceptible to flooding events; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro desires projects and recommendations that reduce future flood
losses and increase long- term community resilience to natural hazards; and

WHEREAS, the " Goldsboro Community Floodprint" report ( completed in September 2023) provides
planning and design recommendations that reduce flood risk, improve public safety, and enhance long- 
term environmental function within historically flood -prone areas. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina, that: 

1. City Council hereby supports and encourages the advancement and development of projects
identified in the " Goldsboro Community Floodprint" as follows: 

Stream Restoration and Infrastructure Improvements along the Big Ditch; 
Low Flow Wetlands at the Municipal Golf Course; and a

Flood Mitigation and Feasibility Study for the Wastewater Treatment Plant ( WWTP) 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 6
1

day of November, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Holly Jo es, eputy City Clerk

id Ham, Mayor



M





o

3

Cd '

b ; '? 

b

CI

100

c

0

rn

W

b

y .

CO

GG

b

w -

o

a

o

o

U

bA

p

s~ 

E" 

c 

tl

s~ ! 

aco

ix0-
4 

o

00 ° 

Z

0o > 
o

Wcz

bin, 
0A  

O

0U >,  
7- 

a> 

O

cd

N

C) 

3

W

O

O

00

0

0

u

w

cd

0py
ons

o

c00

yM
O

w

c0i

a

4" 

0

N0
04

W

0

N

N '

b

Q. 

0

10,  

C', 

U

O

o '

Z

0

lam' 

z

CA

W

o

cd '

dp

m

0

Z

O

C7

y .+( 

b- 

P.

0

O -

d^

C  

w

Ej

0 >~ , 

CL: 

o

ami '' 

3

x  

c0i .

o

W

Q

b

w '

C

N+

0

is

co

0

U

0

b

O

W

U

o

Q

a'

b

r

p

U

o

o0

o

y

C) 

y

0

cC « 

p. 

0

rn

p .

b

cC

a .  

O -

0

w

as

O

U

C;

3

cd „ 

L: '

D

C/) ,

p

d 

b 

0•

y

Q

0 

a

3

Q.; 

w

N

W-

40
a

ani ,

0

3

3

Z

C7

ON

Cd

M

t 

O

C`, 

0

0

O

ti

C 

0

w

U

o

o

y

0U0

LO

LO

ao

o6

O

4

sr

COV

COV

O

4

yU
mar' W

O
4
0

md
0

AN
W

M0

E- 

N  00

O

69GPI

0Om

0
0

0
0

O0

0

0

0

I

0l

LDIN

0

0

0

coi

m

CYJ

ISI

LO

69

IEgll

69169

0

0

o

Lo

m

o0

o

o6

bn

m  

cq

0

0

0

m

0cl

5

DO

0) 

N

Go

U

N

N

Fp' 

m

a

w

GO

00

t

t

m

O

O

O

a

F0-

49uu

4A

LO

LO

ao

o6

O

4

sr

COV

COV

O

4yUmar' WO40md0ANWM0

E- 

N  00

O

69GPI

0Om

0
0

0
0O0

0

0

0

I

0l

LDIN

0

0

0

coi

m

CYJ

ISI

LO

69

IEgll

69169

LO

o

Lo

m

o0

o

o6

bn

m  

cq

d

r

0

0

m

0cl

5

DO

0) 

N

Go

N

N

Fp' 

m

a

w

GO

LO

LO

ao

o6

O

4

sr

COV

COV

O

4yUmar' WO40md0ANWM0
E- 

N  00

O

69GPI

0Om

0
0

0
0O0

0

0

0

I

0l

LDIN

0

0

0

coi

m

CYJ

ISI

LO

69

IEgll

69169o1Lo

69

1

6911

ON

w

0

0

4

N

M

0

0

0

0

0

0

c

m

000000o0" 
000

N

4011'= 

O

m

Lo

0

CA

N

d' 

00

O

O

d

e  

c0

CV

C

1-

4

ei

GPI0

0

0

o

0

o

o

m

odct--:

eioo

00

LO 

4

N

d

O .-+ 

d' 

O

C 

CC1

CA

O

N '[

M

O

N

tfJ

O

Q1

Q1

O

O

m

d' 

m
m ,--

4

r

I

00

m

o0

aS

cG

cO

ci

C6

C

69

0

0

m

eq

0

bn

m  

yO

d

r

0

0

D

0cl

5

DO

0) 

N

0

Fp' 

m

a

w

a0i

00

t

t

N

o1Lo

69

1

6911

ON

w

0

0

4

N

M

0

0

0

0

0

0

c

m

000000o0" 

000

N

4011'= 

O

m

Lo

0

CA

N

d' 

00

O

O

d

e  

c0

CV

C

1-

4

ei

GPI0

0

0

o

0

o

o

m

odct--:

eioo

00

LO 

4

N

d

O .-+ 

d' 

O

C 

CC1

CA

O

N '[

M

O

N

tfJ

O

Q1

Q1

O

O

m

d' 

m
m ,--

4

r

I

00

m

o0

aS

cG

cO

ci

C6

C

69

0
O

cl' NclsmNC6
N

LO

UO

U
S~ 

0

bn

m  

yO

d

r

Q

y

D

0cl

5

DO

0) 

U

0

Fp' 

m

a

w

a0i

y

0

m

m

a

F0-

49uu
0
O

cl' 

NclsmN
C6
NLO



a AidFA

GOD

o

o

LOoN0

LO

o

o

iC

0

mo

IF

Cl

r

ci0
m44

E& 

CIS

m

m

cq

eq

GQYI

Ge- 

oq

CC°

i

00

11, 

0

0

L

Lcoi

COIN

W

0

Z

co

W

V .

Y

CCS

0

m

E- 

U > 

0

4

CA

e 

CU

N
U) 

ao

cd

U

El

a

0

b

0

O

wA

F

y

as

a 

AidFA

GOD

o

o

LOoN0

LO

o

o

iC

0

mo

IF

Cl

rci
0
m

44

E& 

CIS

m

m

cq

eq

GQYI

Ge- 

oq

CC°

i

00

11, 

0

0

L

Lcoi

COIN

W

o00occ
0

0

0

C

m

0r-

4

cq

000

oca

L— 

oo

czmccm
1" 

o  

o

v

ocqun

0

c

m

0

0

0

0

c0

000

oC 

d

ri

ci

o .—

i

o  

o

CD

o

cv

kn - 

o

m

CEJ

cq

GO

co* 

ll

00o

II

iiW

Z

co

W

V .

Y

CCS

o

m

E- 

U > 

y

4

CA

e 

CU

N
U) 

ao

cd

El

a

0

ba

0

164a

F

y

asmayc

CCS
E-

1

o

a

a

O

W

044

W

V

F

w 

w

k

3) 

x

F

mei

W

W

O

m

F

41

A

F

E0

EF

o00occ

0

0

0

C

m

0r-
4

cq

000

oca
L— 

ooczmccm

1" 

o  

o

v

ocqun

0

c

m

0

0

0

0

c0

000
oC 

d

ri

ci

o .—

i

o  

o

CD

o

cv

kn - 

o

m

CEJ

cq

GO

co* 
ll

00o
II

iiW

Z

co

V .

Y

CCS

m

E- 

U > 

y

4

CA

e 

CU

N
U) 

ao

cd

El

a

0CZo
Sk

w



N



cd

cd

o ° ° 

o

o

c) 

p .. 

Cl

0

0

0
0

0

vi

O

p

o° 

o

00

I

oo ^

C ,

t

00

421

69

69

os

cd

O

cd

U

s, 

M

O ^

C

o

0

0

0

0

0 ° 

O

b

N+ 

U

o

S

v 

A , 

cd

O

U

m

ON

o  

r4r4
tf) 

ri

oCd
rA

C

00

0

cl

00

en

o

r

o

O ., 

11C

C4 ' ;" 

O

O

O ^

d

U

a

w

sv - 

Nvrpm
U

w

O .- 

U

Cn

cl

o

o

g

o

0

0

0 `

n

rte".+ 

O " " 

O

O " 

rA

a, 

U

y +, 

0

0

0U) 
Cd

0

0

0

10=
01

L: 

U

Li

N

N

Q

O

N •" 

00

C

3

a 

o

y

o

o  

i

a 

W

O

N

U

s. .. 

03

t. 

91

3

E

b  

C ;; 

a 

Wcn ° 
cn

N -

6

o, 

W

W

im° 

H ° 

a3

H °^ 

U

Cd

os

v, 

cc

3

x

N

o . 

x° 

O

o

cn

co

CC

W4
E- ° 

UF

U

WvO
C% 

O

e, 



O



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- S S' 
RESOLUTION APPROVING FORVIS, LLP AS OFFICIAL AUDITOR OF THE CITY' S

ACCOUNTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 159- 34, annual independent audit, requires each local

government to have its accounts audited as soon as possible after the close of each fiscal year by a
certified public accountant; and

WHEREAS, it is the duty of the Council to select an auditor, and approve the Mayor or his
designee, and Finance Officer to enter into a contract for the audit of the City accounts for the fiscal year
ending; and

WHEREAS, City staff conducted a competitive request for qualifications and request for proposal
process and it has been determined that Forvis, LLP to be the top scoring firm with the required
qualifications needed to conduct the City' s audit of accounts in a competent and thorough manner; and

WHEREAS, both the firm, Forvis, LLP, and the partner in charge, John Frank, CPA, are both in

good standing with the North Carolina Board of Certified Public Accountant Examiners; and

WHEREAS, City staff recommends that the contract to audit the accounts of the City of Goldsboro
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 be awarded to Forvis, LLP. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 

1. Forvis, LLP is hereby selected as the auditor for the City of Goldsboro for the fiscal year ending, 
June 30, 2023. 

2. The Mayor and Finance Director and other staff as required are authorized to execute the

necessary documents and contracts for the audit of the City accounts. 

This Resolution is effective upon its adoption this 6' day of November, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk



P



 2023 Downtown Lights UP!  - Addendum #1 
 

ADDENDUM # 1  

 
2023 Downtown Lights UP!  - Addendum #1 | October 27, 2023  

 
 
The following information is provided to the Goldsboro City Officials and Applicant for 
the above-named Special Events and shall become a part of the Special 
Events/Parade/Street Closing Permit Applications submitted by the applicant with all 
2023 Downtown Lights UP! Activities.  No consideration will be allowed due to any 
potential applicant not being aware of or familiar with this addendum.    
  
The following revisions supersede the information contained in the original Special 
Events/Parade/Street Closing Permit Applications and specifications issued for the 
above name Special Events.  This Addendum # 1 contains 2 pages in total.   

  
  

This purpose of this Addendum is to make the following changes/updates:  
 
  

Changes: 
 

• Adding The HUB in the Requested Event Location. 
• Extend the closure to both sides of 200 South Center Street. 

 
 

Updates: 
  

• Update and change the original/approved location to include The Hub. 
 

• Update and change the original/approved street closures to include both the 
Southbound and Northbound lanes of the 200 block of South Center Street.   
 
 

 
  

 
 

NO OTHER CHANGES OR UPDATES  

 
 
 
 





1
Updated May 1, 2023

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

SPECIAL EVENTS/PARADE/STREET CLOSING

PERMIT APPLICATION
**In the event of a street closing or carnival, an application should be submitted at least 

30 days prior to your parade or special event.

I. General Information

Type of Event: (please check all that apply)

Parade Run/Walk Festival Street Closure Carnival Other (explain): ________________

Event Name: __

Event Date(s):   Event Website:  

Inclement Weather/Rain Date(s): __

Description of Event (Please briefly describe the event.)

____________________________________________________________________________________________

Requested Event Location: ________ ______

Event Start Time/End Time: 

Set-Up:  Date & Time (start/end): 

Dismantle (Completion): Date & Time (start/end): 

Estimated Daily Attendance: ______

Will this event require street closures?  Yes No    Closure Times________________

If yes, please list the streets that you are requesting to be closed: 
_________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________

II. Applicant and Sponsoring Organization Information

Sponsoring Organization Name: ______

Are you a non-profit? Yes   No   If yes, are you:  501c (3)   501c (6)  Place of worship 

Applicant Name: Title:

Address: ______

City: State: Zip: ____    _ Phone: 

Cell Phone: Email: ______

    Date of Application ______________
                (Inner Office Use Only)

Downtown Lights Up

Tuesday Nov. 21st

n/a

Downtown Lights Up is an annual holiday event held downtown to celebrate the "flipping of the switch"

officially kicking off the holiday season. This free, family-friendly event is a community favorite and

attracts more than 500 attendees each year.

100 & 200 Blocks of North & South Center Street, excluding southbound lane of
200 S Center Street

Tuesday Nov. 21st 8:30pm

Nov. 21st, 9am (200 block of N Center only, 4:15 remaining closure)

Tuesday Nov. 21st 5pm-8pm

5000+

9am - 200 Block of N. Center
4:15 pm 100 & 200 Block of S. Center and N. Center

100 & 200 Blocks of North & South Center Street, excluding southbound lane of 200 S. Center Street/ 4 spaces of John St. parking lot

City of Goldsboro - Downtown Development

Austin Rye Marketing/Admin

116 N. Center Street

Goldsboro NC 27530 919-734-4959

arye@goldsboronc.gov



2 
Updated May 1, 2023 

Day of Event Contact:  
 

Name: Phone: __________

III. Event Map 

For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnival- FORMATION AREA LOCATION:   _______     

For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnivals- STARTING POINT:   ________      

For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnival- ENDING POINT:        ______  

*Please provide a detailed map of your event, including race/walk/parade route(s), stage(s), 
inflatables, rides, booths, tents, parking, etc.  (Please attach additional pages as needed.) 

IV. RESTROOMS & SITE CLEANUP (Bathroom facilities are required for events 
lasting longer than two hours and must be ADA compliant.)   

One Port-A-Jon is recommended per 100 people, and is based on event duration 
instead of number of participants.   
  
How do you plan to handle restroom services?  Portable Toilets  Other 
If portable toilets will be provided, please list the name/contact of the company:  
 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
If no portable toilets will be provided, how will these requirements be handled? 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

How do you plan to remove garbage and/or recycling? (City receptacles must be requested separately 
no less than 30 days prior to the event. Contact the Public Works Department at 919-750-7450.)  
 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

Austin Rye 919-734-4959

Parks Portable Toilets

City Receptables



3
Updated May 1, 2023

V. Event Details: Please answer the following questions regarding your event.

Yes   No Does the event involve the sale of food?
Yes   No   Does the event involve the sale of alcohol?     

For events with food, a letter from the health department must be submitted 30 days 
prior to the event.

o Health Department: (919) 731-1000
The ABC Permit, issued by the NC ABC Commission, must be submitted to the 
Goldsboro Police Department prior to the event.  The event permit will not be issued 
until the ABC Permit is submitted.

o NC ABC Commission: (919) 779-0700

Yes   No Will there be musical entertainment at your event? 

Amplification? Yes   No   
Note: Any Live or Loud Music cannot begin prior to 10am, must end by 10pm and is
subject to all city noise ordinances, unless approved in advance by the Goldsboro 
City Council.  Please contact the City of Goldsboro Planning Department at 919-580-
4333 for questions regarding City Ordinances. 

Yes   No Will there be any tents or canopies
following information: 

Approximate Number of tents:    

Approximate Sizes: 

Will any tent exceed 400 sq. feet in area?     Yes   No

Note: responsibility to contact the Inspections Department to 
arrange for all tent inspections that are required by City of Goldsboro ordinance. A 
permit is required when using any type of tent. 

City of Goldsboro Inspections Department (919) 580-4385

Yes  No Will you require electrical hook-ups for this event? (Please note that electrical availability is 
limited.)

Yes   No Will admission fees be charged to attend this event? 
______________________

Yes   No Will fees be charged to vendors to participate in this event?
______________________

Yes   No   Applicant has read, in its entirety, the City of Goldsboro Use of City-Owned Property for
Special Events Policy. The Policy Regarding the Use of City-Owned Property for Special Events 

is available at http://www.goldsboronc.gov/special-events/.

*The temporary closing of a NC Department of Transportation Street would be at the discretion of the NC   
  Department of Transportation.  

VI. Miscellaneous: 
Parking:

How will overall patron parking be accommodated for this event?  

______________

Note:  You may be required to provide a shuttle if the event places undue demands on surrounding parking areas.

30

10x10

100 - food trucks only

Public Parking lots and spaces



4 
Updated May 1, 2023 

Special Information and Conditions of receiving a Special Event/Parade Permit: 

Insurance: 

General Liability Insurance coverage of at least $1 million that holds the City and its taxpayers harmless from claims 
arising out of operation of the event is required. This Proof of insurance or applicable rider MUST be attached before 
submitting. Contact your insurance provider for assistance. If the event requires additional insurance, the Finance 
Director will Carnival applicants must provide proof of liability 
insurance of at least $5 million. The city must be listed as an additional insured on the Certificate of Insurance and 
shall be in place at the time such structure is to be occupied or such place of assembly is established for use by the 
public.  

Application Fee: 
An application fee of $100.00 for special events and $200.00 for parades will be required at the time the application is 
submitted unless the permit is denied. This non-refundable fee is to be in the form of a check made payable to the 
City of Goldsboro.   

Event Cancellation: 
At this time, we do not anticipate canceling any events already permitted, however with ongoing national security 
concerns and the possible unavailability of city and police resources, this could occur. If this action is necessary, 
applicants will be given notice in a timely manner. New requests may be denied or adjusted for the same reason. 

Public Safety:  
The City of Goldsboro reserves the right to require security and medical personnel for your event. 

Police: The Goldsboro Police Department shall determine the number of police officers needed to appropriately 
manage security, as well as the time when such services shall commence.  The Applicant may be responsible for 
hiring and paying off-duty law enforcement officers, or reimbursing the City of Goldsboro for the costs of providing on-
duty law enforcement officers, to appropriately manage the event. Please con
Department Off-Duty Coordinator at 919-580-4223.  

Prohibited Items: 
No firearms or illegal drugs are allowed. 

Policy of Non-Discrimination: 
City facilities are available on a non-discriminatory basis. Appropriate activities need to accommodate individuals 
regardless of age, sex, race, color, religion, national origin, physical or mental disabilities, affection preference or 
marital status. The City of Goldsboro does not discriminate on the basis of disability in admission, access, treatment 
or employment in its programs or activities. 

Additional Rules Pertaining to Events: 
1. Vehicles will only be in designated parking areas.  
2. All animals must be leashed as outlined in COG Code of Ordinances 91.15;91.18.  
3. Applicant will respect neighboring property/business owners with respect to noise. 
4. Applicant understands that it will not be the responsibility of the Police Department to relocate vehicles parked 

along any portions of the streets to be closed prior to the event. 
5. Applicant is required to ensure the areas used are clean and free of debris.  Please note that there will be a 

cleaning fee charged if the area is not clean.  

Alcoholic Beverages: 
(If consumption of alcohol is planned on property for event, the following additional requirements MUST be met.)  

1. All necessary ABC permits must be issued by the State and copies are provided with this application. 
2. Signs shall be posted and visible at all exit points at the special event stating that it is unlawful to remove 

alcoholic beverages in opened or sealed containers from the premises. 
3. Areas where alcohol will be consumed, served or sold must clearly be defined and delineated on the premises 

by barricades, caution tape or other acceptable means. 
4. All necessary ABC permits must be issued by the State and copies provided with this application. Follow steps 

outlined at www.abc.nc.gov/permits. 



5
Updated May 1, 2023

5. Off-duty law enforcement officers are required to be on-site if alcohol is present at the event. The number of
officers required will be determined by the Goldsboro Police Department.

** Submitting this Special Event/Parade Permit Application does not provide permission to conduct your 
planned event. Please do not send out publicity, flyers, or other media prior to receiving confirmation of 
approval. Your confirmation will be in the form of a Permit, issued to the organization and/or person 
responsible for conducting the event.

**For street closing applications: the Goldsboro Police Department will notify the applicant when the 
Goldsboro City Council has approved the permit. 

Agreement

I have read and understand this application and the requirements placed upon this applicant and organization. I 
agree to abide by the City of Goldsboro rules, regulations and ordinances should my permit application be 
approved.  I will fulfill the requirements placed upon this permit application. 

Authorized Signature: Date: 

Organization: 

Please return this application and all supporting documentation by email, mail or in person to:
Goldsboro Police Department 
Community Police Services 
204 S. Center Street
Goldsboro, NC 27530
spowers@goldsboronc.gov

CANCELLATION POLICY: Written notification of intent to cancel your event must be received in writing a minimum
of 21 days prior to the scheduled event date to Sgt. Steven Powers at spowers@goldsboronc.gov.

For Inner Office Use Only:

________________________________________ __________________
Goldsboro Police Department Representative Date 

________________________________________ __________________
Downtown Goldsboro Representative Date

____________________________________ ________________
Public Works Department Representative Date

________________________________________ __________________
Parks and Recreation Department Representative Date

____________________________________ ________________
Finance Director Date

____________________________________ ________________
Date 

(Use of City Owned Lots/Non-Street Closings and Carnivals)

Type text here

10/16/2023

City of Goldsboro - Downtown Development

10/16/2023



6
Updated May 1, 2023

Special Event Release of Liability Waiver

The undersigned person is applying for Use of City-Owned Property for Special Event on behalf of 

from the City of Goldsboro and hereby agrees to indemnify 

and hold the City of Goldsboro, its officers, agents and employees harmless from all claims, liabilities, demands, 

expenses, of any nature or kind, expresses or implied, whether sounding in tort or in contract that may be asserted 

against the City, its officials, agents and employees by any person, firm, or corporation, that may arise out of any 

This the day of  , 20_______.

(SEAL)

(Applicant & Authorized Representative of Event)

This form must be completed, signed and returned with the completed application.

COG Downtown Development

16 October 23



Q



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - g 6
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE DISTRIBUTION OF TRUST ASSETS FOR

SIMON M. ROSENFELD' S AND SADIE E. ROSENFELD' S GRAVES IN
WILLOWDALE CEMETERY

WHEREAS, Fox Rothschild LLP represents financial institutions that currently
serve as trustees for trusts that were created for the benefit of cemetery plots. They are
seeking court approval to terminate these trusts and distribute the assets to the respective
interested party or parties; and

WHEREAS, a trust was set up in 1967/ 68 for Simon M. Rosenfeld for the care
and maintenance of Simon M. Rosenfeld' s and Sadie E. Rosenfeld' s graves in Willowdale

Cemetery and the care and maintenance of the Rosenfeld Plot in Oakland Cemetery in
Atlanta, GA. The trust has $ 36, 210. 47, plus $ 70, 000 in accumulated income, to disperse

equally to Willowdale Cemetery and Oakland Cemetery. The gains/ interest on the funds
can only be expended for the care and maintenance of the Rosenfeld plots; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Department is requesting that Council authorize the
Finance Director to establish a perpetual care trust fund for cemetery trusts. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

The city attorney is authorized to complete the petition and
necessary paperwork to terminate the trust for Simon M. Rosenfeld
for the care and maintenance of Simon M. Rosenfeld' s and Sadie E. 

Rosenfeld' s graves in Willowdale Cemetery. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 6th

day of November, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Holly J nes, beputy City Clerk



R



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - 

RESOLUTION REQUESTING A REDUCTION OF SPEED LIMIT

BY THE NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR

A SECTION OF THROUG14FARE ROAD ( SR 1712) 

WHEREAS, there are approximately 64 miles of streets within the Goldsboro city limits
that are on the North Carolina Department of Transportation' s Highway System; and

WHEREAS, due to the number of residential properties and issues with speeding along
Throughfare Road ( SR 1712), the Goldsboro City Council requests the North Carolina
Department of Transportation to consider a reduction of the speed limit from the railroad tracks
on Throughfare Road ( SR 1712) to Central Heights Road ( SR 1709) from 45 mph to 35 mph; and

WHEREAS, prior to considering this action, the North Carolina Department of

Transportation requests that the City of Goldsboro adopt a resolution of support requesting a
reduction of the speed limit for this section of Throughfare Road ( SR 1712). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that: 

1. The Council requests a reduction of the speed limit from the railroad tracks

on Throughfare Road ( SR1712) to Central Heights Road ( SR 1709) from
45 mph to 35 mph. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
61

day
of November, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk

am, Mayor



S



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 — g
RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT STRATEGIC BUYOUT PROGRAM PROPERTIES

WHEREAS, on March 18, 2020, the City of Goldsboro entered into a " Cooperative Agreement" 

with the North Carolina Department of Public Safety, Office of Recovery and Resiliency ( NCORR) to
participate in the North Carolina CDBG Buyout Program ( Buyout Program); and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this program is to mitigate disaster risks and reduce future losses due
to natural disasters; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Buyout Program, the City of Goldsboro will accept applications from
property owners to purchase said property owners' properties pursuant to the terms of the " Cooperative

Agreement" previously approved by the Goldsboro City Council; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

Pursuant to the March 18, 2020 Agreement, Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to
accept properties as identified by the ReBuild NC Buyout Program as listed in Apprendix A in
the " Cooperative Agreement". 

2. The City Attorney shall be the authorized city representative at the property closing and shall
be authorized to sign all closing documents. 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after November 6, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Holly foner, Deputy City Clerk





































Item T



b
4-

4eq
00

0

O

O

O

U
a) 

N

m

b

U` 

1

C7

Q

cd

o

b

cn

GO

W

O

C)
o

cd

cd .) 

y

N

O ° 

Q) 

WSJ
C%

x >

b (

1) 

o ° 

H

y" 

N

v' ¢' 

U '

C

to

4-
4

X

cd

o

N ` 

O

N

U ^

C

4-

4

Cd. ° " . 

o

w

C

O

CZ

czy
a) °

f 

4. -, 

cd .- 

U

N

O

O

r' 

Uz ° 

toxo

o

0

3

c .

ovU
a)  

i 

Q,

a°
Ai

b ° 

k

0

to

0 "`

41(41 . 

4-
4

brio

oU

ani

aki ' 

d .

fl -

d

rAu
to

0

CA

Cd

Z

a ,

p,

Oo° 

t4°: 

o°'

Q. 

4.

o  

a) '

G

s, 

r

a) 

U + 

O

o '

d '

C '

C

U

cd

A

q

W

L7

a) 

U

o

0

p ° 

o

4  

Mc° 
cq

o

cq

c 

o  

W

U

U

p, 

ami ° 

o

N

64 64

c

U , 

b

3

a) 

ZW
U

0 ° 

o. 

o

w

Cd

ob
a) 

j ° 

3 ' 

0

0

U

Z
j' •

J

t-, 

4-
4

CA

0

O

a) 

z

j

O

v

a) 

a) 

O

O

p

cd

O° 

b' 

0

y

cid

O

y ¢, 

cd

0

9

ami

Z  

o 

v ° 

ani

v 

s-

4

Q

Cd

v  

A

v 

v ° 

C/) 

W

cd

d

l ° 

ice  

toa
0 

4° .   

0

c

d

a0

O

cd

o

6. 

W

W , 

OO, 

cd

cd

v ., 

4- 

fW ., 

w

L1.
1

S 

M

W

G

O

oo. 

eq

o

ID

7.•

4

N •+-'-+ 

a

N , •

b '

rte+ 

P, .

r -- 

41

M

N

4

3

a) 

t". " 

r

v] 

Cid

cid '" 

a) 

U
a 

a) 

p — 

O .-, 

U

Ocd
Q) 

o

IP4

Ud
a

C7 +

000

rA== °

t8  

Z

oo '
o

O

c 

N

v

O

4- 

Wrn

a' '' 

t 

b4

cd

O

C;

34-
4

O

U

w

wa
N

Cd

o ° 

o

00

00

0 . 

14

o

0

y

U

a) 

cd

kn

Ed

7

0

5o00
o

o

000

O >' ' 

bq ° 

a) 

p ' 

tr) 

o

cdeq
O

4 

U

Z

o

o

rA

Q) 

z

O

O0c) 
0CdN

IN

0

w >' ° 

c°
i

4- 

o

a? 

Ll
11`

x4 ' 

U  

64

s.. 

a) 

4,

O+ 

O -

O '

b

x . 

or.

a) 

H

Cd. 

O

O . 

Cd (

o4:

4

o

y, 

y

O

o

U

O

b

cd -

Ci

p

a) ~ 

rp
Z

y

y

p

d

O

Lp

t- 

44- 

a) 

cd

cd

p .' 

l 

b

o

oo
Q) 

U

O

O

Ate, 

r

0

0

r

0

A

Z

0 ° ° '

1- 

cd

o

00

M

H

o° 

0

H

Z

R



d

0

4-

4O0Cd
co

N

N

cd

Cd

b

y

b

O

p

yU "" 

o'

ercd

UU " 
U

4- 

to

fin- . 

a 

cl "

D

U

Cd

w

U

4

M

U

O

C4.

o

C4

U

cd —

14

U) 

m

O

p

v

d

j

CC

Vi

0

b

O

O

O

cd

O

U

O

M

cdcdCd

o

U

q

64o
0

U

4. 

N

41

0

N

U

4424U
U

42

4 

4o24-+ 

U . 
4" 

O

cd

N

00

00

N

00

00

00

2

t'- ,' "

C

U

Uto00

Ur, 

O

bA

M

M

M

00

wa) 
03

a, '

d^

d

4-
4

4. 

4. 

4. 

4-

44-
a

O1-
4

C

cN

U

O

U

U

U

U

U

N

O

U

U

4-

4

y

o

o -

d . 

N

U

cd

HCd

U

00

N

U

bOA

o

03

N

N

v

v

v
v

d

U

U

bio
0

4. 

c0

d

v

v

a

b

d

z

Lt

z

cis

03

4-

x

34- 

4,  

Cd

4- 

w

bo

U

N

U) N

MU

0

U

S

co

ate+ 

En

4-

4

V) 

C

O 

4-

4

U

0o4-
4

Q

tf) 

W ° 

1-

4  

ani

o

O

N

a) 

Q '

b

rn! 

0

y

M

0

OU

c

rA4--, 

O

O

O

O

OO

OO • ~

i

Y

CCS

O

tf) 

O

Itt

tl- 

Itilv1

N

O

p

1.

0

11p

d' 

r-•
4

O

d

O

rA

0

0

0

0

0

o

QCd
0

o

o

o

OU

O

C,

3

Z

H

4-, 

M

M

4

V1

6

r-: 

00

O

4

N

U  H

M

d

co

W

b

y

b

O

O

o'

ercd

UU " U

4- 

to

fin- . 

Cd

w

U

U

O

C4.

o

C4

U

U) 

m

O

p

v

d

j

CC

Vi

0

b

WcdcdCd
y

0

N

P. 

a 

wa) 
03

a, '

d^

d

N 

O

i

U +.-'

UU

7:

14° 

F. >

O
1-

4a 

4. O

U

4-

4

y

o

o -

d . 

N

o

N

HCd

o

N

U

p

4,  

o

y

4 

C

O 

4-

4

U

0o4-
4Q

tf) 

W ° 

1-

4  

ani

o

O

N

a) 

Q '

b

rn! 

0

y

MM

CFJ

d



Item T/ U




